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Making  
a difference



We want to be  
a leader  

in building a 
better Western 

Australia
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What’s  
our vision?

L-R: Alice and Kristy from Grants and  
Community Development.



Our purpose 
To enhance the quality of life and wellbeing 
for all Western Australians through the 
funding and support we provide to our 
beneficiaries and by operating our lottery 
business with excellence and integrity. 

Our values 
Lotterywest is an organisation committed to 
serving the community of Western Australia 
with excellence and integrity.

In enacting these values, we recognise the 
diversity of interests of our stakeholders and 
seek to achieve a balance of approach which 
takes into account this diversity.

It is our commitment that in all we do we 
strive to demonstrate our values.
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L-R: Tung, Andrea and Jude from  
Business Operations.

Engaging
We actively seek  
relationships with  

all our stakeholders  
based on principles  

of mutual respect and  
strive to enhance the  
achievement of their  

goals and ours.

Trusted
We are honest, reliable and 

trustworthy. We conduct 
ourselves professionally with 

the highest standards of 
integrity and excellence in all 
our business operations and 

in our relationships with all our 
stakeholders.

Inspiring
 

We motivate, encourage  
and inspire ourselves and  
others to achieve greater  
things for the benefit of  

the community of  
Western Australia.

Rewarding
We seek to ensure that the 

experience of all those with whom 
we come into contact – players, 
grant seekers, business partners 

and the community as a whole will 
be a valued and rewarding one  
and that all will be treated with 

courtesy and respect.



$763
2011/12 Total sales

Return to beneficiaries
2011/12

$257
Million

Our highlights

2011/12
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Million
$428
Winners shared

Million
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L-R: Larissa, Mark and Alisha from  
Business Operations.



Our products

$360.4 M
$2.9 M
$1.4 M

$100.0 M
$9.4 M

$132.8 M
$101.2 M
$54.6 M
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Highlights
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Annual lottery sales Sales per adult

Our games

• Total sales of $762.7 million

• Increase of $79.3 million (11.6%) on last financial year

•  Total annual sales per adult of $421.75

Our retailers

•  501 full service retail outlets

•  47 Scratch’n’Win only retail outlets

• $61.2 million paid in commission  
 to retailers

• $164,000 in additional incentive payments  
 to retailers

Our beneficiaries

• A total of $257.0 million was raised for the Western Australian community

• $112.4 million returned to hospitals

• $14.0 million returned to sports

• $14.0 million returned to arts

• $116.5 million* given in the form of direct grants including

 –  $5.5 million to the University of WA for the Perth International Arts Festival

 –  $5.5 million to ScreenWest for the support of the screen industry in WA

 –  $105.5 million distributed to charitable and community groups

 – 1304 Grants approved to 1044 different organisations

* This does not include re-allocated funds or grants not totally used.
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Last year my message in the Annual Report 
described our vision as that of ‘making a 
profound difference to the lives of all Western 
Australians’.

It is a vision to which we remain committed in every aspect of 
the operations of Lotterywest. 

Of course if we are to achieve our vision of making a profound 
difference to our community, the business must also be well 
run. The Board is responsible for the overall governance of 
Lotterywest and for ensuring that the business is prudently and 
efficiently managed. This year my fellow Board members and I, 
together with the staff of Lotterywest, are pleased to announce 
that 2012 was a record year for sales and that a record amount 
was returned to our beneficiaries. 

We are pleased that in a recent Parliamentary debate on a 
relatively minor amendment to the Lotteries Commission 
Act, speakers from both sides positively affirmed the work of 
Lotterywest and expressed their belief that the structure of 
Lotterywest as an organisation – which is in effect owned by 
the people of Western Australia and whose primary mission is 
to raise funds for important causes in the community – must be 
retained for this State.

The gambling industry of which Lotterywest is a part, albeit at 
the ‘softer’ end of the continuum, has grown rapidly in recent 
years. Technological development has enabled interactive 
gambling and sports betting to be accessible to anyone with a 
computer or, more recently, a mobile device. 

The economic and demographic landscape of our community 
is also changing rapidly. This has significant implications not 
only for the lottery business but for society as a whole and the 
organisations which Lotterywest seeks to support through our 
work with them.

This year the Board has worked with the management team 
to ensure we are well prepared for the future. This report 
documents our activities, the outcomes which Lotterywest 
achieved in the past year, and sets the scene for our focus for 
the year ahead.

I am grateful to have the privilege of leading a very competent 
and committed Board. This year in March we said farewell to 
one of our longest serving Board members, Roger Lewis, after 
10 years of exemplary service to Lotterywest. Colin Campbell-
Fraser completed his term in December last year after four 
years of enthusiastic and dedicated service. I would like to place 
on record my personal thanks to both these gentlemen and to 
all the Board. 

Two new Board members were welcomed – Garry Trinder in 
December 2011 and Andrea Hall in March 2012. We look 
forward to their contribution in the years ahead.

I thank the staff for another year of hard work and great 
achievement.

Finally, I thank the Premier as Minister for Lotterywest for his 
continued enthusiastic support and guidance over the past year.
 

John Atkins
Chairman

Chairman’s  
introduction
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Chairman  
John Atkins

Of course if we are 
to achieve our vision 
of making a profound 

difference to our 
community, the business 

must also be well run.

Teagan at West Australian Ballet’s  
Community Matinee.



This December marks the 80th anniversary  
of the passing of the first Act of Parliament 
establishing the Lotteries Commission of  
Western Australia. The Commission was set  
up to operate a state-authorised lottery and  
to distribute the money raised to hospitals  
and charitable and community groups. 

The Government of the day had considerable reservations about 
this decision as evidenced by the speech by the Hon Bill Scanlon 
in introducing the Bill. He and his fellow MPs took the bold step 
of establishing a State lottery only because the benefit of raising 
money for hospitals and people in need could outweigh any 
possible harm. They expected that the new Commission which 
would be appointed to oversee the Lottery would ensure that 
any negative consequences would be kept to a minimum. 

The principle of operating a lottery responsibly in order to  
raise the optimal amount of revenue for the benefit of the 
community as was the intention of those establishing Lotterywest 
in the 1930s continues to be the guiding principle of Lotterywest 
today. This is expressed in our vision statement – to be a leader 
in building a better Western Australia – and is underpinned by 
the principles of social responsibility against which we report 
all aspects of our performance. We adopted the ‘balanced 
scorecard’ approach to reporting a number of years ago, which 
recognises the need to report not only on financial aspects of 
our performance but on the impact on all stakeholder groups 
and on the environment.

In reporting firstly against our revenue targets we are delighted 
that this has been our best year ever for both sales and returns 
to beneficiaries. Sales increased by 11.6% with a record return to 
beneficiaries of $257.0 million. Lotterywest continues to hold the 
number one position in the world for per capita sales of Lotto at 
US $259.

 2011 Combined Lotto Sales per Capita

 1.  Lotterywest US $259  (Australia) 
 2.  Norsk Tipping AS US $239  (Norway) 
 3. Veikkaus OY US $199 (Finland) 
 3.  Tattersall’s Sweeps Pty Ltd  US $196  (Australia) 
 5.  Austrian Lotteries US $181 (Austria)

 (La Fleur’s 2012 World Lottery Almanac)

Chief Executive Officer  
Jan Stewart 

Chief Executive  
Officer’s Report
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We adopted the ‘balanced 
scorecard’ approach to 

reporting a number of years 
ago, which recognises the need 
to report not only on financial 
aspects of our performance 

but on the impact on all 
stakeholder groups and on  

the environment.

In the previous two years, although we were able to achieve 
our targets for total return to our beneficiaries by the prudent 
use of reserves, we did not reach our sales targets. While retail 
conditions contributed to some extent, the primary factor in 
the negative growth in those years was largely the absence of 
significant jackpots in our two jackpotting games – OZ Lotto  
and Powerball.

This year we have been fortunate, with the opposite happening 
– a run of jackpots for both OZ Lotto and for Powerball in March 
to May 2012 which contributed over $75 million to the overall 
results.

As well as that, we have seen Saturday Lotto, our oldest and 
most popular game, increase in sales by 12.3% in the past year 
and our newest Lotto games, Monday / Wednesday Lotto, 
increase by 15.4%.

The decision taken with the other members of Australian Lottery 
Bloc to make changes to Saturday Lotto in January 2011 and 
Monday / Wednesday Lotto in February 2012 was the major 
reason for the improved performance of these games. The 
changes were a price increase accompanied by an additional 
prize division, doubling the number of winners each week.

Original Lottery Commission  
Charity Tickets.



Chief Executive Officer’s Report
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A more detailed analysis of the performance of the products is 
outlined in the Lottery Operations section of this report.

Overview of economy and competitive environment
The economy of Western Australia is often described as ‘two 
speed’. The strength of the resource sector has meant that many 
sections of the community are doing very well. For others, the 
increases in cost of living in recent times in WA has limited their 
capacity for discretionary spending, of which buying Lottery 
products is one example. 

The overall retail environment has had some impact on our 
business but, as our sales results show, this year players have 
been willing to spend more on our products and we have 
attracted some new players.

Competition in the form of Internet gambling options, including 
sports betting, is still a relatively new phenomenon whose 
impact is difficult to quantify. The Federal Government recently 
published its Interim Report of the Review of the Interactive 

A nature escape
Building cubbies, climbing trees 
and making mudpies - the Rio 
Tinto Naturescape Kings Park is 
all about making nature a ‘hands 
on’ experience for the younger 
generation. 

Built with the help of a $3 million grant 
to the Friends of Kings Park, Naturescape 
has the ‘Lotterywest Bush Base’ at its 
heart – a space for community and family 
gatherings. 

Since opening in October last year 
Naturescape has attracted 60,000 people 
to explore, play and learn about the WA 
landscape.

June this year saw the opening of the 
Education Zone, a dedicated area within 
Naturescape. The Zone is built around 
an eco-friendly education centre with 
outdoor ‘living classrooms’. Specialist 
environmental education programs have 
been created for all school ages. The 
programs are almost fully booked for the 
rest of the year.

If the popularity of Naturescape and the 
Education Zone are anything to go by, 
future generations are well placed to 
interact, understand and preserve WA’s 
unique environment

Rio Tinto Naturescape, Kings Park.

Gambling Act 2001. Essentially, this federal legislation was 
originally brought in to restrict Australians’ access to Internet 
gambling except from a very limited number of already 
approved operators – in particular the TABs and the authorised 
State Lotteries. 

In practice it has been impossible to restrict Australians’ access 
to the literally thousands of Internet gambling sites established 
offshore. The interim report recommends that this fact be 
recognised and that the Federal Government seek to establish 
a regulatory framework allowing other authorised Australian 
operators to offer their products in this country and current 
operators to extend the range of products in order to compete 
with off shore operators. Further comment on the report has 
been invited. At this time it would seem unlikely that any 
immediate changes to the current legislation will be made and 
the Federal Government has given no indication of their likely 
response to the report. 

While this means the legislative status quo in Australia may 
continue for an indefinite period, it still means that competition 
from other Internet providers is real. To reduce the risk that 
Western Australian players will seek alternative providers of 
Lotto products, Lotterywest’s Internet service, established in 
2011, must be as convenient and accessible as possible within 
our responsible gambling standards. The performance of that 
distribution channel is documented in the Lottery Operations 
section of this report.

Government policies and legislation
Another trend in the Lottery industry is the privatisation of 
the State lottery, where the licence to operate is offered for 
sale to private providers. This trend can be seen strongly in 
Australia which in many ways could be seen as a global leader 
in privatisation of its State lotteries. The licensed operator of all 
State lotteries, other than that of South Australia and Western 
Australia, is the publicly listed company Tatts Group Ltd. 

The South Australian Government announced last year they 
would commence a process – which is now under way – to offer 
for sale the licence to operate the lottery in their State. It is 
expected this process will be completed later in 2013. This is a 
matter of interest to Lotterywest, given that all our Lotto games, 
which comprise 86% of our sales turnover, and Soccer Pools are 
managed in partnership with the other Australian Lotteries.  
The explanation of the Bloc and its operation is described on 
page 19.



In recent debates in Parliament on a Bill to amend the Lotteries 
Commission Act, the Western Australian Government and 
State Opposition have made it clear that they wish to retain 
Lotterywest’s structure as a State-owned instrumentality with the 
responsibility of raising and distributing funds for the benefit of 
the community. Many speakers contributing to the debate  
spoke very positively about Lotterywest and the way both the  
business and the grants programs are managed.

The primary purpose of the Bill being debated is to give 
Lotterywest the authority to set up syndicate entries to the 
various games of Lotto and to sell shares in those syndicates 
to the retailers. This means in effect that Lotterywest would 
be buying its own products before ‘on-selling’ to the retailers. 
An amendment to the Act is needed to allow for the rare 
occurrence when Lotterywest would be left with unsold shares 
at draw close-off, and for the possibility that Lotterywest could 
‘win’ a prize. 

The amendment provides that the funds from any prize won in 
this way would be added to the funds available for distribution 
to eligible community organisations. Another minor amendment 
included in this Bill is the power for Lotterywest to seek cost 
reimbursement for services offered to other organisations in 
certain circumstances. This power does not exist now and 
from time to time Lotterywest is approached for assistance, 
occasionally on lottery operations as well as on its grant making 
practices. Of course fees would never be charged to grant 
applicants or other community groups.

The Bill’s passage was completed in Parliament on 16 August 
2012.

Bloc
The Bloc is the name used to describe the consortium of 
Australian Lotteries with whom Lotterywest works to offer the 
games of Lotto, Soccer Pools and Super66. The purpose of 
Bloc members coming together to manage these games is to 
create a prize pool of sufficient size to be attractive to players. 
Although each State lottery is an independent organisation 
operating the lottery under the authority of the relevant State’s 
regulatory arrangements, no one State has a large enough 
population to create the kind of prize offers that players have 
come to expect from Lotto style games.

Each of the Bloc games is managed through an individual legal 
agreement pertaining to each product.

Three members of the Bloc are wholly owned subsidiaries of  
the publicly listed company Tatts Group Ltd, which holds 
the licence to operate in Victoria, the Northern Territory and 
Tasmania; in New South Wales the Australian Capital Territory 
and in Queensland. The other members of the Bloc are the 
South Australian Lotteries Commission and Lotterywest. 

The members of the Bloc meet at least four times a year to 
oversee the management of the game, to review the rolling five  
year plan for game improvements and to plan for the 
introduction of new games. 

With 86% of Lotterywest’s revenue derived from the games 
shared with the Bloc, the relationship with our Australian 
colleagues is clearly a critical factor in our business success.

Brand reputation, marketing and communication
Lotterywest is a highly prominent brand in Western Australia  
and has been so since the very early days of the original  
‘charity tickets’ when the logo or brand image was a figure of  
a mother holding two small children, representing the ‘Mother 
of Charity’. 

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
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The Australian Lottery Bloc members.

Belinda from Executive Team.

Where the money came from 2011/12

Saturday Lotto $360.4m
Monday & 
Wednesday Lotto $54.6m
OZ Lotto $132.8m
Powerball $101.2m
Super66  $2.9m
Soccer Pools  $1.4m
Cash 3 $9.4m
Scratch‘n’Win $100.0m
Other Revenue $12.6m
Interest $18.1m 



Over the years the Lotteries Commission of Western Australia, 
as is our legal name, has used a number of different styles of 
logo and visual imagery. Following an extensive review more 
than eight years ago of the retail design we were using at that 
time, and the way the Lotteries Commission was viewed by 
the public, we decided that a new and more contemporary 
name and logo was needed. This led to the introduction of 
the Lotterywest name and brand, a new design for all the 
product brands and a new retail image. This review also led to 
a change in our marketing approach for both products and for 
our community role with the campaign based on the message 
‘Share it’.

This corporate Lotterywest brand is the one used to represent 
the organisation, and to make the link between our products  
and the benefit to the community, so players and the general 
public can see where the money raised from the products  
is spent.

We also have to market our products effectively in a highly 
‘cluttered’ retail environment and an increasingly challenging 
and diverse media environment. To continue to maintain the 
support of loyal customers and to attract new players we need 
to keep our marketing material fresh and interesting, and in a 
variety of communication channels, including digital channels.

An extensive review of the positioning of the Lotto products 
with our new marketing and communications partners led 
to the launch in May this year of a comprehensive new 
communications approach based on the place of luck in our 
lives. This has included a major new television commercial 
establishing the ‘Give luck a chance’ message, with a range of 
shorter commercials showing different aspects of the way luck 
can affect our lives and how we all can ‘Give luck a chance’. 

The campaign included the use of bus backs and outdoor 
billboards, experiential and digital marketing, as well as print 
media advertising and new point of sale material. While 
it is too early to report the longer term impact, this new 
positioning – which is very different from anything we have 
done in the past – has received a generally positive response. 

This campaign and the strategic marketing approach 
which underpins it is reported in more detail in the Lottery 
Operations section of this report.

As part of the review of our overall communications this year 

we have introduced a new community message: the simple 
statement ‘You play. You give’. This reminds players that every 
time they buy a product they are contributing to the community in 
a very positive way.

Until June this year we had made only limited use of social media, 
but after a careful planning process we have extended our use of 
social media tools. We will continue to do so as we experiment 
with this media for broad communication as well as for product 
marketing and sharing information on grants.

Product Distribution and our retail Network
Lotterywest’s retail distribution network through which our 
products are sold continues to be an essential and highly valued 
part of our business. The network is relatively small for the size of 
our State and a highly specialised one, comprising around  
500 retail outlets. 

Most of these are newsagencies. The others are a small  
number of kiosks, pharmacies and, in some country regions, 
a supermarket or general store. Considerable resources are 
invested in helping our retailers achieve the best performance 
possible, including the careful selection of new retailers, an 
intensive initial training program, continuous professional 
development programs, incentive programs and relationship 
building. We value the partnership with retailers and seek not 
only to help them achieve business growth but to encourage 
them to take pride in their contribution to the community as our 
representatives to the public. 

We are very grateful for the contribution which the members 
of the Retailers’ Consultative Panel make in helping us receive 
feedback from the network on how we can improve our products 
and services to the retailers and customers.

The retail environment is a very challenging one for many 
members of our network. Customer shopping patterns are 
changing; increasing rents are creating significant issues for many, 
as is the deregulation of retail trading hours. 

More detailed reporting on these issues and the support services 
we offer to our retailers is documented in the Lottery Operations 
section of this report.

In February last year, Lotterywest launched an online sales 
channel. It was increasingly evident that customers expected 
to have the option of buying our products online. This service 
has been available for a number of years in every State except 
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Prizes $428.2m
Retailer commission $61.2m
Operational expenses $55.4m
Hospitals $112.4m
Sports  $14m
Arts  $14m
Direct Grants $116.5m

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
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Steve from  
Information Services.

Where the money went 2011/12



Western Australia and South Australia.

We knew that players in Western Australia were using  
these readily available interstate and overseas channels to 
purchase lottery products. To avoid losing revenue to these 
other services we established Lotterywest’s Internet services 
under the name Play Online. As we expected, the take up  
rate of this service has been relatively low. 

This year it has comprised slightly less than 2% of total  
sales. Evidence from the player profile of our online players 
suggests that we have attracted a new and slightly younger 
market. The effect of this channel on our retail network is 
indiscernible so far. 

Play Online and how it operates is reported in further detail in 
the Lottery Operations section of this report.
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Preserving our history
History, art and architecture are 
among the reasons people visit 
Australia’s only monastic town, 
New Norcia, right here in Western 
Australia. 

Home to a group of Benedictine 
monks who have owned and 
operated the town since 1847, it 
has 27 buildings classified by the 
National Trust, many of which are 
more than 100 years old.
Time and the elements have 
taken their toll on the historic 
buildings, but General Manager 
Aidan McDermott’s background 
in bricklaying, stonemasoning 
construction and civil engineering 
has given him the skills and 
enthusiasm to oversee ongoing 
restoration work.

With Lotterywest support of  
$1 million, the town’s monastery 
precinct has already benefitted; 
water damage to the monastery and 
crumbling bitumen roads have been 
repaired along with other works. 

A further $2 million will help  
restore the historic buildings of the 
former schools – St Ildephonsus and 
St Gertrude’s.

“We were so pleased to get the 
Lotterywest support for both 
buildings so we could run the 
restoration projects simultaneously 
and get the economies of scale”, 
said Aidan.

“If you don’t spend the money to  
do the job properly, within a year, 
you’re back again.

New Norcia.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Beneficiaries
Our increased sales have meant higher returns to all our 
beneficiaries. The return to our State hospitals is $6.4 million 
above budget (6%) and the return to arts and sports are 
$800,000 (6%) each above budget. Hospitals, arts and  
sports are our ‘statutory beneficiaries’ and receive a fixed 
percentage of sales under a formula specified in the Lotteries 
Commission Act. 

In addition our ‘direct’ beneficiaries i.e. eligible charitable  
and community organisations, including the Perth International 
Arts Festival and ScreenWest, received a total of  
$116.5 million (3.6%) more than last year. The funds available 
for those organisations are made up of a percentage of sales 
turnover plus unclaimed prizes in the year, interest earned on 
investments and other funds held by Lotterywest which are not 
required for business investment.

The distribution of these funds is described in the Beneficiaries 
section and the full list of direct grant recipients included at the 
end of this report.

Lotterywest does more than simply make grants. Our philosophy 
is based on partnerships with many other stakeholders including 
those receiving our financial support. We work with grant 
applicants to add value to their projects, often connecting 
others working in a similar field or geographic location, or with 
similar needs, to find creative solutions to those needs. 

This year was one of major change in our grants management 
processes and the system which underpins our grants. A 
completely new system was implemented, replacing one 
developed in house a number of years ago. The implementation 
followed more than three years of planning and testing. 
This new system meant a major review of all grants business 
processes as well as a review and major restructure of the grants 
team itself. It has been a significant change for all members of 
staff in the grants team and it is to their credit that the change 
was made with minimal disruption to grant making services.

Future directions 
Lotterywest is working to a strategic plan developed in  
2009/10 which covers the period through to 2014. We will  
be undertaking a brief annual review later in 2012 to confirm  
that the plan continues to give us an appropriate framework  
to drive our business until the end of the period covered by  
the plan. 



Later in 2013 the Board and management team will begin a 
far more extensive review of the strategic plan to cover the 
subsequent five year period. 

The key elements of our plans for the future for the business 
are product development and improvement, continued focus 
on our distribution channels, both retail and online, further 
development of our communication and marketing approach, 
the increased use of digital channels for marketing and 
communication, internal business process improvements to 

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

gain efficiencies from our business enterprise system, and the 
continued development of our people to give them the skills 
needed for the challenges ahead.

The use of mobile technology and the way it is changing almost 
every aspect of our lives and our business will be a critical 
element of our work in the year ahead. 

We have set ourselves a sales target for 2012/13 of $762M. This 
was set in March 2012 and so was based on the sales forecast 
expected for 2011/12. We are confident this target is achievable 
and will be striving for a stronger performance in light of this 
year’s results.
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Our people
Lotterywest has a staff of around 185 people, a number of whom 
have served us for many years. This year we again celebrated 
some significant anniversaries of long serving staff including one 
member who marked the milestone of 30 years and a number of 
others more than 25 years.

In 2008 Lotterywest embarked on a significant change  
process when we implemented a new gaming system at the 
same time as a new enterprise system for all management 
information systems. 

L-R: Mary, Kaia, Michelina, Elaine and  
Alan from Grants and Community  
Development.

We value our staff  
as the people who  

enable us to achieve our 
business goals for the 

community.



Lotterywest is the  
first Australian lottery  

to have achieved security 
accreditation under  
the WLA Security  

Standards. 

This change process has continued, leading to job restructures 
in some parts of the organisation. Voluntary severance packages 
were offered to staff in those areas where jobs have changed 
significantly. A number of staff have chosen to accept the offer. 
A number of new staff have been recruited for new positions 
requiring different kinds of skills. Overall staff numbers have 
declined slightly in 2011/12.

A new organisational development program has been launched 
during this year, with the objective of a more coordinated and 
targeted approach to the selection, training and development of 
our staff. This is outlined in more detail in this report.

We value our staff as the people who enable us to achieve our 
business goals for the community and we express our gratitude 
to those who have left Lotterywest in the past year for their 
service. 

international relationships
Lotterywest has been a member of the international lottery 
industry association, now known as the World Lottery 
Association (WLA), since the late 1980s. 

We were proud to have hosted an international lottery 
conference in Perth in 1995 as well as a number of smaller Asia 
Pacific regional seminars in the subsequent period. I had the 
privilege of becoming a member of the executive committee of 
WLA from 1999 to 2008, initially in my capacity as the chairman  
of the Asia Pacific Lottery Association (APLA) and subsequently 
as an elected member in the role of Senior Vice President of the 
WLA. While I have relinquished these official roles, Lotterywest 
continues to be an active member of WLA as a member of their 

us to compare our performance with other lotteries of similar 
type and size.

Meaningful benchmarking is not easy as lottery organisations 
throughout the world and within Australia operate within 
very different regulatory regimes, in different competitive 
environments and with authority to sell different types of 
products. Lotterywest is at a disadvantage in many ways in 
achieving efficiencies available to lotteries in other countries 
due simply to the size of WA. Lotterywest is geographically one 
of the largest lotteries in the world, with a comparitively small 
population.

In addition we have the responsibility of managing the direct 
distribution of nearly half of the funds we raise as grants to 
our beneficiaries. In most other countries and certainly in 
the other States of Australia, money raised by the lottery 
either goes straight to the treasury department of that State, 
or its distribution is managed by some other government 
department.

The grants function sitting within Lotterywest means that 
Lotterywest covers the overheads of supporting the grants 
function within the operational budget. We report the costs of 
lottery business operations separately from grants operations 
as well as reporting the total expense budget. This year’s 
annual report shows what appears to be a considerable 
increase in grants administration expenses with a significant 
decrease in lottery expenses. This warrants further explanation 
although there are notes in the financial statements about this.

As part of the KPI review we analysed how we have 
apportioned costs to the grants function. In the past we have 
included only the direct cost of the staff members specifically 
assigned to the grants team and other easily identified costs 
associated with grants administration, with a relatively modest 
allocation of other overhead costs. 

This year we have undertaken more detailed allocation of 
costs which apportions to the grants function a more accurate 
estimation of the time of other staff in the Information Systems 
area, the Corporate Communications team, the Strategy and 
Planning team and Corporate Services as well as a percentage 
of my own time in supporting this Lotterywest function. This 
more accurate allocation of costs combined with the additional 
costs of the investment in the new grants management system 
– the first of its type in the world – has resulted in an apparent 
significant increase to grants administration costs.

Security and Risk Management Committee and of APLA including 
providing the Secretariat services. 

Lotterywest is the first Australian lottery to have achieved security 
accreditation under the WLA Security Standards. 

The accreditation was awarded in March 2011. This year we 
passed our first WLA Security Certification renewal audit. This 
audit is required every year in order to maintain our WLA Security 
Certification and involves a thorough assessment of  
our operational processes against the WLA standard. We also hold 
accreditation under the WLA Responsible Gaming Standards.

There is little opportunity within Australia for staff to gain lottery 
industry specific skills and training which means the international 
lottery conferences and seminars are a very important part of 
our staff development program. In November 2011, one of our 
senior staff members in the retail support and development 
team attended the European Lottery hosted seminar on retail 
management held in Dublin and three staff members attended 
the APLA regional conference held in Hanoi in May 2012. All have 
benefited greatly by these experiences and the opportunity to 
develop international networks with their peers and brought back 
valuable reports on their experiences to share with other staff 
members.

Lotterywest representatives are regularly invited to make 
presentations at these international lottery conferences and 
seminars. The delegates who attended the APLA Seminar spoke at 
that event and I will be making a presentation at the forthcoming 
WLA conference to be held in September this year in Montreal, 
Canada.

We are often approached to host visits to Lotterywest from 
international lottery colleagues wanting to learn how we manage 
our lottery and receive frequent requests for information about our 
game management and marketing approach. As members of WLA, 
Lotterywest along with our colleagues in the industry, readily share 
information which is compiled in the central database managed by 
the WLA.

WLA and APLA are important resources to Lotterywest and we 
value our membership of these organisations.

Key Performance indicators
This year we began a process to review our performance indicators. 
The purpose of the review is to ensure that we are using the best 
and most useful measures of our performance and that they allow 

Conversely there is a significant reduction in lottery operation 
costs as a result of costs which have previously been allocated 
in total to that part of the business being apportioned to the 
grants administrative function.

We strive to keep our administration costs as low as 
effective management of all aspects of our business allows, 
understanding that every expense we incur on running the 
business uses funds which otherwise could be given to eligible 
community organisations. We ensure we can justify any 
investment we make in the business on the basis of the ultimate 
improved returns it will achieve for our beneficiaries. 

Conclusion
This has been a memorable year in terms of the development 
and growth of our business and of funds returned to our 
beneficiaries and the value we believe we add to the community 
as part of our grant making role.

I express my gratitude to the Chairman and the Board for their 
careful oversight of Lotterywest and the support they give us for 
our work. I particularly acknowledge the two Board Members, 
Roger Lewis and Colin Campbell-Fraser, who completed 
their terms in the past year. Each made a highly significant 
contribution to Lotterywest during their term of office.

I also express my appreciation for the continued support to 
Lotterywest by our Minister, the Premier, the Hon Colin Barnett 
MLA.

I conclude this overview on a slightly more personal note than in 
the past. 2012 marks the 20th anniversary of my appointment to 
the role of Chief Executive of Lotterywest. It has been a privilege 
to serve this organisation and the community in that time. Our 
achievements are only possible because of our staff and our 
retailers and I place on record again in this Annual Report my 
gratitude to them for their contribution to this year’s highly 
successful outcome

Jan Stewart PSM
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
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We are committed to best practice standards 
of Corporate Social Responsibility and to the 
demonstration of Lotterywest values in all our 
activities. 

This means not only operating our games responsibly and 
contributing to the wellbeing of our community through the 
funds we raise, the commitment must also be shown in how we 
interact with all those with whom we come into contact, and 
must include demonstrating respect for the environment.

Lotterywest has a range of programs to help us meet best 
practice social responsibility standards, including accreditation 
under external standards. These programs include:

Ethical Decision Making – we have a training program which 
ensures all our people are aware of Lotterywest values and our 
obligation to behave according to Public Sector Standards. It 
encourages staff to think about the ethics of their workplace 
behavior and decisions as employees.

Reconciliation Action Plan – outlining the specific actions 
we will take in demonstrating Lotterywest’s commitment to 
reconciliation with the Indigenous people of our country.

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan – ensures that our physical 
facilities and information are accessible to people with a 
disability.
  

Environment and Energy Management Plan – our commitment 
is to be responsible in our use of energy and to use all 
reasonable efforts to be environmentally responsible in all  
we do. 

 Responsible Gaming Framework – accredited under the WLA 
accreditation standards since 2009.

Security Control Standards – Lotterywest was the first lottery 
in Australia to achieve accreditation under the WLA Security 
Control Standards in March 2011.

In addition we incorporate environmental considerations into 
our tender requirements and evaluation. A commitment to 
reducing carbon emission, power consumption and waste 
reduction is included in the evaluation criteria we use. 

We have reduced both the number and engine size of 
our vehicle fleet. Diesel-fuelled vehicles are used where 
appropriate. In addition, all our vehicles have up-to-date 
emission control.

Other improvements in 2011/12
Lotterywest has a retailer training and disaster recovery centre 
in Subiaco which was purchased in the 1980s. This year we 
undertook a complete refurbishment to meet contemporary 
disabled access standards and to improve the property’s 
overall amenity.

This refurbishment was undertaken using environmentally 
friendly building standards as a key element in design and 
choice of materials, as far as was practical given the building’s 
age and design limitations. 

Future environmental planning
Investment in environmentally friendly strategies is a key 
driver to making decisions about the buildings we own and 
our choices for their fittings. During 2012/13 a comprehensive 
accommodation plan will identify opportunities for 
contemporary office layout configuration, work environment 
flexibility and portability. This will help meet future workforce 
needs in alignment with our business plans.
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Lotterywest has a  
range of strategies to  

uphold our commitment  
to caring for the  

environment.

The Commonwealth Festival Perth 2011. 



The annual review of our strategic plan was undertaken 
in November 2011 and the plan affirmed. This formed the 
basis of the formal ‘Statement of Corporate Intent’. 

This is an annual plan, including forecast sales and expenditure, 
with forecast return to beneficiaries. Under the Lotteries 
Commission Act the Statement of Corporate Intent must be 
approved by the Minister with the concurrence of the Treasurer 
and tabled each year in Parliament. The Statement of Corporate 
Intent was tabled in Parliament in June 2012.

Towards the end of the new financial year we will begin a more 
comprehensive review to set the planning framework for the 
period 2015-19.

As part of the planning review with the Board in December  
2011, a number of key and closely interconnected areas for 
particular focus in the coming year were identified. These are 
outlined below.

Mobile Access
Lotterywest launched a new website with a Play Online service in 
February 2011, in response to customers’ growing expectation 
of being able to buy products online. Lotterywest Online 
included comprehensive information on our grants programs 
and submitting applications online.

Given the significant increase in use of handheld devices  
such as smart phones and tablet computers, and the concurrent 
rise in their use to access Internet and conduct e-business,  
the next step is to make services more accessible via mobile 
devices. 

This project has two goals: improved access to our website  
via the use of mobile devices, and developing and deploying a 
new range of mobile applications. 

retail image and retail terminal upgrade
The retail distribution network remains an essential part of our 
business. It is our public face for players and the channel through 
which the overwhelming majority of products are sold.

This means that while we need to have an online service as  
an option for players, we must also maintain a contemporary 
retail presence with the modern technology needed to sell  
the products. 

In 2004, as part of the launch of the Lotterywest brand, a 
completely new retail image was launched which has been 
implemented by every member of the network.

Retail design changes in regular cycles and our once very 
modern retail image is now becoming dated. It is time to begin 
the plan for modernising the image using contemporary shopfit 
design and point of sale, including use of the latest style of 
electronic point of sale options. 

This will not mean a new Lotterywest logo or changes to the core 
Lotterywest colours, but it will mean the introduction of a more 
up-to-date interpretation of the primary corporate brand and 
product brands, with an updated retail design which for some 
retailers may include electronic point of sale. The new version of 
the product logos has already been implemented as part of the 
new Lotto marketing approach that began in May 2012.
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ViSiON
To be a leader in building a  

better Western Australia
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Shona from Information Services.

Each of these  
corporate projects is  
linked to one or more  

elements of the  
Strategic Plan.



An essential element of the retail image review will be replacement 
of the gaming terminals through which the products are sold and 
tickets checked and through which we communicate with the 
network during operational hours. The current gaming terminals 
were installed in 2008 when the transition was made to a new 
gaming system supplier. 

As with all technology, lottery terminals need to be regularly 
upgraded and it is time to begin planning for their replacement. 
This process will be more gradual than the complete transition 
made during installation of the current terminals and ticket 
checkers. It will be timed to coincide with each individual retailer’s 
transition to the next version of the retail image. 

This project will take advantage of increased functionality of the 
latest gaming technology and lower maintenance requirements  
of the new terminals. Considerable planning will be needed in  
the next 12 months to design the new retail image taking into 
account the diversity of business styles and size of our retailers  
and to determine the best choice of terminal and the timing  
of the replacement.

Social media
Australia is ranked first globally in use of social media. Nearly 90% 
of Australian Internet users visit a social media site once a month. 

Lotterywest has been very conservative in its approach to using 
this media to date, with only limited use for product promotion. 
We have researched how it is being used and its potential value 
as a communication channel with the public, our players and our 
beneficiaries, as well as a medium for internal communication.  
Risks as well as benefits for our business have been carefully 
considered and we have monitored the increasing use of social 
media by other lotteries in different parts of the world.

It has become clear that like most businesses we need to use this 
additional channel to communicate with our key stakeholders. 

Our expansion in social media channels coincided with the launch 
in May 2012 of our new Lotto marketing activity – Give luck a 
chance – and this use will continue to evolve as part of our overall 
communication and marketing strategy.

Business intelligence
Lotterywest implemented a new gaming system and Business 
Enterprise System (SAP) in 2008. These systems contain a wealth  
of information but as yet offer limited functionality for reporting 
and analysis. 

In the complex and changing environment in which we operate 
we need a far greater capacity than we currently have to analyse 
business performance, and to understand player behaviour and 
the retail environment. The Business Intelligence Project aims 
to achieve this by using a business warehouse to consolidate 
different data views of the organisation and create analysis and 
improved reporting on key business decision areas.

Electronic document and records management  
system (EDrMS)
A modern and efficient document and records management 
system was one objective of the original implementation of 
the Business Enterprise System in 2008. However, only limited 
functionality of this system has been possible so far. EDRMS 
has been used essentially only in the new grants management 
system, which was implemented in July 2011.

Records management processes across other areas of 
Lotterywest are still largely manual and are not yet using the 
tools available through the SAP system. We have identified 
considerable efficiencies and reduction of risk which can be 
achieved by introducing a modern EDRMS throughout our 
organisation. It will also include the use of digital signatures 
which will improve business efficiency and reduce the use of 
paper records.

Treasury management system
At any one time Lotterywest has in the order of $250 million in 
funds under management. 

These funds are conservatively invested in the short term 
money market. As with the other projects outlined, the SAP 
system was always planned to be integrated with treasury 
information. The current treasury management system is 
dated and lacks a range of capacities. The new system will be 
implemented early in the new financial year.

Summary
Each of these corporate projects is linked to one or more 
elements of the Strategic Plan. This is a comprehensive and 
coordinated approach to ensure we have the technological 
infrastructure to support our business; a contemporary brand 
image in retail; and modern communication channels. 
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Seniors stay current, connected 
and choreographed!

Facebook, Twitter, Skype - the 
members of Maylands Autumn 
Club for seniors know all about 
them and aren’t about to let 
age and stereotypes leave them 
behind in the digital age. 

Thanks to a Lotterywest grant 
for new computers and software, 
the Club’s computing classes are 
keeping people connected with 
friends and family online. Proving 
that it’s never too late to learn, the 
senior students have embraced the 
technology; shopping online and 
receiving emails with photographs of 
grandchildren.

And it’s not just the grey matter 
getting a workout. Support for 
gardening equipment, rainwater 
tank, compost tumbler and a potting 
bench will help with a community 
garden and encourage members to 
stay active.

Not that this group of seniors need 
much encouragement to be part 
of the action. Bingo, craft, indoor 
bowls and even line dancing keeps 
participants busy, with line dancing 
steps especially choreographed  
so those with walking  
aids can join in.

Maylands Autumn Club.



Our commitment to make a difference
Lotterywest is the only Australian Lottery where the profits 
derived from sale of games are directly distributed as grants to 
eligible organisations.

As the accountable authority of Lotterywest responsible for the 
significant amount of funding returned to the Western Australian 
community each year, our Board is committed to ensuring that 
our grants contribute to making a significant positive difference. 
This means working in partnership with others across WA – in 
government, business and the not-for-profit sector – and taking 
an active leadership role in grant making and contributing 
broadly to the development of the community. 

Our grant making principles
Each year the Board reviews our grant-making principles and 
policies. The five principles affirmed as part of this year’s review 
are those which have guided our grant making for many years 
and are firmly embedded in all aspects of our practice. These 
principles are:

Flexibility: Our team works with community organisations to 
understand their needs and aspirations. We are not constrained 
by rigid procedures or specific guidelines. Where an application 
or an idea is underdeveloped, grants staff will work with 
potential applicants to help them improve the scope of their 
idea or project to the stage at which it can be supported. 

Being responsive: We encourage and are open to new ideas and 
ways of working, and are committed to continually reviewing our 
policy and practices in the context of changing social needs. 

 Helping development: We work to support proposals wherever 
possible. We actively work with applicants to help make their 
proposals ‘fundable’. This often involves working with an 
applicant organisation to guide, shape, or to add value to a 
project using our considerable networks, sector knowledge 
and individual skills. We also encourage organisations to work 
collaboratively to form partnerships with other groups and to 
engage with other potential funding sources to make the best 
use of available resources and to maximise community benefit. 
 
 Submission-based: Community organisations can submit grant 
applications at any time and for purposes which they define. 
We have only a small number of grant programs with a fixed 
closing date or with specific guidelines. The introduction last 
financial year of online applications has introduced a new level 
of convenience to customers submitting grant applications. 

Being complementary: We believe our grants should 
complement other sources of support and that Lotterywest 
should rarely be the sole source of resources for the project or 
item requested. That support may come from an organisation’s 
own resources, in cash or in kind, or from another agency, 
funding body or like-minded organisation. We encourage 
organisations to use our support as leverage to seek support 
from others.

The history of the Lotteries Commission shows it has taken 
a leadership role since making its first grants in March 1933, 
though it has not necessarily overtly claimed that role nor been 
recognised for it. 

Over the past two decades, as the funds available for 
distribution have increased, and the capacity of the grants team 
developed, together with the willingness of successive Boards to 
explore new ways of making a difference in the community, that 
leadership role has become far more explicit. Our stakeholders 
expect us to lead and for us to be than just a grant making 
organisation. We do far more than decide on grant applications 
and process those that are successful.

In recent years a conscious contribution to building a better 
Western Australia has become a fundamental element of our 
strategic plan.
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Beneficiaries

Lotterywest is the only 
Australian Lottery where 
the profits derived from 

sale of games are directly 
distributed as grants to 
eligible organisations. Beneficiaries Outcome: 

Optimise returns to our 
beneficiaries as stated in our Act.

Provide leadership to our 
beneficiaries to enable them 

to best contribute and support 
the quality of life for all West 

Australians.

The history of the Lotteries 
Commission shows it has 
taken a leadership role 

since making its first grants 
in March 1933, though it 

has not necessarily overtly 
claimed that role nor been 

recognised for it.
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L-R: Moya, Kelly and Viki from 
Business Operations.
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Barking Gecko Theatre Company.

Yirra Yaakin Theatre  
Company.

Supporting Culture  
and the Arts

The commitment of the Department of 
Culture and the Arts (DCA) is to enrich 
the WA community through unique and 
transforming cultural and arts experiences. 

In 2011/12, as provided for in our Act, 
DCA received over $14 million from 
Lotterywest, which delivered core funding 
to 49 arts and cultural organisations.

These range from flagship arts 
organisations such as the West Australian 
Ballet, Black Swan State Theatre 
Company, West Australian Symphony 
Orchestra and West Australian Opera, to 
smaller community cultural organisations. 

Barking Gecko Theatre Company 
In 2011 Barking Gecko, under new Artistic 
Director John Sheedy, brought Western 
Australian author Shaun Tan’s The Red 
Tree to life on stage, to box office records 
and critical acclaim. A three-month tour 
of metropolitan and regional schools 
presented 59 performances to more than 
7,300 students. 

Barking Gecko also delivered educational 
programs designed to foster the next 
generation of WA artists and arts 
professionals. 

iASKA (formerly international Arts 
Space Kellerberrin Australia)
IASKA’s SPACED: art out of place 
residency program invited 21 artists and 
collectives to live and work in one of  
16 regional communities across Western 
Australia for 10 weeks. 

New works were produced across many 
art forms and were first shown in the 
regional communities where they were 
created.

Artists came from Australia, France, the 
USA, Japan, Poland, Indonesia, Taiwan 
and The Netherlands. They worked in 
the Abrolhos Islands, Albany, Dampier 
Peninsula, Denmark, Esperance, 
Fremantle, Jakarta, Kellerberrin, Lake 
Grace, Leonora, Mandurah, Moora, 
Mukinbudin, Narrogin, Northam/Bakers 
Hill and Roebourne.

The inaugural SPACED: art out of place 
exhibition opened at the Fremantle Arts 
Centre in February 2012, taking over all 
the galleries and including large sculptural 
works, video, audio, photographic and 
multimedia installations. 

It was the first in a series of events that 
continue IASKA’s mission to encourage 
new and more productive interaction 
between contemporary artists and 
communities.

Yirra Yaakin Theatre Company
In a world first, Aboriginal actors from 
the Yirra Yaakin Theatre Company were 
invited to perform Shakespeare’s sonnets 
at London’s Globe Theatre as part of the 
Cultural Olympiad Festival.

Western Australian Aboriginal actor, 
writer and director Kylie Farmer translated 
sonnets into Noongar that reflected on 
country and belonging – recurring themes 
in her culture.

Artistic Director Kyle J Morrison and 
actors Trevor Ryan and Kylie Farmer 
performed the sonnets in the lead up to 
and during the London Olympic Games. 
This marks the first time that any of 
Shakespeare’s work has been translated 
into Noongar, and that Aboriginal actors 
have performed at the Globe.

Ten per cent of net subscriptions 
are directed to the Sports Lottery 
Account and to the Arts Lottery 
Account (five percent for each). 
The Minister responsible for these 
portfolios has the responsibility of 
distributing these funds to various 
organisations. 

The Sports Lottery Account is used 
to fund over 100 community sporting 
organisations. It also provides core 
funding for the Western Australian 
Institute of Sport which supports the 
development of elite athletes. A number 
of these athletes gained selection for the 
2012 Olympic Games in London. 

The Arts Lottery Account funds more 
than 20 major organisations, including 
the state orchestra, the state theatre 
company, the West Australian Ballet 
Company and the West Australian 
Opera.

A further amount of a total of ‘up to’ 
17.5 % of net subscriptions is specified 
in the Act for direct distribution by 
Lotterywest to charitable and community 
organisations, with approval from the 
Board and the Premier as the Minister 
responsible for Lotterywest. 

12.5% of these funds are directed to be 
distributed to ‘eligible’ organisations 
(i.e. not-for-profit organisations or local 
government authorities) for ‘approved’ 
purposes (i.e. ‘charitable or benevolent 
purposes’). This broad definition of 
eligibility gives Lotterywest considerable 
scope to support various organisations 
for a wide range of purposes. The Board 
seeks to maintain a balance in grant 
decision making between supporting 
organisations offering services to the 
most disadvantaged members of our 
community, and supporting those 
seeking to build the community for the 
benefit of all.

As part of the distribution which 
Lotterywest manages, an additional 
‘up to’ 5% of net subscriptions is 
specified for the support of the Perth 
International Arts Festival (PIAF) and 
for the support of the commercial 
film industry in Western Australia. The 
University of Western Australia, the 
organisation which originally set up the 
Festival of Perth and within which PIAF 
continues to operate, receives this grant. 
The recipient of the grant for the film 
industry is ScreenWest, the organisation 
responsible for the development of the 
screen industry in WA. 

Grants for not-for-profit organisations, 
PIAF and the film industry are commonly 
referred to as ‘Lotterywest’s direct 
grants’. All recommendations under this 
part of the Act are considered by the 
Board before being recommended for 
final approval by the Premier as Minister 
responsible for Lotterywest. 

In addition to the funds derived directly 
from sale of lottery products, the Act 
prescribes that income received from 
other sources in the business may 
be used for distribution to eligible 
organisations. This includes unclaimed 
prizes falling due each year (players have 
one year to claim their prize) and any 
other revenue generated by Lotterywest 
such as interest earned on investments. 

Full details of the elements of our 
revenue which make up the direct grants 
budget are in the financial statements of 
this report.

Beneficiaries

Lotteries Commission Act



Supporting Sports and recreation 
Lotterywest continued its contribution to 
healthier and happier lifestyles through 
support of sport and recreation projects 
across the State.

In 2011/12, as provided for in our Act, the 
Department of Sport and Recreation (DSR) 
received over $14 million in funding.

$7.2 million of this was given to 88 state 
sporting associations and 100 regional 
sporting associations, helping more than 
5,000 community clubs in WA. 

Other supported programs included:
•  Over $1 million to more than  

180 organisations to support regional 
Western Australians’ participation in sport 
and recreation.

•  The Regional Sports House scheme, 
providing nine DSR offices to help people 
access state sporting associations in 
regional WA.

•  The Drugs in Sport Education Project 
and Sports Drug Testing Regime to 
discourage WA athletes from using 
performance-enhancing drugs.

•  The Safe Clubs 4 Kids project, which 
provides information, resources and 
training to create child safe environments.

•  A GymAbility Inclusion Action Plan for 
Gymnastics Western Australia, resulting 
in employment of an Inclusion Officer; 
engaging schools and agencies; a 
new small grants program; increased 
participation from people with disabilities 
and Indigenous people at club level; and 
support for people with disabilities who 
are trying to improve performances and 
participate in the Special Olympics.
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The section below describes the principles of our approach and 
the way we work. It includes examples of how this has translated 
into projects that may not have otherwise come to fruition 
without our contribution – not only financially but in our help 
with the planning. 

relationship model 
Our grant making is based on a ‘relationship model’, an 
approach that has evolved over many years. Because we don’t 
operate within a rigid program structure, we can work with 
applicants in the way that best suits them and for as long as 
is required. We work at developing an understanding of their 
needs as the organisation seeking help defines them.

At times we may encourage applicants to think more broadly 
than they may have considered possible. We work with 
applicants within the community in which they are based. We 
will help them to build the capacity of their organisation if that is 
a necessary first step in achieving their aspirations.

We do this by spending time with our grant applicants and 
through our grant making teams who travel across the state to 
meet community organisations, local government authorities, 
government agencies and other community leaders. 

This year our team travelled extensively, covering from Broome in 
the north to Pemberton in the south and Shark Bay in the west to 
Laverton in the east. In many locations open information seminars 
were held to inform the public on how we can help. 
Team members also make themselves available in a central 
location where community organisations can book individual 
meeting times to discuss their grant applications in detail. 

Staff are assigned specific geographic regions with the 
responsibility to learn about that location and to form 
relationships with key organisations in that area. They are also 
assigned to specific areas of speciality such as children’s services, 
mental health or homelessness to name only a few. Staff are 
expected to develop a sound understanding of policy and trends 
in the specialist areas and to develop networks of contacts of 
those working in that field or that geographical location.

Beneficiaries

Supporting Sports  
& Recreation

Western Australian Institute of Sport.

Return to Hospitals, Arts and Sports

$140.4 Million
Grants to UWA/Perth International Arts Festival  
and ScreenWest

$11 Million
Direct grants 

$105.5 Million 
Total number of grants recommended 

1,304
Total number of organisations supported 

1,044
Number of new (first time) organisations supported in 
2011/12 through the Direct Grants program 

131
Percentage of applications supported in 2011/12 

97.90%

Western Australian institute of  
Sport (WAiS)
Western Australia’s elite performers 
were helped in reaching new heights, 
with over $4 million provided to WAIS in 
2011/12. 

Lotterywest is the primary source of 
income for the institute, which has 
nurtured and developed athletes since 
1984.

Western Australian athletes are expected 
to make up 11 per cent of this year’s 
Australian Olympics Team, with 45 of 
the 406 team members coming from our 
State.

Western Australia will also be well 
represented in the Australian Paralympic 
Team, with 17 athletes – including 14 
supported by the WAIS – in the final 
team of 161. 

From swimming to archery, and 
wheelchair basketball to athletics, 
these Western Australians have worked 
extremely hard. Their efforts at the 
Olympic Games will inspire many other 
young people to lead healthy, active 
lifestyles, and maybe even go for gold 
themselves one day. 

Country Sport Enrichment Scheme
At the centre of life in many regional 
towns are the sport and recreation clubs 
that offer chances of a healthy lifestyle 
and community interaction. 

The Country Sport Enrichment Scheme 
(CSES) helps bring major events 
and sport development initiatives to 
regional WA. International, national and 
approved state league competitions are 
eligible for funding.

The scheme ensures that people in 
regional and remote areas can access 
sporting experiences and opportunities 
similar to those their metropolitan 
counterparts enjoy.

In 2011/12 the CSES, through Hockey 
WA, brought an international hockey test 
match series featuring the Kookaburras 
and Hockeyroos to the South West 
region.

Held between 14 October and  
1 November 2011, the matches were  
part of the Australian, Indian, Chinese, 
Pakistani and New Zealand teams’ 
preparations for the Olympics. 

The test series was supported by a range 
of community events in Mandurah, 
Rockingham, Busselton and Bunbury. 
Coaching, officiating, cultural awareness 
and capacity building activities were 
included.



Rebuilding futures  
at Oats Street

Unique in WA, Brightwater’s Oats Street 
program provides a ray of light for people 
with an acquired brain injury (ABI) and 
their families. Operating from the Oats 
Street facility in East Victoria Park, clients 
receive support through an extended 
period of rehabilitation to come to terms 
with their situation, recover cognitive skills 
and re-learn important, everyday life skills.

The first stage of the redevelopment  
of Oats Street was supported with a  
$4 million Lotterywest grant and is soon 
to be completed. Major works included  
a new Learning Centre with indoor  
and outdoor gym, hydrotherapy spa  
and an arts and crafts area. A further  
$3.7 million was committed by 
Lotterywest this financial year for more 
construction to help the organisation 
meet demands for its services.

Clients may spend  one to two years of 
rehabilitation in the Oats Street program 
and are supported to reach their full 
potential to move back into  community 
life. Without the program at Oats Street, 
the outlook for people with an  
ABI can be bleak with no  
rehabilitation at all.
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influence and linking
We seek to use our knowledge and relationships to  
contribute to and influence policy making and discussion  
about the community and development of Western Australia’s 
social agenda. 

This occurs through informal relationships, as well as  
through formal membership of committees and forums. 
Members of the grants team have had membership of policy 
and advisory groups including the University of Western 
Australia’s Centre for Social Impact; Giving West; Community 
Services Leadership Group; WA Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry Social Policy Group; Taxi Industry Board Multipurpose 
Taxi Review Committee; State Government grants and funding 
panels; Problem Gambling Joint Officers group; and the 
Homelessness Strategy Officers group. 

  When Edith Cowan University contacted Grants Manager  
Jo Wilkie, seeking support for a research grant into  
Huntington’s Disease, she put the researcher in touch  
with Huntington’s WA and a host of other community  
organisations that would benefit from the research.

  With her guidance the groups formed a committee who 
applied for the grant through Huntington’s WA. Brokering  
this partnership means the resulting research is now vested  
in those in the community who have the strongest interest  
in the findings, rather than any single organisation.

  Over the past 18 months the program, which involves  
targeted training and exercise and cognitive programs, 
has achieved remarkable results. Significant reductions in 
psychoses, depression and falls have been recorded,  
which are the main reasons that Huntington’s patients  
are hospitalised. 

  The program has achieved international recognition 
for demonstrating that the quality of life for those with 
Huntington’s can be improved and the deterioration in 
functioning, which is part of this illness, can be slowed. 

  This program is now being used more broadly, with equally 
positive outcomes, for other neurological conditions which 
formerly were also regarded as giving patients limited hope 
for improvement.

Huntington’s WA.

Clients at Brightwater Oats Street

Beneficiaries
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Our fruitful partnerships 
As a respected business and significant contributor to the 
development of the community in the broadest sense of the 
word, we have many relationships across the breadth of Western 
Australian life. We believe we have a responsibility to use these 
connections to bring together organisations and people who 
might ordinarily not work with each other but who together can 
find creative solutions to complex issues and  
share opportunities. 

  The new Western Australian Ballet Centre in Maylands  
was made possible through a partnership between Local  
and State Governments, major corporations, the building 
industry and private donors. Lotterywest played a key role in 
linking the City of Bayswater and West Australian Ballet  
to work together.

  The West Australian Ballet moved their headquarters to a 
beautiful heritage-listed art deco building in Maylands when 
Lotterywest provided a $7 million grant to the City  
of Bayswater. While that grant was used to support the 
construction of a new community centre in Maylands – 
‘The Rise’ – the grant actually allowed the City to direct its 
resources towards purchase of the heritage building which 
is now home to the West Australian Ballet. Lotterywest 
continued to work with the City of Bayswater and the West 
Australian Ballet during the project negotiations.

Encouraging others
When working with community organisations, particularly 
on large or complex projects, it is usual to not only help the 
grant applicant identify other sources of support (either as an 
alternative to Lotterywest or in addition to our support) but also 
assist them to gain access to additional sources of financial or 
other support. 

Sometimes Lotterywest will take a decision in principle to 
support a project on the condition that other funds are raised. 
Many organisations value this approach as it helps them in their 
application to other potential supporters. 

This may occur across government, business or philanthropic 
organisations. This advocacy can take the form of active 
leadership and engagement, either for a specific project or for a 
wider social issue or policy level. 

Dancers rehearse at the West Australian Ballet  
Centre in Maylands.

  Bunbury is one of the fastest growing regional centres in 
Australia. As a consequence, local not-for-profit service 
providers felt the financial pressure of operating from  
offices centrally located for client convenience. In response, 
Lotterywest noted a number of enquiries from other 
organisations in the region seeking assistance for more 
affordable accommodation or larger premises.

  Lotterywest made a grant which supported more extensive 
studies into accommodation problems and helped develop 
partnerships with the City of Bunbury, State Government, 
private sector, community sector and Lotterywest to  
respond to the City’s infrastructure needs. 

  A more recent grant will allow a detailed feasibility study  
and architectural planning for two proposed accommodation 
sites in Bunbury.

identifying gaps and responding 
In many cases Lotterywest has noted emerging community trends 
and gone on to research and test those observations. This has 
helped to identify new ways to respond within our own grants 
approach, or in engaging with others to respond. 

Our contribution to the recent establishment of Giving West, 
an organisation set up to support a culture of giving in WA, 
helped engage with and encourage others interested in building 
philanthropy locally.

A more recent initiative was our support for Philanthropy Australia, 
a Melbourne based national organisation established as a resource 
for the philanthropic sector, for a special WA edition of their 
journal Australian Philanthropy. 

This publication contained articles about this State’s growing 
number of philanthropists and about the corporate sectors 
interest in creative approaches that contribute to the community. 
Lotterywest support for this publication was intended to highlight 
the work of some of our leading philanthropists and corporations, 
and by so doing encourage others.

Across Australia, community leaders are not only looking at the 
contribution of philanthropy to building our social and community 
wellbeing, but are exploring other forms of social financing, 
following trends from overseas and considering these within a 
local context. 

In many cases  
Lotterywest has noted 
emerging community 
trends and gone on to 

research and test those 
observations.

Loretta from Business Operations.

Beneficiaries
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One of these is ‘Social Impact Bonds’, recently trialled 
successfully in the UK. This approach involves a capital 
investment model for government, private investors and not-
for-profit organisations to tackle some of the community’s most 
vexing issues. Lotterywest has encouraged exploration of this 
new approach.

  Interest in Social Impact Bonds was growing in Western 
Australia, so when Lotterywest was approached about how  
the concept might work in WA, we were able to bring 
together a number of key parties who we knew had a keen 
interest in the issue. None of the projects that have been set 
up to test the concept have yet reached their conclusion,  
so the first order of business was to establish the applicability 
of the bonds in WA’s current context. 

  This needed to take into account the unique 
environment in WA, rather than simply transplant 
examples and use discoveries from elsewhere.
 A grant was provided in late 2011 to the Centre for Social 
Impact at the University of Western Australia, with the  
Centre bringing together a reference group of all key 
stakeholders to ensure the inclusion of those voices that 
needed to be heard.

  The final report is due in the last quarter of 2012 and will 
provide an objective, evidence base to inform if and how 
Social Impact Bonds might best make a contribution to the 
community of Western Australia. 

Another example of identifying a need and seeking a response 
has been our work with arts and cultural organisations to 
increase participation by those who for various reasons find it 
difficult to attend performances and participate in activities.

Our approach has included allocating funds to make 
performances accessible to a wider range of people. Examples 
are telecasting to remote communities and arranging additional 
services for those with special needs such as overcoming 
physical disability. We supported free events and hosted 
retailers and representatives of community organisations at arts 
and cultural events. 

Beneficiaries

New Autism building a centre 
for hope and support 

Autism is a complex, life-long 
developmental disability where 
approximately one in every  
160 children in Australia is 
diagnosed with an Autism 
Spectrum Disorder.

The Autism Association of Western 
Australia is the nation’s only 
specialist Autism organisation 
providing services to meet the needs 
of people with Autism from early 
childhood into adulthood.

With WA’s growing population, 
and Autism diagnosis on the rise, 
demand for the Association’s 
services has increased dramatically. 
A $4 million grant towards 
construction of a state of the art 
Early Intervention Centre means 
the Association can help more than 
400 pre-school children transition to 
school life. 

“Our clients love the new  
building and are so happy that this 
is where today’s families of newly 
diagnosed children will have their 
first experience of support,” said  
the Association’s CEO,  
Joan McKenna-Kerr.

“The most thrilling responses to 
the new building are written on the 
faces of the children as they go into 
the early intervention centre each 
morning. They can’t  
wait to get through  
the door,”  
says Joan.

The Autism Association of  
Western Australia.
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  In November this year Black Swan State Theatre Company 
will broadcast their production of ‘Managing Carmen’. A 
Lotterywest Grant will mean that the production can be 
broadcast to eight regional theatres, three metropolitan 
outdoor screens and a network of 109 community resource 
centres State wide.

  It follows the successful broadcast of the first production 
at the new State Theatre last year, ‘A Midsummer Night’s 
Dream’, the first ever live theatre broadcast on outdoor 
screens in Australia of such a production to audiences in 
regional WA. 

  A grant to the Community Legal Centres Association WA will 
support the most important organisational building exercise 
undertaken by the Association. The grant will enable a review 
of its strategic plan, mentoring and support for change 
management so the Association can achieve its goal of being 
a leader in law reform and social justice. The 28 community 
legal centres in WA have enthusiastically backed the project 
that will also see their peak body achieve self-sustainability. 

Encouraging research
From an initial focus in the early 1990s on medical research, we 
have expanded our approach over the years and now support all 
types of research including a broad approach to social research. 

Lotterywest has been recognised nationally in the research 
sector for supporting projects only where they will demonstrably 
inform policy and practice. Those responsible for practice must 
be active participants in the research activity and be committed 
to using the findings to influence their practice.

  In 2010 Lotterywest supported a $948,323 grant, to be  
paid over three years, to The Rural Clinic School. This was 
for a three year Western Desert Kimberley Health Project 
(WDKHP) aimed at reducing kidney disease in ten  
Indigenous communities. 

 
  The grant supported the community development  

component of the project where specialists collaborate  
with communities to map issues, then design and  
implement solutions.

  Benefits are already being realised. Artwork and digital 
animation are being used to engage communities with 
education programs combining medical knowledge and 
artistic skills. 

  Apart from the long term aim to reduce kidney disease 
by 20% in these communities, substantial benefits will be 
gained beyond the project period, such as safe drinking 
water, providing fresh fruit and vegetables, and embracing 
traditional hunting and food gathering.

Encouraging ‘Big ideas’ 
Lotterywest has always had a strong reputation for giving grants 
for physical infrastructure and other capital needs, but is possibly 
less recognised for supporting a range of projects for research or 
trialling innovative solutions to social issues. 

Many of these have been for major projects seeking to address 
major social or health issues, as well as other projects that 
significantly add to the social landscape which can be enjoyed 
by all Western Australians. 

Over the years we have referred to these sorts of projects as 
Special Initiatives or Significant State Projects. Now we simply 
call these initiatives what they are – Big Ideas – and encourage 
organisations to come to us with their Big Idea. 

  In 2011 Perth attracted international attention while  
hosting the Commonwealth Heads of Government  
Meeting (CHOGM). Lotterywest played an important part in 
bringing this event to the community through a grant to the 
Western Australian Council of Social Service (WACOSS). 

  The grant allowed rural, remote and disadvantaged  
delegates from WA to attend the ‘People’s Forum’ – a  
chance for conversation with Government Ministers on  
priority issues in the Commonwealth. 

  A grant to the University of Western Australia (Perth 
International Arts Festival) also enabled the staging of 
the ‘People’s Festival’ – a diverse and colourful program  
with a focus on free family activities which also showcased 
Perth to the 4,000 CHOGM visitors and delegates. 

improving practice
Many not-for-profit organisations do not have the capacity to 
plan as effectively as they would wish, to improve governance 
standards or respond effectively to major business challenges. 

Their funding sources do not necessarily extend to supporting 
the capacity building of the sector. Our grants can help such 
organisations.

Beneficiaries

Black Swan State Theatre Company.

Irena from Strategy and Planning.
 

Lotterywest has always 
had a strong reputation for 
giving grants for physical 
infrastructure and other 

capital needs, but is 
possibly less recognised 
for supporting a range of 
projects for research or 

trialling innovative solutions 
to social issues. 
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Best people, best systems, best practice – most impact?
Next year will bring more learning and growth for the grants 
team at Lotterywest. 

The 2011/12 financial year was a period when a number of 
significant projects came to realisation and combined to build 
a platform for our grant making and community development 
activity, and their improvement. 

Over the last five years we have been working on a project 
for a new grants management system to replace our in house 
customised system. This new system supports our end-to-
end grant making from enquiry and the receipt, assessment, 
recommendation and approval of applications, all the way 
through to payment, grant acknowledgment and acquittal. 

With the priorities of creating a system based on the new 
Lotterywest technology platform (SAP), and one that would 
better support our customers and business, we streamlined 
our business processes where possible and responded to 
customer feedback. 

One important outcome of the project was the creation 
of online application forms connected to our grants 
management system. This reduced the material required from 
organisations who apply regularly for Lotterywest Grants.

As a result we no longer require basic supporting documents 
such as an organisation’s constitution every time it submits 
an application. The system we have used for this new grants 
platform is one of the few of its kind in the world. The team 
were pleased to design a tool that would support our grant 
making, including our extensive relationships and grant history 
with customers, and a shift from paper files to electronic 
records. 

We have been working through the inevitable difficulties 
experienced with such a major change, including delays 
in processing some applications. Further work in the new 
financial year will fine-tune the system, which will allow a 
return to our previous grant turnaround targets.

The new grants system meant that a review of the structure of 
the grants team was necessary, to create teams to work within 
the new processes the system requires. 

Supporting Health  
and Hospitals
Keeping Western Australians healthy
This year Lotterywest funding of  
$112.4 million helped contribute towards 
high quality health care for more than  
2.3 million Western Australians across an 
area of 2.5 million square kilometres.

Made up of 40,000 people, WA Health 
operates through a network of hospitals and 
health services across metropolitan, rural and 
remote areas of Western Australia.

In the past 12 months WA Health has 
managed approximately:
• 960,000 emergency department visits
• 81,000 elective surgery procedures 
• 15,000 births
• 103,000 screenings for breast cancer 
• 150,000 school dental examinations. 

Western Australian hospitals are performing 
unprecedented numbers of elective surgery 
procedures, while also dealing with a 
9% increase in emergency department 
attendances.

All Lotterywest funds are shared across the 
health system, allocated directly to support 
delivery of services through hospitals, health 
services and programs. 

To put Lotterywest’s funding in context, the 
2011/12 contribution equates to the cost of 
providing approximately:
• 4,000 hip replacements
• 15,000 natural births
•  180,000 Emergency Department 

attendances at metropolitan hospitals
•  operating costs for a metropolitan 

secondary hospital (such as Osborne 
Park) as well as a smaller hospital (like 
Kalamanda), or the full cost of a regional 
hospital (such as Albany)

Supporting Western Australian health.

Looking after children
In 2011/12 a free whooping cough 
vaccination program for parents of babies 
was extended for the third time. Free 
child health checks and school-based 
services were also boosted to support a 
renewed focus on early childhood health 
care. 

A campaign to raise awareness of after-
hours general practitioner (GP) services 
was launched. It included an interactive 
GP After Hours iPhone application.

Care for people in isolated communities
A number of innovative mobile health 
services were introduced in 2011/12 
to bring care to people isolated by 
distance, economic and/or social 
disadvantage. Some of those introduced 
include the Peel Mobile Health Service, 
which regularly visits Pinjarra, Waroona, 
Boddington, Serpentine and Jarrahdale; 

and the Moorditj Djena mobile foot care 
and diabetes education service, which 
operates across the north and south 
metropolitan regions to reach Aboriginal 
people with diabetes and other chronic 
conditions.

Healthy partnerships 
Partnerships are critical to achieving 
healthy outcomes for Western 
Australians. In 2011/12 Lotterywest 
contributed to a range of WA Health 
joint initiatives developed to benefit 
metropolitan and regional WA, 
including medical imaging services for 
Albany Health Campus, the Northeast 
Metropolitan Community Drug Service 
and public health initiatives.

Beneficiaries



Grants expenditure  
by expense type

Peter from Strategy and Planning.
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The three areas are:
•  Qualitative information gathering – collecting and analysing 

stories of change from Lotterywest stakeholders to assess the 
impact of Lotterywest. This will include a stakeholder survey.

•  Data analysis – analysis of our extensive data to develop a 
quantitative understanding of the Lotterywest grant making 
program – how we have used our funds over time, for what 
purposes and for which localities, and what this tells us about 
changing community needs.

•  Value for effort – developing a clear picture of the resources 
required to deliver the community benefit provided and 
required by Lotterywest.

This project is expected to be completed by the end of March 
2013 to enable outcomes to be considered and incorporated 
into the next Lotterywest Strategic Plan.

Lotterywest Direct Grants in 2012
The range of grants offered by Lotterywest extends from 
relatively small grants for simple capital needs (such as basic 
office equipment and furniture, toys and resources for toy 
libraries, playgroups and for other children’s services) to much 
larger grants for buildings, information technology, community 
playgrounds, emergency relief and the costs associated with 
sophisticated research projects. 

Lotterywest Grants remain a valuable resource both financially 
and in the added value we offer for the not-for-profit sector in 
WA. We are often told that without this support, service delivery 
would not be as effective and important projects would simply 
not be undertaken. 

Support towards addressing the accommodation needs of 
the sector has been a key element of Lotterywest’s grants for 
many years. This grant expenditure continues to be the largest 
expense category, often accounting for 40% of our total grants 
and this year has been no exception. 

The accommodation needs of the not-for-profit sector, and the 
way we and others can most effectively work to find creative 
responses to those needs, will be the subject of a major project 
in the coming year.

This was achieved through a project which sought to: 
•  Ensure our capacity to use the new system effectively – i.e 

skills and competency, as well as the staff numbers needed 
to work responsively, flexibly and creatively in grant making, 
community development and leadership activity. 

•  Support the new SAP grant making technology and business 
processes, and realise the benefits it offers.

•  Establish the Grants and Community Development section 
in Lotterywest as a contemporary business and workplace 
to integrate with other areas of the organisation, and 
which provides for professional development and career 
progression for the staff in the grants team. 

A comprehensive review process was undertaken, which 
included staff and stakeholder consultation and business 
process analysis. Our grants team is now structured into three 
business streams – Customer Service, Grants Management & 
Development, and Strategic Development and Marketing – 
reflecting our priorities and business processes. 

The completion of the grants system project and the 
restructure of the grants team has now allowed resources to be 
redirected to a project that has been on our agenda for some 
time – to review our work as well as analyse and understand 
more objectively the value we add to the community. Called 
the ‘Social Impact Project’, it aims to identify ways we can 
improve, learn and extend our work with the WA community. 

Specific objectives are to understand:
•  The impact and value of Lotterywest activities from a 

stakeholder perspective.
•  Who is impacted and for whom is value created. For 

example, is it grant beneficiary organisations, their staff 
and those who benefit from our grants, partners and 
stakeholders?

•  How Lotterywest might best adapt to maximise our impact, 
using available resources.

Elements of the Social Impact Project will also be used to 
engage staff across Lotterywest. The project will comprise 
three discrete areas which together will build the overall 
picture and ultimately help us answer two simple questions – 
what impact are we having on the community and how can  
we do it better? 

Lotterywest Grants 
remain a valuable 

resource both financially 
and in the added value 

we offer for the  
not-for-profit sector  

in WA.

Beneficiaries

 Hospitals Sport Arts Direct % 
    Grants 

2008 96,722 12,090 12,090 84,577 
2009 107,079 13,385 13,385 99,939 18.2%
2010 103,818 12,977 12,977 105,031 5.1%
2011 101,013 12,627 12,627 112,487 7.1%
2012 112,375 14,047 14,047 116,508 3.6%
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Disability Equipment Grants Program:
This program is managed by the Independent Living Centre of 
WA. The program makes grants to individuals with permanent 
disabilities for equipment that will assist them to be as 
independent as their disability permits and to access and enjoy 
their community. The Advisory Group assists with considering 
priorities and policies for support. 
•  Ms Nicki Longmire
 Project Manager, Independent Living Centre WA
• Mr Chris Whitelock
 Director Corporate Services, Association for the  
 Blind of WA
• Mr Greg Madson
 President, Blind Citizens Association of WA
• Ms Tracey Delamare
 Manager, Rocky Bay Inc
• Ms Deanne Coleman
 Equipment Coordinator, Therapy Focus Inc
• Ms Tess Foote
  Service Contract Development Officer, Disability Services 

Commission 
• Ms Karen Miller
  Chief Executive Officer, Wheatbelt Individual and Family 

Services Association
• Ms Robyn Loxley
  Senior Occupational Therapist, MS Society of Western 

Australia (Inc.)
• Mr Peter McDonnell
 Consumer Representative

Community histories
Our support for the creating of community histories is  
aided by these specialists in the recording and sharing of  
past experiences of a place, organisation, or event or  
community of people.
• Mr Steve Howell
 Senior Subject Specialist, J.S. Battye Library
• Dr Bobbie Oliver
 Senior Lecturer, Curtin University
• Ms Julie Zuvela
  Local History Librarian, Cottesloe-Peppermint  

Grove-Mosman Park Library

Grants Advisory Committees
Lotterywest calls on specialist groups for valuable advice  
in particular areas where expert knowledge is important  
in our grant decision making. 

Cultural Heritage Interpretation 
This group is convened by Museums Australia to provide specialist 
advice on how our cultural heritage can be best interpreted to the 
community in interesting and accessible ways.
• Mr Stephen Anstey 
 Curator of History, WA Museum (Chair)
• Ms Carol Littlefair 
 Curator, York Residency Museum
• Ms Val Humphrey 
 Curator, Whiteman Park
• Ms Anne Brake 
 Manager of Interpretation, National Trust of Australia (WA)
• Mr Luke Donnegan 
 Curator, Fremantle Prison
• Mr Robert Mitchell 
 Curator, Army Museum
• Ms Helen Munt 
 Regional Advisor, Office of Heritage
• Ms Catherine Czerw
 Independent Arts Curator
• Ms Christine Young 
 Director Community Development, City of Melville

Trails 
Through a partnership with the Department for Sport and 
Recreation, this advisory group assists in the consideration of 
grants for projects to develop trails. Trails are pathways created 
across the Western Australian landscape for active recreation and 
appreciation of our natural and cultural environment. 
• Ms Jennifer Riatti 
  Director Programs and Services, Department of Sport and 

Recreation
• Mr Geordie Thompson 
 Manager Recreation, Department of Sport and Recreation
• Mr Tom Tuffin 
 Administrator, Friends of the Cape to Cape Track
• Mr Thomas Perrigo 
 Chief Executive Officer, National Trust of Australia (WA)
• Mr Rod Annear 
 Manager Recreation, Interpretation and Community   
 Involvement, Department of Environment and Conservation
• Ms Linda Daniels 
 Executive Officer, Bibbulmun Track Foundation

 

These are voluntary  
advisory groups and  

we are extremely grateful  
for their willingness to  
help us and for their  
expertise and effort.
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Community Living and Participation Grants 
This program is managed by National Disability Services – WA 
and provides grants and support to West Australian individuals 
with permanent disabilities to participate in recreational and 
social activities and improve their quality of life. National 
Disability Services has established an advisory committee to 
assist them in managing this program. The committee is made 
up of the following people: 
• Ms Jacquie Thomson 
  General Manager, Grants and Community Development, 

Lotterywest
• Ms Teresa Smith 
  Program Manager, Grants and Community Development,   

Lotterywest
• Ms Helen Granville 
 Operations Manager, NDS WA
• Ms Barbara Oosterhuis
 Project Manager, CLPG, NDS WA
• Ms Mary-Ann Bath 
 President, People with Disabilities
• Mr Lee Ugle
 Individual with a disability
• Ms Nicki Longmire 
  Program Manager, Disability Equipment Grants Program, 

Independent Living Centre
• Ms Su-Hsien Lee
 Executive Officer, WA’s Individualised Services 
• Mr Paul Coates Chief Executive Officer 
 Carers WA
• Mr Paul Fleay 
 Chief Executive Officer, Inclusion WA 
• Ms Taryn Harvey
 Executive Officer, Disability Development Council
•  Ms Melissa Rudez
  Team Leader of Community Inclusion, Department of Sport 

and Recreation (previously represented by Ms Jill Bowman).

Chad from Business Operations.
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The work of the Lottery Operations section involves all aspects 
of product marketing and management, development and 
distribution, as well as service to customers and retailers. Our 
goal is to market lottery products responsibly as a light-hearted 
form of entertainment which will lead to optimal sales and in 
turn to optimal return to our beneficiaries. 

Product performance
This year sales were at a record high. The five Lotto style games 
make up 85.1% of our sales turnover. It is the performance of 
the Lotto product range which has led to the growth in sales. 
Our instant lottery product sales have seen only marginal growth 
this year.

The management and development of Lotto products is 
undertaken in partnership with our Australian Lottery industry 
partners (known as the ‘Bloc’). The sales improvements  
achieved this year are largely the result of game changes 
made nationally, though marketing improvements have also 
contributed to these results. 

Contributing factors in this year’s results were:

Saturday Lotto sales increased by 12.3% partly as a result of the 
changes to the game made in January 2011. At the same time a 
new sixth prize division was added to the game, the subscription 
price was increased by five cents a game and an additional 
Superdraw added to the offering. These changes were very 

positively received by most players, many of whom enjoyed  
the increased odds of winning a prize which was the effect of  
the additional prize division (doubling the number of winners 
each week).

Monday and Wednesday Lotto sales increased by 15.4%, due 
largely to similar game changes as were made to Saturday Lotto 
– a subscription price increase of ten cents a game in February 
2012, the addition of a new division and a guarantee of two 
Division 1 $1 million prizes in each game, if won. 

OZ Lotto sales increased by 27.5%. A subscription price rise 
of 10 cents a game was introduced in June 2011. The price 
rise, together with a jackpot run culminating in a $70 million 
prize offer in May 2012 following the past two years of very low 
jackpots, led to this year’s increase in sales. The $70 million offer 
was the second highest jackpot since the launch of the game 
in 1994 and in the last week of the jackpot alone $22.49 million 
worth of tickets were sold.

 Powerball sales were 1.9% up on last year. A subscription 
price increase of 10 cents a game was introduced in June 2011 
at the same time as the OZ Lotto price rise. The performance 
of Powerball has not been at the level we and the other Bloc 
members believe is possible for this game. For some time  
the game has been under careful review, with the aim of 
introducing changes in the new year to make it more attractive 
to our players.

Lottery Operations

Play Responsibly

Lottery Operations Outcome

‘Develop and manage our 
business to achieve excellent 

business performance, 
including meeting our sales 

targets in a responsible 
manner.’

Michelle and Keith Ballard from  
Ballard’s Lottery Centre & News.
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Participation in Lotto games remains relatively stable. This year 
for Saturday Lotto, the average number of equivalent games 
played per draw was consistent with last year for base weeks but 
up 10% for Superdraws and 4.8% for the Megadraw:

 Games played per Saturday  
 Lotto draw

  Base Week 8 million  
  (last year 8 million)

  Superdraw 21 million  
  (last year 19 million)

  Megadraw 43 million  
  (last year 41 million)

A similar pattern was evident for most of our other games. 
Powerball was down on equivalent games for both base and 
jackpot weeks. Due to the high level of jackpot activity for  
OZ Lotto there was a significant increase in equivalent games. 
The May OZ Lotto $70 million draw generated a total of  
18.75 million equivalent games.

Instant Lotteries, branded as Scratch’n’Win, contribute 13% 
of total Lotterywest sales. Scratch’n’Win is a fun product with 
a range of styles and games to suit the varying tastes of our 
consumers. It is primarily an impulse purchase depending very 
much on point of purchase marketing. Lotto, by contrast, tends 
to be a far more planned purchase.

To remain attractive to players, instant lotteries need to be 
changed regularly with constant ‘refreshing’ of the standard 
and favourite styles in the product range, together with regular 
launches of new product ranges. 

Sales for all Scratch’n’Win games in 2011/12 totalled  
$100 million, which is $1.23 million (or 1.2%), more than in 
2010/11.
 
Forty-three different games were launched this year. These 
included the introduction of a $20 ticket as a permanent fixture 
and the launch of the first $10 Wordplay tickets. Both these 
products were well received by customers. 

These new games made a significant contribution of $14.8 million 
($20 ticket generated $10.9 million and $10 Wordplay generated 
$3.9 million) to the growth in instant ticket sales for 2011/12. 

In 2010 Lotterywest entered into a new contract with a primary 
supplier of instant lotteries. The terms were such that we are also 
able to negotiate individual contracts with suppliers able to offer 
products different from those of our primary supplier. 

This enables us to source the latest industry innovations from any  
of the three suppliers with whom we now do business, and to 
launch the best possible range of games for players and retailers. 
This has included licensed products such as ‘Deal or No Deal’, 
which has proved highly successful, selling out in 8 weeks versus  
a budgeted time of 11 weeks.

Minor products – Cash 3, Soccer Pools and Super66 
As well as Lotto products and instant lotteries, Lotterywest offers 
three minor products which contribute approximately 2% of our 
sales turnover. These are Soccer Pools and Super66, which are  
Bloc products, and Cash 3, a Lotterywest numbers game.
 
Sales for Soccer Pools were marginally down on last year, though 
sales for Super66 and Cash 3 remain steady. These games receive 
only limited marketing support and no change is planned for  
them in the future.

Players 
In the past year, annual per capita sales (of those aged 16 and  
over) increased from $375.71 to $421.75 or 12.3%. This can be 
attributed to the recent price changes introduced for some of our 
games and to the increased high level jackpot activity with the  
OZ Lotto $70M draw in May. 

  This increase in contribution from our players is 
demonstrated in some of the results of the $70M 
OZ Lotto draw:

  Average cost per ticket was $22.37  
(up 74.9% on the base week average of $12.79 in 2011/12)

  Total sales for this Draw were $22.5 million  
(compared to the base week average of $1.6 million)

  Total winnings for this Draw were $6.9 million  
(compared to the base week average of $351,000)

  Return to the community for this Draw was $7.6 million 
(compared to the base week average of $528,000)

This year sales were  
at a record high. 

The five Lotto-style  
games make up more  

than 85% of our  
sales turnover.

Lottery Operations

Chris from Business  
Operations.
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Syndicates through the terminal 
Sharing a large value entry to games with other players has  
always been popular with WA Lotto players. 

In the past the management of syndicates has been a manual 
process whereby the retailer, or syndicate organiser in the case of 
work or family groups, has purchased a high value entry into the 
game and divided the costs between the syndicate members. 

The retailer or syndicate organiser was responsible for holding  
the ticket, dividing the costs, maintaining the syndicate records  
and distributing any prizes. As a manual system it inevitably  
carried the risk of error if not managed carefully. 

The launch of syndicates through the terminal meant that  
a live ticket, which can be checked and redeemed at any  
retail outlet for each syndicate member, not only improved  
the service for both retailers and players but also minimised  
the risk of error. Manual syndicates were completely phased  
out from July 2012.

Later in calendar year 2012 as a result of a recent amendment to 
the Lotteries Commission Act, Lotterywest will have the authority 
to set up syndicates from head office and offer them to the retail 
network to sell to customers. This aims to reduce the risk of 
smaller retailers being left with unsold shares in the syndicate, 
and will give customers a broader choice of product entries. 

Player registration Service
This service gives registered players the assurance that even 
if they lose their ticket any prizes will be paid. Registrations 
continue to grow, with over 164,000 people joining this 
past year. In the year ahead we plan a marketing strategy to 
encourage further participation in this service. 

Direct marketing
This year we developed a direct email campaign for our Player 
Registration Service and Play Online players. This tells them 
about the weekly offerings for each game and highlights 
upcoming special events like Jackpots and Superdraws.

Scratch’n’Win players have benefited from the opportunity to 
trial online simulations of the latest instant tickets. This has been 
delivered via links on Lotterywest’s web pages. 

Brand marketing communications
‘Give luck a chance’ is the new message supporting our brand 
marketing communications for Lotto. The message and the 
brand campaign material together remind us of the role and 
relevance of luck in our day-to-day lives.

Earlier this year, Lotterywest undertook research to update our 
understanding of what Western Australians think about Lotto. 
From this it was clear that people’s lives are getting busier and 
although they still like to play, they often just don’t get around 
to buying their Lotto tickets. 

So we needed to find new ways to encourage West Australians 
to reconnect with the idea of playing Lotto, and to make it a 
part of their every day routine. ‘Give luck a chance’ is our new 
way of making that connection, using simple, fun and surprising 
messages encouraging people to try new things and ‘let luck 
back into their lives’. 

To lead the campaign on TV we draw on the ‘story of life’;  
of being born, growing up, taking chances, and ‘giving it a go’. 
The main TV advertisement reflects on how luck plays a big part 
in everyone’s life. 

Lottery Operations
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Monday and  
Wednesday Lotto
14 Division 1 winners shared a  
combined total of $15 million

OZ Lotto
3 Division 1 winners claimed  
$32.5 million

Powerball
1 Division 1 winner collected  
$6 million

Super 66
3 Division 1 winners shared in  
$448,390

Soccer Pools
2 Division 1 winners claimed  
$674,944

Here are some of our memorable 
winners’ stories over the year:

Lotto luck strikes WA couple not once, but twice
A man from Perth’s southern suburbs became $5 million richer 
after picking up the entire Division 1 jackpot from an OZ Lotto 
draw in May. When claiming his big prize, he explained how his 
partner had won a Division 1 Lotto prize six years ago.
The man purchased his winning ticket with $14.40 worth of 
spare change from his back pocket. “I’ll be continuing my  
hobby of re-building old cars, but maybe in a bigger shed  
now,” he said.

Helping family and round the world trip for Pinjarra  
Lotto winners
A married couple from Pinjarra said their $707,389 Division 1 
winning ticket, from a Saturday Lotto draw in April, had been 
sitting in the man’s wallet almost forgotten. They said they 
were prompted to check the ticket after reading about the ‘big’ 
win in their local newspaper. ‘It’s us’ were the first words that I 
screamed once I realised we had the winning ticket. We were 
just over the moon,” the man said. Plans for the couple included 
sharing the prize with their children, grandchildren and great-
grandchildren, as well as travelling Australia and then the world.

$1.4 million Burswood winners remember numbers from  
first Lotto draw
“Persistence is the key!” said a Burswood couple who collected 
a $1.4 million Saturday Lotto prize in March. The happy and 
hardworking couple in their 70s, who have clocked over 50 years 
of marriage together, couldn’t quite believe their luck when they 
struck Lotto luck. After purchasing their ticket and reciting the 
numbers they had selected from Western Australia’s first Lotto 
draw in 1979, their persistence and hard work paid off when 
they finally collected their $1.4 million prize. They planned a 
‘change in direction’, rather than retirement, but claimed life  
was already pretty good!

Triple treat after WA delivers three Superdraw winners 
The $20 million February Saturday Lotto Superdraw saw three 
Western Australian winners pick up a Division 1 prize worth $1.1 
million. One of these was a Maddington man who said the ticket 
was the third he’d ever bought. On the Lotto dream list for him 
was a brand new car with all the trimmings including leather 
seats and a sunroof. A cruise around the world and a trip to New 
Zealand were also plans he could now make a reality. “It’s first 
class all the way from here on in,” he said.

WA country couple first to collect Division 1 Lotto in 2012
Grandparents from Western Australia’s Goldfields-Esperance 
region were the State’s first local Lotto winners to pick up a 
Division 1 prize in 2012. The couple, who usually play their own 
numbers, said it was the first time they had tried their luck on a 
Slikpik ticket which delivered them a $838,482 Lotto prize.
On the top of the country couple’s spending list was sharing 
some of their prize with their children and grandchildren.
Paying off the mortgage and buying a new boat were also on 
the couple’s dream Lotto list.

Ten Western Australians win New Year’s Eve Megadraw
Western Australia certainly collected its lion’s share of winners 
in the $31 million Megadraw held on New Year’s Eve, after ten 
local Lotto players picked up Division 1 prizes worth $968,750 
each. A common theme running among these winners was 
‘wedding fever’, with two of the winners using the prize money 
to hold an extra special wedding day. The Peel region proved to 
be a Lotto hot spot, with three of the Megadraw winners coming 
from there. Among the Peel winners was a Kwinana family who 
planned on clearing debt and buying their Dad an electric 
wheelchair to make life more comfortable.

Heathridge couple collect $20 million OZ Lotto prize... 
and head home to mow the lawn!
A Heathridge couple wasted no time coming forward to 
collect their $20 million OZ Lotto fortune in November 2011. 
The couple were the only winners from around the nation and 
managed to pick up the entire Division 1 prize pool. They 
said the first thing they would do with their multi-million dollar 
fortune was pay off their children’s mortgages and treat their 
grandchildren to a holiday. Although they initially planned to 
keep working, they said the $20 million win would pave the way 
forward for a comfortable and enjoyable retirement.

Mandurah man collects million dollar Lotto win after being  
made redundant
An unemployed Mandurah man came forward to claim his 
$1,022,833 Division 1 Saturday Lotto prize in October 2011.
The man in his 50s said the million dollar win could not have 
come at a better time. He said it had been a tough financial time 
after losing his home during the economic downturn a few years 
ago and then being made redundant only a few months ago.

Lottery Operations
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Our players and winners

During the year  
99 Western Australians  

shared in Division 1  
prizes worth  

$124.6 million.

Saturday Lotto 
76 Division 1 winners shared a  
combined total of $70 million

Pina from the Executive Team.
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Decisions about where to locate new Lotterywest outlets are 
based on strict commercial criteria, except in cases where 
outlets meet community service criteria. This applies only to 
small towns more than 120km from the Perth CBD, and more 
than 30km from the nearest Lotterywest outlet, and which have a 
minimum population of 450. 

All other new outlets are established according to an annual 
plan which takes into account population and demographic 
shifts. New shopping centres are identified in locations where 
analysis demonstrates that a commercial benefit to Lotterywest 
– and hence to our beneficiaries – would be achieved by having 
an outlet in that location.

This annual plan is approved by the Board and is publicly 
available to interested parties. We place advertisements in the 
local newspaper inviting expressions of interest for establishing 
an outlet. Applicants must be able to demonstrate they  
have a lease on a business which is suitable for Lotterywest 
products.

All potential retailers, including both those purchasing  
existing businesses which hold a Lotterywest licence  
as well those applying for a new licence, must submit  
an application with a detailed business plan.

Applicants are then interviewed by senior Lotterywest  
staff. The requirement to submit a business plan and  
have an interview is for two main purposes. Firstly  
it ensures that the applicants have undertaken  
their own due diligence on the business they  
propose to purchase and on the contract they  
will enter into with Lotterywest, determining for  
themselves if this business opportunity is suitable  
for them. It also allows us to determine if the  
applicant has the skills and experience to succeed  
as a Lotterywest representative in the same way 
we enter into any contract with a supplier.

This year five new Lotterywest licences were established – two in 
the metropolitan area and three in regional Western Australia. 

Thirty-five existing businesses changed hands, compared with 
42 last year. Retail conditions appear to be contributing to this 
reduction in the number of businesses sold. By contrast there 
has been an increase in the number of retailers seeking to 
relocate their business. 

A range of shorter advertisements drawn from the longer 
story remind us to be open to luck, and the chance for good, 
surprising lucky things to happen. 

The first phase launch of our new brand marketing campaign 
happened in May and will continue in a number of ‘bursts’ until 
the end of this year. Different elements of the campaign will run 
in sequence with our event marketing for Superdraws, OZ Lotto 
and Powerball jackpots as well as new ‘Scratchies’ during that 
time. 

In addition to TV and other traditional media we’re trying some 
new initiatives. The ‘Give luck a chance’ message will also 
appear on billboards, buses and trains as well as public spaces 
like the Cultural Centre in Perth.
 
To support the launch and future development of our new 
Lotto brand marketing, we have a range of digital marketing 
campaigns which will be rolled out over the next year.

For the initial launch we drew on our research which found that 
people relate the time they met their life partner as a moment 
of good luck. The first campaign, called ‘1 in 7 billion’, invites 
people to share their love stories, of how they had the good 

luck to meet their partner. They will also be able to share these 
with their family and friends using social media. Our digital 
campaigns also form part of our broader organisational social 
media strategy and will be developed during the next year to 
expand our players’ connection with our brands through this 
very popular medium.

Early response to our new brand marketing approach has been 
generally very positive, with a very small number of people 
telling us that these messages are not presented in the way 
they would expect from us. We will be undertaking some 
further research later this year which will indicate changes in 
attitude and response to our brands since the launch of the new 
campaign.

Over the next year we will be extending our new product 
marketing approach to our other games, to support game 
events, and to promote different ways to play our games. We 
will also be refreshing all of the branding and point of sale 
messaging at our retail outlets and online. 

Distribution 

retail Channel
Lotterywest now has two distribution channels – the traditional 
retail channel through which the vast majority of the products 
are sold, and an Internet channel introduced in February 2011.
The retail channel remains our primary focus as the source of 
98% of sales turnover. There are now 501 full-service outlets 
which sell all our products and a very small number (47 in total) 
licensed to sell only instant products. 

The full service network is comprised primarily of newsagencies, 
the traditional style of business where our products have been 
sold for many years. There are also a number of specialist lottery 
kiosks in major shopping centres and a small number located in 
pharmacies. In regional areas the Lotterywest outlet may be a 
general store or in a supermarket where that is the only suitable 
location for a Lotterywest outlet.

The establishment of instant only outlets was a Lotterywest 
policy in the early 1990s and was discontinued nearly 20 years 
ago. Over the years, the number of these outlets has decreased 
and they have been gradually phased out when the licensees 
choose to relinquish their licence. Instant only outlets are now 
currently responsible for only 1.75% of instant lottery ticket 
turnover.

Lottery Operations
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These applications for relocation of the licence appear to have 
been driven largely by the retailers’ needs to reduce operating 
expenses by moving to a location with lower rent, often to 
smaller premises.

 retailer Activity 2011/12 2010/11
 New Lotterywest Outlets 5 3
 Change of Ownership 35 42
 Relocations 15 3
 Voluntary Outlet Terminations 6 5

The overall retail climate is challenging for many types of 
businesses including those with Lotterywest licences. Increasing 
rents for newsagencies and kiosks, particularly in shopping 
centres, combined with general increased costs of running a 
businesses such as wages and power costs and the forthcoming 
changes to the WA trading laws, have made this a very 
challenging environment for many of our retailers.

Lotterywest retailers are paid a commission rate on all sales of 
lottery products which when fees are deducted averages 8.2%. 
This is the highest in Australia and at the top of the range paid 
anywhere in the world. 

Since 1997 with the various product improvements and 
price increases made in that time, Lotterywest’s overall gross 
sales increase has been 99% while the average net retailer 
commission across the network has increased 116%. 

As well as the commission paid directly on product sales 
we offer a range of other financial rewards for improved 
performance and for retail presentation standards as well as  
non-monetary recognition in the form of free training and 
invitations to networking and social occasions

We keep in touch with general retail trends and issues through a 
variety of sources of information, but one of the most important 
is through the Retailers’ Consultative Panel. 

retailers’ Consultative Panel
The Retailers’ Consultative Panel is a voluntary group comprising 
of representatives from the retail network with whom we meet 
six times a year. The panel includes retailers from different kinds 
of business including from regional Western Australia. 

It is through this panel that we receive feedback on a wide 
range of issues of importance to members of the retail network 
and to Lotterywest. We are very grateful for the time our panel 
members give us, in attending the meetings, participating in 
special purpose working groups and giving feedback in other 
ways between meetings.

Lottery Operations
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Members of Lotterywest’s Retailers’ Consultative Panel left to right (Wayne Martinovich, 
Glenn Cornish, William Yeung, Helen Murgatroyd, John Halligan and Robyn McDermott) with 
Workpower, an employment and community services organisation for people with disabilities 
and mental illness.
 
Panel members missing: Lea Kirwan and Troy Robertson
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whom we meet six 
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retail Licence Agreement
This year we reviewed the Retail Licence Agreement – the formal 
contractual arrangement between Lotterywest and the retail 
network. The previous agreement was a complex and lengthy 
document which has now been replaced with a simple and short 
contract, supplemented by a retail manual. 

The manual outlines policies and procedures as well as giving 
information required to run a business holding a Lotterywest 
licence. The manual can be easily updated if policies or 
procedures change.

These new agreements have been issued for 20 years with the 
option to review and renew every five years. 

The change to the policy and procedures associated with the 
agreement has simplified administrative work considerably for 
retailers and Lotterywest.

To date 489 of these new agreements have been renewed, 
which represents 99% of the network.

opportunity to meet grant recipients and to see the value of 
the contribution they help us make to the community. 

Two of the most popular annual social events are the Retailer 
Golf and Tennis Day held each year in November and the 
Family Fun Day at Adventure World for retailers, their families 
and staff held in late summer. 

Other events associated with organisations which have 
received Lotterywest grants to which retailers were invited this 
year included performances of the West Australian Symphony 
Orchestra (Symphony in the City), West Australian Opera 
(Opera in the Park), West Australian Ballet and the premiere of 
the hit Western Australian film Red Dog. Such events enable 
us to thank and acknowledge our retailers for their business 
support, as well as to support our funding beneficiaries such as 
ScreenWest, which contributed funding towards Red Dog.

As well as these social occasions, we seek to include 
representatives of our retailers at other events involving 
community organisations which Lotterywest supports. These 
may be cheque presentations by politicians or opening 
ceremonies for a new community facility. At some events, 
particularly in regional Western Australia, we may ask the local 
retailer to be our formal representative. 

These events reinforce for the grant recipients the message 
that their grants are possible only through the retailers’ work 
and players’ purchase of our products and it gives them a 
chance to show their appreciation for the work of the retailers. 
For their part, the retailers can see in a direct and personal 
way how they have contributed to their local communities. 
Feedback from retailers attending these events has been very 
positive.

As well as these kinds of relationship building activities, we 
assign to all retailers a Retailer Relationship Officer (RRO) who 
visits regularly. The RRO is responsible for helping the retailer 
develop the business. They bring sales reports and offer advice 
and assistance on where improvements can be made. The 
RRO is also responsible for encouraging retail presentation and 
customer service standards. 

Online Channel
Launched in February 2011, Lotterywest’s Play Online service 
offers a convenient option for players to participate in 
Lotterywest games, excluding Scratch’n’Win, via the Internet. 

retailer Training
A range of training and development services are offered to 
retailers with the objective of giving them and their staff the 
skills needed to achieve the best performance possible from 
their business, and to give their customers the highest standards 
of service. The training also gives the skills and knowledge 
to deal with the overall management of these complex small 
businesses. 

The initial five day training program for new retailers is 
compulsory, aiming to teach all aspects of management and 
promotion of Lotterywest products. The program also gives an 
overview of the Lottery business, including the environment 
in which we are operating, an understanding of our business 
strategy and our plans for the future.

A range of other training programs, catering specifically for the 
retailers’ staff, is offered during the year. Some of these include 
more targeted training, leading to a formal qualification, the 
Diploma of Retail Management.

These courses take place primarily at our retail training centre 
in Subiaco, though programs are sometimes offered in regional 
centres. The Subiaco facility was refurbished in the past year. 
Among the improvements was making the building wheelchair-
accessible.

As well as these training programs, Lotterywest offers 
development programs under the umbrella of ‘Lotteryworks’. 
This includes incentive programs offering financial and other 
rewards. This year a total of $164,000 was paid in additional 
rewards to retailers.

The fourth of the major annual professional development 
programs introduced in 2008, ‘Business Adventure’, was held in 
August 2011. This one-day conference-style event opened by 
the Premier, offers speakers on topics relevant to Lotterywest 
retailers, and was followed by an informal networking dinner. 
One of these events, again to be opened by the Premier, will be 
held in August 2012.

relationship building
It is important to us that we create opportunities for informal 
networking with our retailers and for them to meet other 
Lotterywest retailers. Some of these events are purely social 
and others include opportunities for retailers to attend events 
which have been supported with Lotterywest Grants, giving the 

While meeting customers’ expectations, the priority of Play 
Online is to ensure our ongoing commitment to high standards 
of responsible gaming and security. 

This includes a careful registration process which ensures that 
players meet age eligibility, the requirement to set up a Player’s 
Account (purchase of product by direct use of a credit card is not 
permitted), a weekly spend limit and a self-exclusion option.
 
During 2011/12, Play Online attracted an average of 
approximately 1300 registrations per month. During high-level 
jackpot and Superdraw weeks, Play Online registrations and 
sales increased, as evidenced during the week of the $70 million 
OZ Lotto jackpot, which resulted in a rise to 2,100 registrations.

With over 29,000 registered players, equivalent to over 1% 
of the WA adult population, total Play Online revenue during 
2011/12 amounted to $13.14 million (which represents 1.7% of 
total Lotterywest sales).

A player survey during the year indicated that Play Online 
appeals to a broad cross section of the market but with a 
skew towards younger males. The survey also highlighted the 
opportunity to enhance the service. These enhancements are 
currently being developed and will be implemented during 
2012/13. Incremental growth of this channel will also be 
boosted by Lotterywest’s presence in social media and with the 
introduction of mobile device access. 
 

L-R: Chris and Nicole from Business Operations.
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Game results
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Our People
and Organisational Development

Outcome: Ensure we have talented leadership and that our staff 
are equipped with the skills, knowledge and motivation to lead 
and manage our business to achieve business objectives. 

To succeed in every aspect of our business we need to  
have talented leaders at all levels and in all sections of 
Lotterywest. Our people need to have the skills, knowledge  
and motivation to lead and manage our business to achieve 
business objectives.

As with many organisations operating in the dynamic and highly 
competitive labour market in Western Australia, Lotterywest 
faces the challenge of attracting and retaining skilled staff and 
continuing to offer our people skills development. 

In early 2012 a comprehensive strategy for organisational 
development was launched, led by our newly appointed Senior 
Manager People and Organisational Development. 

One of the most important elements is the development of 
a high level of leadership and management practice within 
the group of managers who report directly to the General 
Managers. It is the members of this group who have the 
responsibility for managing operational teams within Lotterywest 
and who can have the greatest influence on staff engagement 
and achievement of business goals. It is this group who need to 
be prepared to step into other leadership roles when required 
and develop the skills of their own teams.

In early 2012 a 
comprehensive strategy  

for organisational 
development was  

launched.

The key elements of the organisational development plan are: 

Workforce Planning – this includes a in-depth approach which 
recognises the competitive environment for skilled staff in 
Western Australia, the changing demographic of our work force, 
including many nearing retirement age and the need to plan for 
the kind of resources needed for the business in the future.

The plan includes consideration of how to reduce the risk of loss 
of critical skills and corporate knowledge as senior staff in key 
positions move out of the workforce into retirement, or in the 
case of a different staff demographic when periods of extended 
parental leave is taken. It includes a more strategic approach 
to succession planning, improving documentation of corporate 
knowledge and offering flexible working options such as phased 
retirement and job share arrangements. 

Recruitment – we want to improve our recruitment practices to 
simplify the process for both us and potential employees. This 
approach will be based on a more professional, flexible and 
market-based approach that uses a greater range of ways in 
which to attract high quality applicants and increases managers’ 
knowledge of contemporary best practice recruitment methods. 

Orientation – it is critical that we improve orientation of new 
staff so they quickly learn about our business as a whole, 
including our values and what they mean for our approach to 
our work and to each other. This assists new staff to appreciate 
their obligations as public sector employees as well as learn 
the specific skills needed for their job at Lotterywest. This new 
program will reflect a more customised approach and uses the 
new Learning Management System. 

Management practice – this focuses on the 18 ‘Tier 3’ Senior 
Managers who report to the General Managers. An important 
aspect is a series of forums taking place off site primarily in 
facilities of community, arts or sporting groups which  
Lotterywest supports and takes an innovative  
approach to shared learning. The first of these  
was in May 2012 and they will continue every  
six weeks for the year ahead.

Performance development – this reframes our 
current performance management system into an  
approach that is easier and more effective for staff and 
managers to use. It will identify, develop and seek to retain 
emerging leaders. 
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L-R: Frances and Chris from  
Corporate Services.

Outcome: 

Ensure we have talented 
leadership and that our staff  
are equipped with the skills, 
knowledge and motivation  
to lead and manage our  

business to achieve  
business objectives. 
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The celebration of special  
achievements and 

milestones is an important 
element of team building and 

recognition
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Included is coaching for managers on best practice performance 
development and connections to workforce planning. 

Learning and development – we have identified a need to take a 
more planned and structured approach to developing staff skills. 
This will align with the new staff performance review approach 
linking business needs with identified staff skills development. 
The emphasis will also be on greater transfer of knowledge 
within the organisation. 

An important tool in achieving this is the new Learning 
Management System (LMS) that lists the wide range of 
learning and development opportunities available both within 
Lotterywest and at external training organisations and allows 
managers and staff to be more strategic in planning individual 
development plans. The LMS will also make it easier for us to 
record and track skills development across Lotterywest.
The strategy includes initiatives for informal learning for all 
staff through the introduction of regular ‘20-Minute Lunchbox 
Learning’ sessions on a wide range of subjects and with other 
customised learning opportunities developed in house. 

Knowing the business – we have identified a need to 
improve the knowledge people have about Lotterywest  
business as whole, rather than to have knowledge simply of  
their own job or the section in which they work. This will be 
achieved through opportunities to learn more about not 
only Lotterywest organisation but also the Australian and 
international lottery industry. 

Our People and Organisational Development

Customer focus – the aim is to increase understanding of 
internal and external customer service and quality management 
principles. It includes development of internal consulting skills 
and creates a culture of continuous improvement. 

Innovation – this entails a program to capture innovative ideas 
and promote them for further consideration and possible 
implementation. 

Celebration – the celebration of special achievements and 
milestones is an important element of team building and 
recognition of the effort which goes into achieving our results. 
It will include a new approach to whole-of-staff meetings which 
encourages greater participation.

Learning and development outcomes 
This year a number of initiatives were held to develop our  
staff and build capacity within our organisation.

Staff conference
Our third annual staff conference, held in November 2011, was 
attended by nearly 90% of our people. The main objectives 
were to build our sense of belonging as a team and to enhance 
the understanding of our business and the plans we have the 
future direction of Lotterywest. 

The comprehensive conference program developed by a 
working group of people across our organisation included 
presentations by external specialists that covered the diverse 
nature of our business, our future challenges and how to build 
on successes. 

The conference began with a Welcome to Country by Noongar 
Elder, Dr Richard Walley, and was formally opened by the 
Premier, the Hon Colin Barnett MLA. 

Leadership development strategy
This year a leadership development strategy was implemented, 
focusing on senior managers as essential support for the 
Executive team and critical as change agents for Lotterywest. 
The first phase of this program supported four senior managers 
for professional development through enrolment in the Murdoch 
University Executive Leadership program. 

Other managers will attend this program or other similar kinds 
of management development programs. As well as formal skills 
development senior staff now have a regular series of meetings 
which will cover a range of topics of relevant to their work at 
Lotterywest.

Learning and development 
Over the last year we offered 78 learning and development 
programs, involving a wide range of initiatives, which were 
attended by 452 participants.

L-R: Graham and Jaye from Information 
Services, Kerry from Strategy and Planning.
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Programs such as cultural awareness and ethical decision making 
were targeted to give staff skills and knowledge to work in our 
business. SAP technical training helped people prepare for 
new technologies and systems. Other courses provided formal 
university based management programs and supported 12 staff 
in upgrading their qualifications to the new Certificate IV TAE in 
training and assessment. 

This year we also supported three staff in undertaking 
postgraduate studies through our study assistance program. 
These included enrolments in Executive Master of Business 
Administration, Master of Business Administration and Master of 
Business Leadership programs. 

Learning Management System
Historically our training records and events were managed 
through a manual system using spreadsheets. This year, with the 
development of a Learning Management System (LMS), we have 
a comprehensive catalogue of training and events.

This enables a more strategic and cost effective approach to 
learning and development, aligned to business requirements 
and individual development plans. Further automation of 
the many tasks in managing training and events across the 
organisation will improve administration; provide accurate data 
about learning and development initiatives; produce reports 
of training events, attendances and competencies; and report 
expiring qualifications. 

The next step is creating a comprehensive training matrix in the 
LMS, with job profiles and SAP security roles overlaid to help 
determine our staff’s learning and development needs. 

The Wellness Program
The Wellness Program was launched a number of years ago to 
recognise that wellness in all aspects of our lives is important 
for us, as individuals and employees, if we are to contribute our 
best at work.

We offer a program for all staff which adopts a holistic approach 
that includes activities within the areas of career, physical, 
financial, social, mental/emotional and community. 

We initiated a wellness group which has a renewed focus on 
providing a broader range of wellness activities for staff in 
2012. These included onsite health assessments, ‘flu shots and 
nutritional advice. Four series of after work dancing classes, 
attended by an average of 10 staff per class, have been a 
popular alternative to traditional exercise programs. 

Two volleyball teams have been fielded each week and 16 staff 
took advantage of reduced membership fees at a local gym.

Our People and Organisational Development

ScreenWest

In October 2012 Lotterywest 
continued its commitment to 
ScreenWest with the signing of 
another four-year grant agreement 
to support the Western Australian 
screen industry.  

The new Quadrennial Grant Agreement 
included an increase in funding from  
$5.2 million to $5.5 million. This increased 
level of funding to $22 million will enable 
WA practitioners to develop and progress 
their careers through a range of funding 
initiatives, and the certainty of four-year 
funding will enable ScreenWest to plan 
industry development over an extended 
time frame.

In 2011/12 Lotterywest funding to 
ScreenWest supported the filming of  
32 screen productions. 

The most high profile outcome for the 
screen industry in 2011 was clearly the 
release of the feature film Red Dog, which 
was one of the biggest success stories in 
the Australian screen industry in recent 
years, becoming the eighth highest 
grossing Australian film of all time, taking 
over $21 million at the domestic box 
office. In Australian DVD sales Red Dog 
has only been exceeded by Avatar and 
Finding Nemo.

Another highlight was the screening of 
the critically acclaimed WA telemovie, 
The Great Mint Swindle. The movie brings 
to life the local crime story of the 80’s 
which remains one of the most celebrated 
unsolved crimes in Western Australia’s 
history.

In addition, the success for Western 
Australian productions was widespread as 
local productions, including feature films, 
television and documentary received 
a staggering total of 29 nominations 
at the Australian Academy Cinema 
Television Arts (AACTA) Awards (formerly 
the AFI’s), with wins in both of the 
major documentary categories for the 
projects SAS: Search for Warriors (Best 
Documentary Series) and Jandamarra’s 
War (Best Documentary Under One Hour) 
as well as Red Dog winning Best Film in 
the feature film section.

2012 was our 20 year anniversary in 
supporting ScreenWest. To mark the 
occasion, ScreenWest commissioned a 
special one-minute promotional film that 
was played at various key events including 
the Lotterywest Film Season, Flickerfest, 
RAW Nerve Screening and the special 
sold out Mad Bastards Perth 
Rooftop Cinema screening.  
The promotional trailer  
will continue to be  
used throughout  
2012/13.

Physical
Wellbeing

Career
Wellbeing

Social
Wellbeing

Community
Wellbeing

Financial
Wellbeing

Mental  
& Emotional
Wellbeing

Wellness Wheel.

ScreenWest.
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Staff milestones 
This year we celebrated with staff who reached  
service milestones. We have four staff with over  
30 years of service, 22 with more than 20, 36  
with more than 10, and 128 who joined us in the 
past 10 years. We recognise these long serving  
employees at quarterly staff meetings. 

The combined length of service for all employees  
is 1692 years, an average of 8.9 per person. 

Employee Assistance Program
Lotterywest has a contract with an external provider  
to offer a confidential support and counselling service to 
staff and their family members for work-related or personal 
difficulties. This service is valued by staff, although because of  
its confidential nature we can report only that its use was at 
around the same level as last year i.e. approximately 10% of  
staff have used it during the year. 

The service is also offered to retailers at times of crisis – 
especially for those who have experienced a violent hold up 
or other stressful events in their business. Retailers using the 
service have expressed appreciation for the support from 
Lotterywest.
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Other activities this year included participation in public 
fundraising events such as the John Hughes ‘Big Walk’ and 
the ‘Walk in Her Shoes’ event which involved sponsoring 
participants for walking a certain distance each day. The latter 
event raised funds for clean water projects in developing 
countries. Overall we increased participation in wellness 
activities by 78% compared with the previous year. 
One of our staff, the General Manager Strategy and 
Planning, who leads our Wellness program, completed a solo 
Rottnest Swim this year. We were very proud of her inspiring 
achievement.

Lotterywest Community Voice
We improved the charter and structure of the group to ensure 
all business units are represented. The LCV is an important 
communication channel between staff and senior managers.
The group leads consultation on new initiatives and policies 
and provides a forum for staff to make suggestions, propose 
innovations and share ideas. 

Among the group’s responsibilities is the quarterly peer 
nominated RITE Awards which recognise staff who demonstrate 
our values consistently in their work and in their contribution 
to the community of Lotterywest staff. This year we recognised 
nine winners. 

This year has seen an overall increase in the number of 
nominations for these awards. It has been encouraging to 
see a high level of team nominations as well as individual 
nominations from across the organisation. 

One of the team nominations included one for the Grants 
and Community Development teams for their hard work and 
commitment during the implementation of the new grant 
making technology within SAP. This was a lengthy, highly 
complex project and the team were recognised by their peers 
as demonstrating commitment in ensuring success of the 
project.

Another team nomination was for the group of dedicated 
people who worked to pack and relocate all equipment and 
furniture from our retailer training facilities in Subiaco during 
refurbishment of this facility so that retailer training sessions 
could continue to run smoothly. 

They sorted, packed, labelled, moved and stored everything 
needed to allow the many contractors access to a clear site. 
This was a mammoth job, undertaken with commitment and 
quiet determination, great team spirit, with an exceptional 
demonstration of our values. 

Profile of our people
The Lotterywest workforce has decreased by 5% from the 
previous year. The year began with 188 full-time equivalent 
employees (FTE), and the total was 178 FTE at the end of the 
year. 

Twenty five per cent of staff are under 35 years of age. Forty 
eight percent are between 35 and 54. Twenty seven per cent 
are over 55. The average age is 45, three years lower than last 
year. This is in response to our workforce planning strategy 
aimed at recruiting employees under 25. As a result 3.7% of 
the workforce is now in this age group. 

The turnover rate of 5.5% (11 people) was similar to the 
previous year. Nearly 70% of employees leaving Lotterywest in 
this year cited other career opportunities as the main reason. 
15.4% left due to retirement; and another 15.4% for reasons 
such family needs or job transfers.

Our People and Organisational Development

	 2011/12	RITE	Awards		
	 Winners	were:

 • Graham Jakins, Information Services 
 • Mary Boksich, Information Services
 • Glenn Williams, Business Operations
 • Mark Church, Business Operations
 • Jude Rosair, Business Operations
 • Janine Harvey, Business Operations
 • Andrea Cho, Business Operations
 • Van Lai, Corporate Services
 • Chin Chong, Corporate Services

Glenn from Information Services.

Lotterywest’s Tier 3 Senior Management group.



“The ‘angel effect’ may  
bring a greater understanding of 
the power of art to change a city 
more meaningfully than bricks-

and-mortar developments.”

Stephen Bevis 
The West Australian  

February 14, 2012

Sharing success stories 
Lotterywest has a diverse group of stakeholders.  
Our vision of taking a leadership role in contributing  
to a better Western Australia can be achieved only by  
continuing to build strong and positive relationships with  
all stakeholders – players, retailers, grant beneficiaries,  
and people and organisations with whom we do business – 
demonstrating to all how the proceeds from playing our games 
flow back to the community. 

In 2012 a simple statement was created to articulate this 
message: ‘You play. You give’. The intent is to simply and clearly 
convey the link between playing the games and the difference 
Lotterywest is able to make as a result. It acts as a ‘signature’ in 
our suite of corporate and grants communications. 

As part of our communications strategy, each year a selection of 
our grants are chosen to demonstrate the diversity of community 
and charitable organisations we fund. 

In 2012, as part of the community program at the international 
Commonwealth Heads of Government Meeting (CHOGM) in 
Perth, nine organisations which had received Lotterywest Grants 
were chosen to feature in brief documentaries. Each reflected 
the key CHOGM themes of women’s interests, the environment 
and cultural identity – and were shown at various locations 
including the Perth Cultural Centre during CHOGM. These 

Reputation and Stakeholder 
Relations

Remember how cool it was when you were a kid? Heading out to explore the  

bush, build cubbies, catch tadpoles and climb trees? Many kids don’t get to do 

this anymore. At the new Lotterywest Bush Base in Naturescape Kings Park, kids 

can be free to have fun and get back to nature. Rumour has it that parents and 

grandparents are having fun too. 

And they can do it thanks to the support you give by playing Lotterywest games.

Play Responsibly gamblinghelponline.org.au 1800 858 858

For more on Lotterywest Grants  

visit lotterywest.wa.gov.au or contact us  

on 08 9340 5270 or Toll Free 1800 655 270.

Rediscover your 

natural habitat

You play. You give.

You wouldn’t know it but you’ve seen Apace’s work all over Perth. They been revegetating and regenerating bushland with native plants and seeds from their nursery and seedbank since 1983. At the same time they’ve created a welcoming work environment for people from all walks of life. And you’ve done your bit to support them by playing Lotterywest games.

Play Responsibly gamblinghelponline.org.au 1800 858 858

For more on Lotterywest Grants  visit lotterywest.wa.gov.au or contact us  on 08 9340 5270 or Toll Free 1800 655 270.

Nurturing our environment from the ground up

You play. You give.

Outcome

A positive relationship  
with all stakeholders and a 

reputation within the Western 
Australian community in  
which the role we play  

is undertaken and held in  
high esteem.

stories were then extended into mainstream media to reinforce 
the message ‘You play. You give.’ 

As well as using the traditional media channels of television, 
press, radio and our website, our evolution into social media 
provides another stream to share community stories at low cost 
with high impact. 

Engaging others
Positive engagement with our stakeholders is one of the  
keys to our success. 

As well as giving the opportunity to develop more informal 
relationships with a range of stakeholders, our event program 
aims to demonstrate our support to many of the organisations 
funded by Lotterywest and to offer our guests the chance to  
see the impact of our grant making and meet some very 
inspirational people. 
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Perth International Arts Festival

Lotterywest gave $5.5 million to PIAF 
in 2011/12; their biggest single annual 
investment and equating to 61% of all 
non-box office income.  

Lotterywest is the Festival’s Principal 
Partner and had naming rights at three 
cornerstone events: Lotterywest Festival 
Films, Lotterywest Festival Opening: 
Dawn: Dusk and Lotterywest Festival 
Celebration: Place Des Anges.

Festival highlights included
•  Paid attendances of 194,522 (an 

increase of 3% on 2011)
•  Public program attendance of 700,000 

people 
•  90,070 attended the Lotterywest 

Festival Films season
•  30,000 attended Lotterywest Festival 

Celebration – Place Des Anges

Lotterywest Festival Opening –  
Dawn: Dusk
A beautiful Indigenous Welcome to 
Country and a 450-strong community 
choir opened the Festival in spectacular 
style at Cottesloe Beach; echoed by an 
event on the Albany foreshore at sunset 
to open the Great Southern Festival.

Lotterywest Festival Celebration –  
Place des Anges
Over 30,000 people crowded into St 
Georges Terrace to witness a sea of 
feathers released from the skies as  
French ‘angels’ frolicked above. Thirty 
artists from Les Studios de Cirque created 
their most elaborate presentation of Place 
des Anges to date, transforming our 
capital city. 

Lotterywest Festival Films 
The season featured 27 contemporary 
international films at the Somerville 
auditorium and Joondalup Pines, with the 
In Retrospect program taking audiences 
on a journey into the history of cinema in 
a single week. 

Home Sweet Home 
Home Sweet Home saw a colourful, 
imaginary version of Perth come to life at 
the WA Museum, capped off with a ‘street 
party’ at Hackett Hall on the final day of 
the installation.



Taking little green steps  
to sustainability
The saying “from little things big 
things grow” couldn’t be more fitting 
for an environmental education 
program supported by Lotterywest. 

Little Green Steps is run by The Australian 
Association for Environmental Education 
and aims to teach our littlest West Aussies 
they can have a big impact on the health 
of our environment.

Launched in July, the program trains 
early education staff  to teach sustainable 
living through simple activities. Staff learn 
how to get kids involved in making worm 
farms, composting food scraps, growing 
veggies and thinking about their water 
and energy use.

Kids are encouraged to tell their families 
about what they’ve learned and so spread 
the word to ‘grown ups’ and the broader 
community that ‘going green’ can be fun 
and easy to do.

Child care centres in Cannington, 
Gosnells and Kelmscott will be the first to 
teach the program.
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Contributing to the business community
We have partnerships with several commercial and industry 
groups, and memberships of the Western Australian Chamber 
of Commerce and Industry (CCI). This membership makes CCI 
services available to our retailers.

We also hold memberships with the Australian Newsagents’ 
Federation and the Small Business Development Corporation. 
We engage with other industry bodies including not-for-profit 
peak organisations, such as the WA Council of Social Services, 
and with government agencies whose work relates to our 
services. 

Our specialist grant making skills and knowledge of the 
community sector are shared with others including the  
corporate sector.

Making a difference responsibly
The success of our lottery games comes through careful 
management of risk by promoting our games responsibly. 
While lotteries are considered a low risk product in terms of the 
likelihood of the product contributing to problem gambling, 
Lotterywest is committed to minimise risk and harm to all 
players.

We take the safe consumption of our games very seriously, 
particularly for the small number of people who may be at risk of 
not controlling their gambling behaviours. We train our retailers 
and their staff to extend care in the retail environment and offer 
support services if required. 

Our ‘Play Responsibly’ message is clearly communicated across 
our communication and marketing materials, encouraging 
players to consider their playing habits and spend only what 
they can afford. We give support information on our website and 
in our Play Online service for those in seeking advice. 

To guide our practice in responsible play, we have worked to 
achieve accreditation through the World Lottery Association’s 
Responsible Gaming Framework. The framework provides seven 
principles to guide decision making on responsible play. 

In addition, the CEO of Lotterywest, along with colleagues from 
the other gaming and gambling sectors in WA, the Department 
of Racing and Gaming, and the Department of Communities, is 
a member of the Western Australian Problem Gambling Support 
Services Committee. 

Lotterywest gives an annual grant to Centrecare to fund 
the  problem gambling support services for WA. We support 
the annual Responsible Gambling Awareness Week, raising 
consciousness about safe gambling and providing referrals to 
support services.

To maintain industry connections and learn from international 
best practice, Lotterywest is a member of the World Lottery 
Association and the Asia Pacific Lottery Association (APLA). 
Lotterywest also contributes services as the APLA Secretariat.

Reputation and Stakeholder Relations

Little Green Steps.
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August 2011
Red Dog
The Western Australian film which has received 
international acclaim. This film received substantial 
support from ScreenWest which is funded by 
Lotterywest. A total of 250 guests, retailers and 
Lotterywest staff attended a special preview event. 

September 2011

West Australian Ballet – regional tour
92 guests (retailers) attended performances in Albany, 
Bunbury and Mandurah.

October 2011

Naturescape Family Day
A family day celebrating the opening of the 
Naturescape playground in Kings Park, which received 
substantial financial support from Lotterywest. The 
200 guests included community organisations, staff, 
retailers and their children.

November 2011

Yiwarra Kuju Canning Stock Route   
Exhibition Launch
This exhibition was a key feature of the whole CHOGM 
event hosted by the Western Australian Government. 
Dignitaries from around the world visited this now 
national exhibition, a project whose origins came 
from a Lotterywest Grant. The launch event was 
hosted by the Lotterywest Board and was attended 
by 200 guests representing community organisations, 
retailers, staff, and other business partners.

Parkerville Sports Charity Lunch 
This is an annual charity fundraising event held by 
Parkerville Children and Youth Care which always 
features an prominent guest speaker – 10 guests 
(community organisations, retailers, staff, Board 
members).

Lotterywest Festival Films Opening,  
Perth International Arts Festival
This is a much loved part of PIAF’s program which 
extends over the summer months at two outdoor 
locations on the campuses at the University of 
Western Australia and at the Edith Cowan University 
at Joondalup. 300 guests (community organisations, 
retailers, staff, external business partners) attended the 
opening film screening.

December 2011

WASO – Symphony in the City
This popular, free outdoor symphony concert is held 
each December funded by Lotterywest and the City 
for Perth. 134 guests (community organisations, 
retailers, external business partners and staff) attended 
this event.

February 2012

Opera in the Park
This is the WA Opera’s annual free outdoor 
performance which this year featured The Pearlfishers. 
20 guests (community organisations, retailers and staff) 
attended this event.

Lotterywest Festival Films (Joondalup)
Film screening during the Perth International Arts 
Festival – 41 guests (retailers, staff).

March 2012

Festival Gardens – Perth International  
Arts Festival
A performance by Penguin Café at the Festival 
Gardens attended by 40 guests (community 
organisations, retailers and staff).

Funds for Freedom High Tea
 This was a fundraiser event for the Women’s 
Council for Domestic & Family Violence services on 
International Women’s Day – 20 guests (community 
organisations, retailers and staff).

Lotterywest Festival Films  
(Somerville)
Film screening during Perth International Arts  
Festival – 30 guests (retailers, external business  
partners and staff).

May 2012

WASO – Star Wars and Beyond
This is a popular part of the WASO’s annual concert 
program. 50 guests (community groups, staff, retailers) 
attended this performance. WASO is supported 
through the statutory funding given to the Department 
for Culture and the Arts. Lotterywest also gives a 
separate direct grant to WASO for the support of their 
voluntary choir.

Fiona Stanley Tribute Luncheon
This lunch to honour Professor Stanley on her 
retirement was part of the West Business events 
series – 20 guests (community groups, retailers, 
Board members, external business partners and staff). 
Lotterywest has supported the Telethon Institute for 
Child Health, which Professor Stanley established, 
since its inception. 

Reputation and Stakeholder Relations

Events  
supported  

by Lotterywest  
in 2011/12: 

Yiwarra Kuju Canning Stock Route  
Exhibition Launch.
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Building value in our systems
Organisations aspiring to excellence require high performance, 
secure and service-oriented technical infrastructure and systems. 
At Lotterywest we recognise that technology is not only vital in 
supporting our business, but in how we engage with our staff, 
retailers and the community.

This year has been about building value in our systems. We have 
improved our business processes in these ways:

 Contract Management and Payments
Major changes in how we manage contracts, procure goods 
and services, and pay for purchases. In addition, we have 
introduced a structured governance framework based on the 
delegation schedule and procurement policies on contracting 
and purchasing.

We now use credit cards across our purchasing function, 
bringing a fundamental shift in how we procure a large volume 
of low value goods and services. This has improved working 
relationships and allowed more prompt payments to suppliers, 

the overwhelming majority of which are 
small businesses. 

Credit card use has been extended 
to employee travel arrangements, 

providing further savings in 
administration costs, particularly 
payroll support. 

By introducing credit cards we have been able to focus more 
on key suppliers with whom we have large contracts. Structural 
improvements to SAP have enabled more formalised purchasing 
processes. With additional system improvements expected to 
be completed in August 2012, our business enterprise system, 
SAP, will have full purchase-to-pay functionality, providing timely 
recognition of contractual obligations, and, more important, 
automation in the entire process, including invoice and work 
flow management. 

These outcomes give us the foundation for improved contract 
management and a better payment model, improving supplier 
relationships and our cash flow. During 2012/13 the principles 
associated with creditor management will be applied in 
managing all contracts. Credit card use and SAP purchasing will 
improve these relationships.

 We have introduced a new service in contract development, 
with a negotiated memorandum of understanding with the 
Department of Finance, Government Procurement, which 
now provide us with skilled and experienced procurement 
professionals. 

This has enabled us to consolidate our contract development 
capabilities and prepare us for structured learning and training 
in the many procurement disciplines that affect our services. The 
relationship with Government Procurement continues to develop 
and we have adopted Governments’ Contract Management 
System in registering and monitoring all our contracts. We aim 
to learn from the experiences of other Government Departments 
who have procured similar goods and/or services, and direct 
access to Government Procurement specialists will give us the 
benefit of their knowledge.

Preliminary developments have been made in improving our 
contract management framework. The resource capacity benefits 
achieved from streamlined ERP purchase to pay, and credit card 
services, have allowed us to introduce a dedicated contract 
arrangement support service for our business, without additional 
resources or cost. 

Business Framework Governance, 
compliance and technology

•  Refreshing our information systems and further integration of 
policy, project management and activities to gain returns from 
our investment in technology. 

•  Further development of contracting capabilities, and 
continued strengthening of our working relationship with 
Government Procurement. This will give more assurance on 
how we manage and report on contracts, as well as improving 
relationships with major suppliers.

•  Enhance security, ensure we have the training to get the most 
from our systems and improve the systems in order to reduce 
the cost of our operations. Lotterywest will monitor trends in 
gaming and technologies to identify opportunities for players, 
retailers and beneficiaries.

•  Ensuring our staff have the skills, training and confidence to 
use, maintain and support our systems. We will also work to 
ensure that customers can access information when and how 
they need it. The quality of service will meet or exceed their 
expectations. 

Plans for 2012/13

•  Upgrade of desktop technology to help users  
in their performance and productivity. 

•  Improvement of Cash 3 technologies with enhancements to 
the draw verification process. 

•  Building on our successful World Lottery security 
recertification in 2012 we will investigate and implement 
solutions that improve security and use of mobile 
technologies for interactions with retailers and customers.

 85

L-R: Paul from Business Operations and  
Peter from Information Services.
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Mr John Atkins
Mr John Atkins, Chairman of the Board, was appointed in  
March 2010. Mr Atkins has a long history of community 
involvement with previous board appointments on the 
Fremantle Hospital Board, Princess Margaret Hospital 
Foundation, Metropolitan Health Services Board, Foodbank and 
Asialink. He is currently the Chairman of ANZ Western Australia 
and brings a strong background in commercial law to the 
Lotterywest Board. Mr Atkins also currently serves as President 
and Chairman of the Chamber of Commerce and Industry, and 
holds other appointments with Breakaway Resources, Australian 
Finance Group Ltd , Committee for Perth and Barrington 
Consulting Group.

Mr Ray Bennett
Mr Ray Bennett was appointed to the Board in December 2007.
Mr Bennett is the immediate past Chief Executive Officer of 
Racing and Wagering WA where he implemented planning and 
financial management strategies to create major improvements. 
He has a background in the finance industry as a general 
manager in retail banking and has held consulting positions for 
an international accounting firm, financial institution and a legal 
firm. Mr Bennett has also been a company director of his own 
small business and a commercial property development officer 
and sits as a Director on the Board of the Gold Corporation.

Dr Maria Harries
Dr Maria Harries runs her own evaluation and management 
consulting business as well as holding an honorary research 
position at the University of Western Australia, where she 
worked as an academic for over 20 years. With degrees in 
psychology from the University of Tasmania, and social work 
from the University of Western Australia, a Masters in Social 
Administration from Flinders University and a PhD from Murdoch 
University, she has built up a 40-year career in human services, in 
WA, interstate and overseas. She has a reputation as a leader in 
several areas including mental health, child and family welfare, 
ethics, research, management and governance. Dr Harries has 
chaired a number of organisations and is currently chairperson 
of MercyCare, a large WA non-government organisation 
that includes health, aged care and community services. 
In acknowledgment of her contribution to the Australian 
community, she was awarded an Order of Australia (AM) in 2004. 
She is also a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors. Previously a councillor with the City of Subiaco, Dr 
Harries retains a strong belief in the importance of community 
and commitment to the development of civil society.

Ms Andrea Hall
Andrea is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountant and 
formerly a Perth-based partner within KPMG’s Advisory Services 
division. She has more than 20 years of experience in internal 
and external audit, corporate governance, risk management 
and advisory services. During her tenure at KPMG, she worked 
closely with many large organisations in the mining, health, 
transport, insurance, and not for profit sectors as well as with 
government infrastructure agencies. Andrea was the 2011 Chair 
of the WA Council for the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
where she was an elected member for 7 years.  She is currently 
a member of the Murdoch University Audit and Risk Committee 
and is a non executive director of Gryphon Minerals Limited.
 
Ms Sheila Hood
Ms Sheila Hood was appointed to the Board in August 2010. 
She is currently Executive General Manager of Enabling at 
HBF, responsible for Group Finance, IT, Benefits Management 
and Governance. Sheila has more than 20 years experience in 
increasingly senior strategic and operational roles, including 
as Product Director of global pharmaceutical company 
GlaxoSmithKline, as General Manager of Health for HBF and 
as an economist for the Bank of Canada and Statistics Canada. 
Her executive experience has focused on developing strategies 
to achieve sales, profit and market share objectives for well-
known consumer brands in highly-regulated industries. She has 
a sound knowledge of corporate governance in Australia and 
was selected to participate in the AICD Chairmen’s Mentoring 
Program in 2012.

Mr Garry Trinder
Mr Garry Trinder, who recently retired from the position of 
Chief Information Officer at Edith Cowan University, was 
appointed to the Board in February 2012. Mr Trinder has 
more than 40 years experience in the information technology 
industry in both private and government sectors. In 2007, he 
was awarded the prestigious WA Information Technology and 
Telecommunications Award which recognised his outstanding 
contribution to the State’s industry. He is also a Fellow and 
Honorary Life Member of the Australian Computer Society 
(ACS). Prior to his role at Edith Cowan University, Mr Trinder 
has held a range of senior consultancy and management roles 
for groups including MercyCare Group, BHP Iron Ore and Ernst 
& Young. Mr Trinder was also elected to the City of Subiaco 
Council as a Councillor in October 2011 representing the  
North Ward. 

Board composition

L-R: Ms Andrea Hall, Mr Garry Trinder, Mr John Atkins (Chairman), 
Dr Maria Harries, Mr Ray Bennett and Ms Sheila Hood. 



Mrs Jan Stewart
Chief Executive Officer

Mrs Jacquie Thomson
General Manager, Grants & Community Development
Responsible for leading our grant making and community 
development activities.

Mr Alec James
General Manager, Business Development
Responsible for leading the investigation, development and 
implementation of future business opportunities.

Mr Don Wharton
General Manager, Information Services  
& Chief Information Officer
Responsible for Lotterywest system operations and our 
information systems; both gaming systems and management 
information and project management. 

 
Mrs Lorraine Driscoll
General Manager, Strategy & Planning
Responsible for leading strategic planning, business analysis, 
corporate project coordination, organisational development and 
business system management.

Ms Maree Brown
General Manager, Business Operations
Responsible for leading our lottery operations including game 
management and product marketing, services to our retail 
network and players, and gaming system management.

Mr Pascoe Rechichi
General Manager, Corporate Services   
& Chief Financial Officer
Responsible for finances, investments, risk management, legal, 
human resources and facilities management.

Executive Team

L-R: Mr Alec James, Mrs Lorraine Driscoll, Mr Pascoe Rechichi,  
Mrs Jan Stewart, Mrs Jacquie Thomson, Mr Don Wharton and Ms 
Maree Brown. Photographed at Brightwater Oats Street – a unique 
rehabilitation service for people with acquired brain injury. The Oats 
Street programme helps people return to community living.
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Financial Statements

Certification of Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2012

Chad from Business Operations.
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Certification of Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2012



Outcome Statement
Lotteries are conducted with the proceeds returned to the community of Western Australia

	

Services
Service 1 – Sales of lottery products to the public of Western Australia
Service 2 – The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia

Effectiveness Indicators Actual  Budget Actual Actual  Actual Actual 
   2011/12  2011/12  2010/11  2009/10 2008/09 2007/08

1.  Sales Per Adult  $421.75 $393.57 $375.71 $394.25 $416.61 $391.46

2.  Total Returns to Beneficiaries  
 Per Capita $109.84 $106.12 $104.86 $106.71 $107.04 $98.47

3.  Total Returns to Beneficiaries 
 as a % of Sales 33.9% 34.0% 35.2% 34.2% 32.5% 31.7%

Efficiency Indicators Actual  Budget Actual Actual  Actual Actual 
   2011/12  2011/12  2010/11  2009/10 2008/09 2007/08

4.  Lottery Expenses as a % of Sales*  5.6% 6.8% 6.4% 5.9% 6.1% 6.3%

5.  Grants Operations Expenses as a %  
 of Direct Grants 10.7% 6.0% 5.3% 5.2% 5.3% 5.8%

Base Data Actual  Budget Actual Actual  Actual Actual 
   2011/12  2011/12  2010/11  2009/10 2008/09 2007/08

a. Total Population (million) 2.3522 2.2920 2.2920 2.2456 2.1995 2.1029

b. Adult Population (million) 1.8084 1.8188 1.8188 1.7793 1.7399 1.6710

c.  Total Sales (million) $762.68 $715.82 $683.34 $701.48 $724.86 $654.13

d. Total Returns to Beneficiaries – excl grants  
 not taken up (million) $258.36 $243.24 $240.34 $239.63 $235.44 $207.08

e. Direct Grants – excl grants  
 not taken up (million) $117.89 $110.73 $114.07 $109.85 $101.60 $86.18

f.  Total Lotterywest Expenses** (million) $544.77 $515.15 $489.19 $497.91 $515.23 $468.14

g.  Lotteries Operations Expenses (million) $42.84 $48.52 $43.71 $41.45 $43.93 $41.52

h.  Grants Operations Expenses (million) $12.60 $6.60 $6.06 $5.74 $5.37 $4.96

Note*: Lotteries operations expenses includes all administrative costs (excluding cost of sales) associated with the selling of lottery products.

 Note**: Total lottery expenses includes the cost of sales (including prizes and the commission paid) and all operational costs associated with the selling of lottery 
products and administering the grant funding.
 
For the purpose of these indicators, the Goods and Services Tax has been excluded from expense calculations; and beneficiaries refers to the allocation 
prescribed in the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to the Hospital Fund, the Sports Account, the Arts Account and to eligible organisation of ‘approved purposes’.

Hon. C J Barnett MEc MLA
PrEMiEr

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based 
on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting 
users to assess the Lotteries Commission’s performance, and 
fairly represent the performance of the Lotteries Commission for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

John Atkins
Chairman
Accountable Authority

20 August 2012

ray Bennett
Commissioner
Accountable Authority
20 August 2012

Lotterywest Key Performance 
Indicators (Audited)

Certification of Performance Indicators
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5.   Grants operations expenses as a percentage of Direct Grant 
distributions. This measure shows the ratio of expenditure 
associated with Lotterywest’s direct grant distributions. The 
launch of the new grants information management system 
resulted in an increase in depreciation, the return of staff 
working on the project to their substantive positions, together 
with voluntary severance payments contributed to cost 
increases this year. These cost increases, along with a more 
realistic allocation of corporate support costs, has resulted in 
a cost increase to this performance indicator.

Base Data

(a)  and (b) Lotterywest uses the Western Australian population 
figures sourced from the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) 
in calculating its performance indicators. The total population 
of Western Australia is used as the basis of calculating the 
per capita return to beneficiaries indicator as all Western 
Australians benefit from funds disbursed by Lotterywest. 
However, only the adult population figure is used for Lottery 
Product sales per capita indicator as only adults, aged 16 
years and over, are permitted to purchase lottery products in 
Western Australia.

(c)  This shows Lotterywest’s total annual gross sales for the 
financial year 2011/12.

(d)  This shows the total of all statutory and direct grants for 
2011/12, including those funds allocated but not taken up.

(e)  This shows the total of direct grants for 2011/12, excluding 
those funds allocated but not taken up. This year some 1,307 
grants were given to 1,203 eligible organisations (not for 
profit organisations and local government authorities) 

(f)  These figures reflect total Lotterywest Expenses including cost 
of sales:

 • prizes  $428.16 million
 • commission paid to our Retailers  $61.17 million 
 • operations expenses  $55.44 million 
     
   $544.77 million

(The GST applicable to the gaming margin is excluded.)

(g)   This figure shows the total operations expenses in delivering 
the sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia. 

(h)   This figures show the total operations expenses in delivering 
the provision of grants and other distributions to the 
community of Western Australia.

The primary objective of Lotterywest is to operate the state 
authorised lottery and to return the net proceeds to the 
beneficiaries as specified in the Act.

In realising this objective, Lotterywest undertakes two key services:

Service 1 
Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia; and

Service 2 
The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of 
Western Australia.

Consistent with Treasurer’s Instruction 904, our key performance 
indicators have qualitative characteristics: relevance, 
appropriateness, verifiability, freedom from bias and quantifiable.

Two distinct types of indicators are identified:

Effectiveness indicators – measure the extent to which outcomes 
are achieved; and

Efficiency indicators – compare resources input against resulting 
outputs.

NOTES TO THE KEY PErFOrMANCE iNDiCATOrS

Effectiveness Indicators

1.  Sales Per Adult.  
  This measures and highlights Lotterywest’s penetration in the 

adult playing market in Western Australia. The increase in sales 
per adult this year, and the favourable to budget variance, are 
attributed the overall sales increase resulting from the positive 
response to the game and price changes for some of the 
products, as well as the jackpots which occurred during the year 
for the two jackpotting games – OZ Lotto and Powerball. 

  Note: Adult refers to the number of Western Australians 16 
years and over who are permitted by the Act to purchase lottery 
products.

2. Total returns to beneficiaries Per Capita.  
  This measure outlines Lotterywest’s returns to beneficiaries 

across the Western Australian population on a per capita basis. 
In 2011/12, this increased despite a corresponding increase 
in population during the same period. The Lotterywest Board 
had approved an increase in distributions against accumulated 
reserves during the period to provide much needed support to 
eligible organisations for approved purposes (community and 
charitable organisations and local government authorities).

3.  Total returns to beneficiaries as a Percentage of Sales. 
This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in raising 
and converting sales revenue to the beneficiaries. This year, 
a total of 33.9% of gross sales revenue was returned to our 
beneficiaries. 

Efficiency Indicators

4.   Lottery Expenses as a Percentage of Sales. This indicator shows 
the efficiency of Lotterywest in generating its sales revenue. It 
excludes the expenses associated with the administration of 
Lotterywest direct grants and if applicable the carrying amount 
of non-current assets disposed of during the year. The annual 
ratio of 5.6% was favourable to budget and lower than last 
year’s result. During the period, sales exceeded budget, and 
our costs were contained within budget.

Key Performance Indicators (Audited)

Lotterywest is the trading name of the Lotteries Commission which 
operates according to the provisions of the Lotteries Commission Act 
1990 (the ‘Act’) as amended. 
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     Note 2012 2011
      $000 $000

iNCOME
revenue   
 Sales of Goods 3 762,681 683,344
 Interest Revenue  18,146 18,801
 Other Revenue 4 12,574 11,550
 
Total income    793,401 713,695
   
EXPENSES   
 Cost of Sales  3  519,756 466,700
 Lotteries Operations 5 42,841 43,706
 Grants and Community Development Operations 6 12,596 6,057
 Returns to Beneficiaries  7 256,977 238,753
 
Total Expenses   832,170 755,216
   
      (38,769) (41,521)
 Grants from State Government 8 30,420 27,275

(Loss) for the Period  (8,349) (14,246)
   
OTHEr COMPrEHENSiVE iNCOME   
 Changes in Asset Revaluation Surplus/(Deficit) 17 — 1,134

Total Other Comprehensive income  — 1,134

Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the Period  (8,349) (13,112)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
 

For the year ended 30 June 2012
Financial Statements
Certification of Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

The accompanying financial statements of the Lotteries Commission 
have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial 
Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present 
fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 
2012 and the financial position as at 30 June 2012.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which 
would render the particulars included in the financial statements 
misleading or inaccurate.

Graham Lewis
Chief Finance Officer

20 August 2012

John Atkins
Chairman
Accountable Authority

20 August 2012

ray Bennett
Commissioner
Accountable Authority
20 August 2012

Statement of Comprehensive Income
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     Note Asset  Accumulated
      Revaluation surplus/(deficit) Total Equity
      $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2010  7,239 138,390 145,629
 Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the Year 17 1,134 (14,246) (13,112)

Balance at 30 June 2011  8,373 124,144 132,517
     
Balance at 1 July 2011  8,373 124,144 132,517
 Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the Year  17 — (8,349) (8,349)

Balance at 30 June 2012  8,373 115,795 124,168

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

 

For the year ended 30 June 2012

     Note 2012 2011
      $000 $000

ASSETS   
Current Assets   
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 18 17,346 5,919
 Inventories   427 301
 Receivables  9 17,888 7,406
 Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 222,938 206,341

Total Current Assets  258,599 219,967

Non Current Assets   
 Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 36,045 49,545
 Work in Progress 11 1,451 438
 Property, Plant and Equipment 12 17,761 20,849
 Intangibles  13 24,992 29,046

Total Non Current Assets  80,249 99,878

Total Assets    338,848 319,845
   
LiABiLiTiES   
Current Liabilities   
 Payables   14 186,757 162,479
 Provisions  15 23,499 18,304
 Sales in Advance 16 3,172 5,217

Total Current Liabilities  213,428 186,000

Non Current Liabilities   
 Payables   14 400 450
 Provisions  15 852 878

Total Non Current Liabilities  1,252 1,328

Total Liabilities   214,680 187,328

NET ASSETS    124,168 132,517

EQUiTY   
 Asset Revaluation Reserve 17 8,373 8,373
 Retained Earnings 17 115,795 124,144
 
Total Equity    124,168 132,517

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

For the year ended 30 June 2012

Statement of Financial Position Statement of Changes in Equity
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1. Australian Accounting Standards

  Lotterywest’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards. The term “Australian Accounting Standards” includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB).

 Lotterywest has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.

 Early adoption of Standards 
  Lotterywest cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 

“Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements”. No Standards and Interpretations that have been 
issued or amended but are not yet effective have been early adopted by Lotterywest for the annual reporting period ended 30 
June 2012. Consequently, Lotterywest has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued but are 
not yet effective. Where applicable, Lotterywest plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date:

 Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
 • AASB 2010-8 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012)

 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (AASB 112)

  These amendments address the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value. The amendments 
also incorporate SIC-21 Income Taxes – Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets into AASB 112.

 Lotterywest does not have any investment properties and thus these amendments will have no impact.

 • AASB 2011-9 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012)

 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Other Comprehensive Income (AASB 101)

  This Standard requires entities to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they might be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and those that will not.

 The amendments will have no impact on Lotterywest.

 •  AASB 9 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. NB AASB ED 215 Mandatory effective date 
of IFRS 9 proposes to defer the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, 
with early application permitted. At the time of preparation, finalisation of ED 215 is still pending by the AASB. However, the 
IASB has deferred the mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, with early 
application permitted.)

 Financial instruments
  AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. It was further amended by AASB 2010-7 to 

reflect amendments to the accounting for financial liabilities.

  These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the 
requirements of AASB 139. The main changes are described below. 

For the year ended 30 June 2012

     Note 2012 2011
      $000 $000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   
receipts   
 Sale of Goods  754,524  691,854
 Interest Received  17,612 18,501
 GST Receipts on Sales  436 485
Payments   
 Prizes and Retailers’ Commissions  (468,326) (430,859)
 Suppliers and Employees  (48,356) (38,037)
 Direct Grants   (99,997) (120,169)
 GST Payments on Purchases  (18,668) (20,429)
 GST Payments to Taxation Authority  (11,530) (8,308)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 18 125,695  93,038
   
Cash Flows from investing Activities   
 Purchase of Non Current Assets  (1,331) (13,207)
 Net Sales/(Purchases) of Investments  (3,098) 13,119
 
Net Cash (used in) investing Activities  (4,429) (88)
   
Cash Flows (to)/from State Government   
 GST Reimbursements  30,161  27,620
 Statutory Payments to Beneficiaries  (140,000) (128,000)

Net Cash (Provided to) State Government  (109,839) (100,380)

Net increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  11,427  (7,430)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period  5,919  13,349

Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets at End of Period 18 17,346  5,919

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
 

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Disclosure of interests in Other Entities
 AASB 12 includes all disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structures entities.

  Lotterywest has no subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements or investments in structured entities and thus this Standard will have 
no impact.

 • AASB 13 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

 Fair Value Measurement
  AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for determining the fair value of assets and liabilities. AASB 13 does not change 

when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather, provides guidance on how to determine fair value when fair value is required 
or permitted. Application of this definition may result in different fair values being determined for the relevant assets.

  AASB 13 expands the disclosure requirements for all assets or liabilities carried at fair value. This includes information about the 
assumptions made and the qualitative impact of those assumptions on the fair value determined.

 Consequential amendments were also made to other standards via AASB 2011-8.

 Lotterywest has not yet determined the impact of these amendments.

 • AASB 119 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

 Employee Benefits
  The main change introduced by this standard is to revise the accounting for defined benefit plans. The amendment removes the 

options for accounting for the liability, and requires that the liabilities arising from such plans is recognized in full with actuarial gains 
and losses being recognized in other comprehensive income. It also revised the method of calculating the return on plan assets.

  The revised standard changes the definition of short-term employee benefits. The distinction between short-term and other 
long-term employee benefits is now based on whether the benefits are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 
reporting date.

 Consequential amendments were also made to other standards via AASB 2011-10. 

 Lotterywest has not yet determined the impact of these amendments.

 • AASB 1053 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013)

 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards
  This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting framework consisting of two Tiers of reporting requirements for preparing 

general purpose financial statements:
 (a) Tier 1: Australian Accounting Standards
 (b) Tier 2: Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements
  Tier 2 comprises the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements of Tier 1 and substantially reduced disclosures 

corresponding to those requirements.

  The following entities apply Tier 1 requirements in preparing general purpose financial statements:
 (a) For-profit entities in the private sector that have public accountability (as defined in this Standard)
 (b) The Australian Government and State, Territory and Local Governments

 (a)  Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified based on (1) the objective of the entity’s business model for 
managing the financial assets; (2) the characteristics of the contractual cash flows. 

 (b)  Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on investments in equity instruments that are 
not held for trading in other comprehensive income. Dividends in respect of these investments that are a return on investment 
can be recognised in profit or loss and there is no impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument. 

 (c)  Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities, or 
recognising the gains and losses on them, on different bases.

 (d) Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities the change in fair value is to be accounted for as follows:

  — The change attributable to changes in credit risk are presented in other comprehensive income
  —  The remaining change is presented in profit or loss

   If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes in credit risk are also 
presented in profit or loss.

  Consequential amendments were also made to other standards as a result of AASB 9, introduced by AASB 2009-11 and 
superseded by AASB 2010-7 and 2010-10.

 Lotterywest does not expect a material financial impact when the Standard is first applied.

 • AASB 10 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

 Consolidated Financial Statements 
  AASB 10 establishes a new control model that applies to all entities. It replaces parts of AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 

Financial Statements dealing with the accounting for consolidated financial statements and UIG-112 Consolidation – Special 
Purpose Entities. 

 Consequential amendments were also made to other standards via AASB 2011-7.

  Lotterywest has no subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements or investments in structured entities and thus this Standard will have 
no impact.

 • AASB 11 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

  Joint Arrangements
  AASB 11 replaces AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures and UIG-113 Jointly- controlled Entities – Non-monetary Contributions by 

Ventures. 

 Consequential amendments were also made to other standards via AASB 2011-7 and amendments to AASB 128.

  Lotterywest has no subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements or investments in structured entities and thus this Standard will have 
no impact.

 • AASB 12 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
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  Property, Plant and Equipment
   The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to 

assets and in determining estimated useful life. Professional judgement is applied where the evidence does not provide a clear 
distinction between market type assets and existing use assets.

 (c) income recognition
   Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for major business 

activities:

  Sales of goods revenue
   Recognised from the sale of tickets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership control transfer to the purchaser and 

can be measured reliably.

   Sales revenue representing gross sales of all games of Lotto, Cash 3, Soccer Pools and Super 66, is recorded as at the date of 
the respective draw. Sales of instant lottery tickets are recognised when books of tickets are activated. 

   Grants, donations, gifts or other non reciprocal contributions
   Recognised at fair value when Lotterywest obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is 

received.

   Other non reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of 
services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

  Interest
  Recognised as the interest accrues.

  Gains
   Recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non current assets and some revaluation of non 

current assets.
 
 (d)  Property, Plant and Equipment
  Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
   Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of 

utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 
costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they 
form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

  Initial recognition and measurement
  All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

   For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

  Subsequent measurement
   After recognition as an asset, Lotterywest uses the revaluation model for the measurement of land and buildings and the 

cost model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at their fair value less accumulated 
depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

 The following entities apply either Tier 2 or Tier 1 requirements in preparing general purpose financial statements:
 (a) For-profit private sector entities that do not have public accountability
 (b) All not-for-profit private sector entities
 (c) Public sector entities other than the Australian Government and State, Territory and Local Governments.

 Consequential amendments to other standards to implement the regime were introduced by AASB 2010-2.

 Lotterywest has not yet determined the impact of these amendments.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

 (a)  General Statement
   Lotterywest is a Statutory Authority that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with the Australian 

Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the 
Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

   The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of 
financial statements and take precedence over the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting 
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

   Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that 
modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

 (b)  Basis of Preparation 
   The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, modified 

by the revaluation of land and buildings which have been measured at fair value by the Land Information Authority

   The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all 
periods unless otherwise stated.

  The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

   Lotterywest makes key estimates and assumptions concerning the future, these estimates and assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

  Long Service Leave
   In calculating Lotterywest’s long service leave provision, several estimations and assumptions have been made. These include 

expected future salary rates, salary inflation, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. The 
changes in these estimates and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

  Early Obsolescent of Non Current Assets
   In providing depreciation of all non current assets including intangible assets (software application), the estimated useful 

life method is used to ensure the carrying amount of all non current assets are represented at fair value and reflect the 
consumption of their future economic benefits. 
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  Costs incurred of less than $5,000 are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

   Amortisation for intangible assets with a finite useful life is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful 
life) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by Lotterywest have a finite useful life and zero residual value. (i.e. 
computer software is 5 to 8 years.)

  Computer software
   Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment. Software that is not an 

integral part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year 
of acquisition.

 (f) impairment of Assets
   Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at each reporting date. Where 

there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the 
carrying amount, the asset is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.

   As Lotterywest is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement costs.

   The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the 
replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually 
to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future 
economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

   Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at the 
end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.

   The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present 
value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material 
impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference 
to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus 
assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

 (g)  Work in Progress
   Costs associated with assets under development for use by Lotterywest are recognised as Work in Progress. Once completed, 

the assets are transferred to the appropriate asset account and are depreciated or amortised, as appropriate.

   No depreciation is provided during construction of assets or on holding costs of Community Projects that are subsequently 
transferred as a direct grant.

 (h)  Leases
   Lotterywest has a number of government operating lease arrangements for motor vehicles, where the lessors retain effectively 

all of the risks and benefits incident to the ownership of the leased asset. Lotterywest holds an operating lease for business 
premises. 

   Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the lease term (i.e. on a 
straight line basis over the lease term), as this is representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased vehicles 
and business premises.

   Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying 
values determined by reference to recent market transactions.

   When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against 
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.

   Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This 
normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is determined 
by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated 
replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is dependent on using the depreciated replacement cost, the gross 
carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately.

   Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services) and recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially from the 
assets fair value at the end of the reporting period.

  Derecognition
   Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is 

retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

  Depreciation of non current assets
   All non current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful life consistent with 

the consumption of their future economic benefits.

   Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is provided on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed 
annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset:

  Buildings  50 years
  Leasehold Improvements 10 years
  Equipment and Fittings 5 to 10 years
  Computer Equipment 3 to 8 years

  Asset revaluation reserve
   The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets described 

in note 12 `Property, Plant and Equipment`.

  Works of Art
   Works of art controlled by Lotterywest are classified as property, plant and equipment. These are anticipated to have 

indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and 
consequently no depreciation has been recognised.

 (e)  intangibles
   All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially measured at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for 

nominal cost, cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

   The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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 (o) Prizes
   Division 1 prizes are paid two weeks after the date of the draw, subject to claim. Other prizes are claimed and paid within a few 

days of the draw taking place.

   Prize liabilities are recognised by draw for Lotto, Super 66, Cash 3 and Soccer Pools and activation of instant lotteries by 
Retailers.

 (p)  returns to Beneficiaries
   Statutory Grants are recognised consistent with the recognition of sales upon which they are based, in accordance with Section 

22 of the Act. 

   Lotterywest’s direct grants to eligible organisations for approved purposes as specified in the Act are recognised when 
approved by the Minister. Unconditional grants are paid in full within days of the Minister’s approval. Conditional grants are 
paid as and when conditions are fulfilled.

   If a grant is refunded but it is expected that it will be reissued, the amount is credited to the grant liability. Otherwise the 
amount is written back.

   When a grant is written back, it is treated as a reduction of the current year’s grant expenditure, regardless of when it was 
approved.

 (q)  Provisions
   Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount. Lotterywest only recognises a provision where there is a present 

legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

  Provisions are reviewed at each balance date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

  Provisions – Employee Benefits
  Annual leave and long service leave
   The liability for annual leave and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting 

period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Long 
service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured 
at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave liabilities are in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

   When assessing expected future payments, consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-
salary components such as employer superannuation contributions. In addition, the long service leave liability takes into 
account the experience of employee departures and periods of service.

   The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

   All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as Lotterywest does not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

 
  

 (i)  Financial instruments
  In addition to cash and cash equivalents, Lotterywest has three categories of financial instrument:
  • Loans and receivables (accounts receivable);
  • Held to maturity investments (term deposits, floating rate notes);
  • Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (prizes and other payables, and Returns to Beneficiaries).

   Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. 
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

   The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and 
subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

 (j)  Cash and Cash Equivalents
   For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and short-term deposits 

with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

 (k)  inventories
   Inventories are valued, on the first-in first-out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
  Our inventories comprise instant lotto tickets and other consumables.

 (l)  receivables
   Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. The 

collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off. The 
allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that Lotterywest will not be 
able to collect the debt. The carrying amount of receivables is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 

 (m)  investments and Other Financial Assets
   Lotterywest only has investments classified as held to maturity investments. Investments not at fair value are initially recognised 

at cost being the fair value of consideration given, including directly attributable transaction costs.

   Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates are classified as held-to-maturity 
when the intention and ability to hold to maturity is known. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not 
included in this classification.

   Held to maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, over the period to maturity. For investments 
carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the investments 
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

   Lotterywest assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired.

 (n)  Payables
   Payables, including amounts not yet billed, are recognised when Lottterywest becomes obliged to make future payments as 

a result of a purchase of assets or services at the amounts payable. Other than payables in respect of prizes and returns to 
beneficiaries (see 2(o) and 2(p) below), settlement generally occurs within 30 days, as a result the carrying amount is considered 
to be equivalent to fair value.
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  Provisions – Other
  Employment on costs
   Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax, are not employee benefits and are 

recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on 
costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of Lotterywest’s ‘Employee benefits expense’. The 
related liability is included in ‘Employment on cost provision’.

 (r)  Accrued Salaries
   Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay period 

for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a few days of the 
end of the financial year. Lotterywest considers the carrying amount of the accrued salaries to be equivalent to the net fair 
value.

 (s)  resources received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value
   Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised at fair value. Where 

resources received represent a service the Lotterywest would pay for, a corresponding expense is recognised. Receipts of 
assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

   Assets and services received from the other State Government agencies are disclosed separately under Income from State 
Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

 (t)  Goods and Services Tax and Grants from State Government
   The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not applied to the consumption of gambling services. It is however, applied to the 

operators’ margin defined as the subscription less the amount of prizes. Accordingly the State Government provides 
reimbursement to gambling operators (including Lotterywest) for GST paid on the operators’ margin. Lotterywest applies the 
reimbursement to maintain the level of returns to beneficiaries.

   The GST paid on Lotterywest’s operating margin is disclosed as a cost of producing trading profit (see note 3). Treasurers’ 
Instruction 1102 also requires the reimbursement of the GST to be disclosed as a Grant from the State Government rather than 
offset against the cost to which it applies.

 (u)  Foreign Currency Translation
   Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the rates in existence at the dates of the transactions. Foreign 

currency receivables and payables at reporting date are translated at exchange rates current at reporting date. Exchange gains 
and losses (if any) are brought to account in determining the result for the year.

  (v)  Comparative Figures
   Prior year comparatives have been reclassified, where necessary, to achieve consistency in disclosure and conform with 

presentation in the current financial period.

 (w)  reporting Entity
  The reporting entity is the Lotteries Commission.

  Superannuation
   The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer public sector superannuation 

arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular 
schemes for public sector employees varies according to commencement and implementation dates.

   Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, 
or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.

   Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS 
became non contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment 
on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members 
of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became able to choose their preferred superannuation fund. Lotterywest makes 
concurrent contributions to GESB or other funds on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish Lotterywest’s 
liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the pension scheme or GSS.

   The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the GSS are defined benefit schemes. 
These benefits are wholly unfunded and the liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the reporting period. 
The liabilities under these schemes have been calculated separately for each scheme annually by GESB’s actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method.

   The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

   The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid by Lotterywest to the GESB, are 
defined contribution schemes. The liabilities for current service superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and the 
GESBS are extinguished by the concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GESB.

   The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purpose of employees and whole of government reporting. However, 
from Lotterywest’s perspective, apart from the transfer benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119 Employee 
Benefits.

  Superannuation expense
  The superannuation expense of the defined benefit plan is made up of the following elements:
  • Current service cost;
  • Interest cost (unwinding of the discount);
  • Actuarial gains and losses; and
  • Past service cost.

  Actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plans are recognised immediately as income or expense in profit or loss.

  The superannuation expense of the defined contribution plans are recognised as and when the contributions fall due.
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5. Lotteries Operations
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Employee Benefits Expenses  12,512 13,952
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  4,523 5,878
 Telecommunications and Gaming System Expenses  5,010 5,095
 Sales, Marketing and Distribution Expense  15,036 14,333
 Other Expenses  5,760 4,448
   
      42,841 43,706

6. Grants and Community Development Operations

  These expenses are costs associated with the distribution of direct grants to eligible organisations.

      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Employee Benefits Expenses  6,824 3,313
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  2,481 211
 Other Expenses  3,291 2,533
  
      12,596 6,057

3. Trading Profit
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Sales of Goods 762,681 683,344
 Cost of Sales   
 Prizes    (428,162) (383,415)
 Commission paid to our Retailers  (61,174) (56,010)
 Goods and Services Tax (see note 2(t)) (30,420) (27,275)

     (519,756) (466,700)
   
 Trading Profit 242,925 216,644

  
  Allocation of prize monies is between 55.5% to around 61%, going up to 65% of sales net of commission. The prize allocation for 

the national games is determined by the national Bloc members participating in the Lotto games except for the gaming products 
which are run directly by Lotterywest.

 The prize allocation for each game requires approval of the Minister and the details are contained in the game permits.

 The prize pool is supplemented from time to time by additional prizes, the values of which are included in the totals above.

 •  Retailers are paid a commission for the sale of all products and Player Registration Service (PRS) subscriptions. PRS commission 
is deducted from reported PRS fee.

4. Other Revenue
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Forfeited Prizes   8,327 7,293
 Retailers Fees  4,029 3,999
 Players Registration Service Fees 150 180
 Other Revenue 68 78
   
     12,574 11,550
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9. Receivables
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Current   
  Lotterywest Retailers 13,778 3,584
  GST Receivable 1,977 2,376
  Accrued Interest 1,985 1,451
  Other Debtors  148 35
  Allowance for Impairment of Receivables(a) — (40)
  
     17,888 7,406

 (a) The allowance for impairment of receivables relates to an isolated receivable amount.

10. Held to Maturity Financial Assets
 
 Lotterywest’s financial investments are made consistent with the  
 Financial Management Act 2006 and the Trustees Act 1962 (as amended).
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Current investments (maturity less than 1 year)  
  Short Term Products 222,938 206,341
     
 Non Current investments (maturity more than 1 year)  
  Floating Rate Notes 36,045 49,545

11. Work in Progress
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Other Projects (a) 1,450 438

 
  (a) This represents software and development costs incurred for the information technology projects along with building 

improvements.
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7. Returns to Beneficiaries

 The Act mandates for the following allocations from net subscriptions of all products:

 Statutory Grants
 These grants are made to the credit of consolidated accounts for appropriation to Agency Special Purpose Accounts. 
  40% to the Hospital Fund (Health Operating – State Treasury)
 5% to the Arts Lotteries Account (State Treasury)
 5% to the Sports Lotteries Account (State Treasury)

 Direct Grants
  12.5% to eligible organisations for charitable or benevolent purposes and up to 5% in total for the Perth International Arts Festival 

and for the Western Australian Commercial Film Industry. Any remaining surplus from Lotterywest’s operations is available for 
distribution as direct grants.

      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Hospital Fund 112,375 101,012
 Arts Lotteries Account 14,047 12,627
 Sports Lotteries Account 14,047 12,627
 Perth International Arts Festival 5,500 5,228
 Western Australia Commercial Film Industry 5,500 6,863
 Direct Grants  106,889 101,978
  
     258,358 240,335
 Less Grants Not Taken Up (1,381) (1,582)
 
     256,977 238,753

8. Grants from State Government 
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 GST reimbursement for gambling margin (Accounting Policy Note 2(t)) 30,420 27,275

116 Lotterywest Annual Report 2012  117



reconciliations

•  Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current and previous 
financial years are set out below:

     Land Buildings Leasehold  Equipment Computer Total
       Improvements  & Fittings  Equipment 
        And Works
        of Art

2012    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
      
Carrying Amount at Start of Year 5,780 7,358 895 1,912 4,904 20,849
Additions   — — — — 240 240
Depreciation  — (160) (164) (597) (2,407) (3,328)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 5,780 7,198 731 1,315 2,737 17,761

     Land Buildings Leasehold  Equipment Computer Total 
       Improvements  & Fittings  Equipment 
        And Works
        of Art

2011    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
      
Carrying Amount at Start of Year 4,193 7,981 755 2,453 6,779 22,161
Additions   — — 273 204 507 984
Revaluation   1,587 (623) — — — 964
Depreciation   — (170) (133) (745) (2,382) (3,430)
Depreciation write back on Revaluation — 170 — — — 170

Carrying Amount at End of Year 5,780 7,358 895 1,912 4,904 20,849

12. Property, Plant and Equipment
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Land at Fair Value (a)   5,780 5,780
   
 Buildings at Fair Value (a)  7,358 7,358
 Buildings Accumulated Depreciation  (160) —
  
      7,198 7,358
   
 Works of Art at Fair Value  78 78
   
 Leasehold Improvements at Cost  1,440 1,440
 Less Accumulated Depreciation  (709) (545)
      
      731 895
   
 Equipment & Fittings at Cost  5,087 5,087
 Less Accumulated Depreciation  (3,850) (3,253)
  
      1,237 1,834
   
 Computer Equipment at Cost  14,489 14,249
 Less Accumulated Depreciation  (11,752) (9,345)
  
      2,737 4,904

 Total Net Book Value of Property, Plant & Equipment   17,761 20,849

 (a)  All land and buildings were revalued by an independent valuer on 1 July 2011 (Western Australian Land Information Authority 
Valuation Services). There was no change to the valuations this financial year. 
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14. Payables
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Current   
 Prizes   
  Unclaimed Prizes in Current Year(a) 29,054 24,051
 
 returns to Beneficiaries   
  Hospital Fund 1,778 1,404
  Arts Lotteries Account 371 324
  Sports Lotteries Account 371 324
  Direct Grants(b) 144,142 127,631
  
     146,662 129,683
 
 Other   
  Trade Creditors 3,118 3.267
  Other Creditors and Accruals 7,923 5.478
  
     11,041 8,745
     
     186,757 162,479
 
 Non Current   
 Prizes   
  Unclaimed Prizes in Future Years(c) 400 450

 Total Payables 187,157 162,929

 
 (a)   For Lotterywest’s current games prizes are payable as a one off lump sum payment which must be claimed within 12 months of 

winning the prize. This payable represents the amount of prizes won but not yet claimed.

 (b)   This relates to direct grants approved but not yet paid at year end. The liability arises from the requirement for grant 
beneficiaries to demonstrate compliance with grant conditions prior to payment.

 (c)  This liability represents a now discontinued game where the prize took the form of an annuity.

13. Intangibles
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Computer Software 35,752 36,129
 Less Accumulated Amortisation (10,760) (7,083)
  
     24,992 29,046

 reconciliations

  •  Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial 
years are set out below:

      Computer Software
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Carrying Amount at Start of Year 29,046 19,481
 Additions  79 12,224
 Adjustment(a)  (456) —
 Amortisation Expense  (3,677) (2,659)
 
 Carrying Amount at End of Year 24,992 29,046

 (a) This relates to a credit adjustment of an intangible asset which was capitalised in the previous year.
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      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Long Service leave   
   Within 12 months   794 850
  More than 12 months   1,854 1,577
   
      2,648 2,427

 (c)  The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including 
workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, 
apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in Note 5 and Note 6 (Other Expense).

 (d) Bonus Prizes consist of amounts set aside for future bonus draws and future guaranteed prize pools to promote sales.

 (e) The liability for superannuation entitlements has been derived from information from the GESB

Pre-transfer Benefit Gold State Superannuation Scheme   
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Current Service Cost — —
 Interest Cost (Unwinding of the Discount) 10 77
 Net Actuarial Losses (Gains) Recognised 32 (6)
  
     42 71

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
 Present Value of Unfunded Obligations 232 190
 
 Liability in the Statement of Financial Position 232 190
   
Reconciliation of the unfunded liability recognised in the  
Statement of Financial Position is as follows:
 Liability at the Start of the Year 190 119
 Interest Cost (Unwinding of Discount) 10 77
 Net Actuarial Losses (Gains) Recognised 32 (6)
 
 Liability at the End of Year 232 190

 Lotterywest has no liability or expense under AASB 119 Employee Benefits arising from the pension scheme.

15. Provisions
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Current   
  Employee Benefits Provision   
  Annual Leave (a)  1,466 1,801
  Long Service Leave (b)  2,116 1,889
  Other Provisions   
  Employee On Costs (c)  591 527
  Bonus Prizes (d)  19,326 14,087
  
      23,499 18,304

 Non-Current   
  Employee Benefits Provision   
  Long Service Leave (b)  532 538
  Superannuation Entitlements (e)  232 190
  Other Provisions   
  Employee On Costs (c)  88 150
  
      852 878
  
  Total Provisions  24,351 19,182

 (a)  Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least  
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected  
to occur as follows:

 
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Annual leave   
   Within 12 months   660 1,300
  More than 12 months   806 501
   
      1,466 1,801

 (b)  Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at 
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected 
to occur as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012

122 Lotterywest Annual Report 2012  123



17. Equity
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Asset revaluation reserve (a)   
  Balance at Start of Year  8,373 7,239
  Asset Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)  — 1,134
  
  Balance at the end of the period  8,373 8,373

 Retained Earnings (b)   
  Balance at Start of the Year  124,144 138,390
  (Loss) for the Period  (8,349) (14,246)
 
 Balance at the end of the period  115,795 124,144

 Total Equity   124,168 132,517

 (a)   The asset revaluation reserve records increments in the fair value of land and buildings and decrements to the extent that such 
decrements relate to increments on the same asset previously recognised in equity.

 (b)   This represents the accumulated retained earnings at the end of the reporting period, and details the level of accumulated 
profits from previous years.

Principles Used in the Actuarial Assumptions    
      2012 2011
      % %

 Gold State Superannuation Scheme   
  Discount Rate (Active Members) (a) 2.8 5.3
  Expected Salary Increase Rate 5.5 4.5

 (a)  The discount rate is based on the 10 year Government bond rate.

 Movements in Other Provisions   
 Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year,  
 other than employees benefits are set out below:
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Bonus Prizes   
 Carrying Amount at Start of Year 14,087 12,451
 Additional Provisions Recognised 33,183 24,657
 Transferred to Bonus Prizes (27,907) (23,021)

 Carrying Amount at End of Year 19,363 14,087
 
 Employment On-Cost Provision   
 Carrying Amount at Start of Year 677 636
 Additional Provisions Recognised 2,753 2,257
 Payment/Other Sacrifices of Economic Benefit (2,751) (2,216)
 
 Carrying Amount at End of Year 679 677

16. Sales in Advance
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Monies received in advance for future draws (a) 3,172 5,217

 (a)   This represents tickets sold which relate to games where the draw will occur after the financial year and therefore the proceeds 
have not been recognised as revenue for the period.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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19. Other Disclosures

DEPrECiATiON AND AMOrTiSATiON EXPENSE
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Depreciation   
 Buildings   160 170
 Computer Equipment 2,407 2,382
 Furniture and Fittings 147 246
 Plant and Equipment 450 499
 Leasehold Improvements 164 133

 Total Depreciation 3,328 3,297
    
 Amortisation   
 Intangible Assets 3,677 2,659

 Total Amortisation 3,677 2,792

 Total Depreciation and Amortisation 7,005 6,089

rESOUrCES PrOViDED FrEE OF CHArGE
During the year the following resources were provided to Lotterywest free of charge:
      2012 2011
      $000 $000
   
 Legal Services 13 31

rEMUNErATiON OF AUDiTOr
The total fees to the Auditor General for statutory audits are as follows:
      2012 2011
      $000 $000
   
 Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators 120 107

18. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 

 reconciliation of Cash
  Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is  

reconciled to related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

 Cash and Cash Equivalents   
  Cash on Hand 306 208
  Cash at Bank 17,040 5,711

 Total Per Statement of Cash Flows 17,346 5,919

 reconciliation of Profit to Net Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities
      2012 2011
      $000 $000
   
 Profit/(Loss) for the Period (8,349) (14,246)
 Non cash items   
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 7,004  6,089
Cash Flows to/(from) Government   
 Statutory Grants 140,469  126,265
 GST Recoup Revenue (30,420) (27,275)
 Net GST Receipts/Payments (29,762) (28,252)
(increase)/decrease in assets   
 GST Reimbursement Receivable 259  (345)
 Trade Debtors (10,193) 10,564
 Other Debtors and Prepayments (154) 82
 Work-in-Progress — 5,624
 Inventories  (126) 825
 Accrued Interest (533) (300)
increase/(decrease) in liabilities   
 Sales in Advance (2,044) 1,475
 Direct Grants  16,511  (7,682)
 Unclaimed Prizes Payable 4,952  (12,310)
 Trade Creditors 2,798  1,876
 Other Creditors and Accruals (47) 1,026
 Current Provisions (112) 295
 Non Current Provisions 42  71
 Prize Provision 5,239 1,636
 Change in GST Receivables/Payables 30,161  27,620
   
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities before Cash Flows  
to State Government (Excluding investing Activities) 125,695  93,038

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FiNANCiAL iNSTrUMENTS

(a) Financial risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial instruments held by Lotterywest are cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, floating rate notes and receivables and 
payables. Lotterywest has limited exposure to financial risks. Lotterywest’s Treasury Policy focuses on managing the risks identified 
below.

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises where there is a possibility that counterparties will default on interest payments or capital repayments resulting in 
financial losses to Lotterywest.

In measuring risk at a counterparty level there are three components which include the probability of default by the counterparty(a), the 
current exposure to the counterparty(b), and the likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations(c).

(a)  Probability of default: Lotterywest will only deal with counterparties that have a minimum credit rating issued by Standard and 
Poors of A- long term and A2 short term, which is above investment grade (BBB). Other credit rating agencies can be used at the 
equivalent of the Standard and Poors ratings. This provides a high probability of repayment.

(b)  Current exposure to counterparties: Lotterywest deals mainly with major banks and financial institutions. The average exposure to 
these counterparties was $338.5 million. The maximum exposure to each counterparty is determined by their credit rating. The 
higher the credit rating the greater the maximum exposure, subject to an upper limit of 30% for a AAA rated counterparty.

(c)  Likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations: Lotterywest does not trade securities, nor are there any investments in securities 
which have embedded derivatives. Consequently Lotterywest does not have exposure to market movements in relation to capital 
repayment. Given the high credit quality of investments and the plain vanilla nature of those investments, the risk of default in 
relation to interest or capital is very low.

With respect to receivables, customers cannot pay for Lotterywest products on credit. Lotterywest collects these monies electronically 
from its retail network on a weekly basis and monitors the performance of retail outlets closely. All new retail outlets are requested to 
provide a bank guarantee equivalent to one week’s takings. Consequently there is no material default risk for receivables. There were no 
bank guarantees called upon during this financial year.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when Lotterywest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Lotterywest is exposed to liquidity risk 
through its trading in the normal course of its business.
Lotterywest maintains a balance between continuity of funding for operations and investments by appropriate use of cash flows, cash 
flow forecasts and short term investments in highly liquid products placed with major financial institutions. This ensures sufficient funds 
are available to meet commitments.

Market Risk
Lotterywest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. Lotterywest’s exposure to market risk 
for changes in interest rates relate to the whole investment portfolio and changes in interest rates which impact on investment income 
(see sensitivity analysis table). Lotterywest invests in the debt markets. Lotterywest has no borrowings. Other than as detailed in the 
interest rate sensitivity analysis table, Lotterywest has limited exposure to interest rate risks.

The primary objective of Lotterywest’s investment portfolio is capital preservation whilst generating an appropriate return. Investment in 
high quality debt market products where all investments are held to maturity and all counterparties are above investment grade, ensures 
a positive return and low risk of capital loss. The current investment portfolio only contains term deposits and floating rate notes. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012

rEMUNErATiON OF COMMiSSiONErS SENiOr OFFiCErS 
The number of Commissioners, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non monetary benefits and other benefits received, or due 
and receivable, for the financial year, fall within the following bands:

      2012 2011
      No. No
   
$1    –  $10,000 1 —
$10,001   –  $20,000 1 —
$20,001  –  $30,000 1 1
$30,001   – $40,000 3 4
$60,001   –  $70,000 1 1

     7 6
   
Total remuneration (,000) $214 $224

rEMUNErATiON OF SENiOr OFFiCErS 
The number of Senior Officers, other than Members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non 
monetary benefits and other benefits received, or due and receivable, for the financial year, fall within the following bands:

      2012 2011
      No. No
    
$110,001 – $120,000 — 1
$120,001 – $130,000 1 — 
$160,001 – $170,000 — 2
$170,001 – $180,000 1 2
$180,001 – $190,000 3 —
$190,001 – $200,000 — 1
$210,001 – $220,000 1 —
$230,001 – $240,000 — 1
$240,001 – $250,000 1 —
$300,001 – $310,000 1 1

     8 8
   
Total remuneration (,000) $1,622 $1,540
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Contractual Maturity Dates
     interest rate Exposure Past Due But Not impaired 

     Carrying  Weighted Variable Non- Within 1 2-3 3-4 4-5 More than Impaired 
     Amount Average  Interest Interest Year Years Years Years 5 Years Financial 
      Interest  Rate Bearing      Assets 
      Rate
      

2012    $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial Assets          
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,346 4.29% 17,346 — 17,346 — — — — —
Loan and Receivables 15,911 — — 15,911 15,911 — — — — —
Other Financial Assets  
Held-to-Maturity  258,983 5.48% 258,983 — 222,939 16,000 8,044 12,000 — —

     292,240  276,329 15,911 256,196 16,000 8,044 12,000 — —
          

     interest rate Exposure Past Due But Not impaired 

     Carrying  Weighted Variable Non- Within 1 2-3 3-4 4-5 More than Impaired 
     Amount Average  Interest Interest Year Years Years Years 5 Years Financial 
      Interest  Rate Bearing      Assets 
      Rate
      

2011    $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial Assets          
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,919 4.62% 5,919 — 5,919 — — — — —
Loan and Receivables 5,030 — — 5,030 5,030 — — — — 40 (a)
Other Financial Assets  
Held-to-Maturity  255,886 5.74% 255,886 — 206,341 22,500 14,000 5,045 8,000 —

     266,835  261,805 5,030 217,290 22,500 14,000 5,045 8,000 40 (a)

(a)  Refer to note 9(a)

 The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments
  In addition to cash, the carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of 

the reporting period are as follows:

      2012 2011
      $000 $000

Financial Assets  
Cash    17,346 5,919
Loan and Receivables (a) 15,911 5,030
Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 258,983 255,886
  
Financial Liabilities  
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost 187,157 162,929
  

 (a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Financial instrument Disclosures

Credit risk, Liquidity risk and interest rate risk Exposure
The following table details the exposure to liquidity risk and interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period. Lotterywest`s 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown on the 
following table. The table is based on information provided to senior management of Lotterywest and the Board. The contractual 
maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted amounts at the end of the reporting period. An adjustment for 
discounting has been made where material.

Lotterywest holds bank guarantees as collateral for its retailer debtors.

Lotterywest does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them 
being past due or impaired.
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interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of Lotterywest’s financial assets at the end of the reporting 
period. As all investments are represented by floating rate debt without hedging, exposure to interest rate movements is only influenced 
by the maturity dates of investments. For the purposes of the sensitivity analysis, timing is not a factor in the application of an interest 
rate increase or decrease. The sensitivity analysis provided is a movement of – 0.5% and 1%.

As at 30 June 2012 the cash rate was 3.5%.

      -0.5 % Change +1% Change
     Carrying  
     Amount (Loss) Profit

2012     $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets     
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,346 (87) 173
Other Financial Assets Held to Maturity 258,983 (1,295) 2,590
Loan and Receivables 15,911 — —
     
Financial Liabilities   
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Costs 187,157 — —

Total increase/(Decrease)  (1,382) 2,763

      
      -0.5 % Change +1% Change
     Carrying  
     Amount (Loss) Profit

2011     $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets     
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,919 (30) 59
Other Financial Assets Held to Maturity 255,886 (1,279) 2,559
Loan and Receivables 5,030 — —
     
Financial Liabilities   
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost 162,929 — —
     
Total increase/(Decrease)  (1,309) 2,618

Fair value
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are 
recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the specific notes.

Liquidity risk
The following table details the contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities.

     interest rate Exposure Maturity Date 

     Carrying  Weighted Fixed Variable Non- Adjustment Total Up to 3-12 1-2 
     Amount Average  Interest Interest Interest for Nominal 3 Months Months Years 
      Interest  Rate Rate Bearing Discounting Amount    
      Rate
      
2012    $000 % % % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial Liabilities          
Financial Liabilities 
Measured at Amortised  
Cost    187,157 — — — 187,157 — — 184,237 2,520 400
 
     187,157 — — — 187,157 — — 184,237 2,520 400

          
     interest rate Exposure Maturity Date 

     Carrying  Weighted Fixed Variable Non- Adjustment Total Up to 3-12 1-2 
     Amount Average  Interest Interest Interest for Nominal 3 Months Months Years 
      Interest  Rate Rate Bearing Discounting Amount    
      Rate
      
2011    $000 % % % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial Liabilities          
Financial Liabilities 
Measured at Amortised  
Cost    162,929 — — — 162,929 — — 160,427 2,052 450

     162,929 — — — 162,929 — — 160,427 2,052 450

Notes to the Financial Statements
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COMMiTMENTS FOr EXPENDiTUrE

The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant. 

Capital Expenditure Commitments
There were no expenditure commitments.

Operating Expenditure Commitments 
Operating expenditure commitments being contracted operating expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the financial 
statements are payable as follows:
      2012 2011
      $000 $000

Operating Expenditure Commitments  
 Maintenance Support for Enterprise Resources Planning and Online Gaming system    
 Not later than one year  — 1174
  
      — 1,174

Lease Commitments
  Commitment in relation to leases contracted at the reporting date but not  

recognised in the financial statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

Non Cancellable Property Lease Commitments (a)  
 Not later than one year  352 304
 Later than one year but not later than five years  1,347 1,217
 Later than five years  — 127
  
      1,699 1,648
 
Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments (b)   
 Not later than one year  111 92
 Later than one year but not later than five years  138 47
  
      249 139

Total Commitments  1,948 2,961

(a)  The property lease is a non cancellable lease with an eleven year term commencing from 1 December 2005, with rent payable 
monthly in advance. Contingent rent provision within the lease agreement requires that the minimum lease payments shall be 
increased by CPI and market review for every two years thereafter.

(b)  These amounts were provided by the Department of Treasury and relate to Lotterywest’s motor vehicle lease arrangements which 
operate under the State Fleet Funding Facility contract. Lotterywest’s vehicle leases are generally for two or three years.

EVENTS OCCUrriNG AFTEr THE END OF THE rEPOrTiNG PEriOD

There have been no events subsequent to the end of the reporting period which would have a material effect on Lotterywest’s financial 
statements at 30 June 2012.

CONTiNGENT ASSETS AND CONTiNGENT LiABiLiTiES
 
In addition to the assets and liabilities included in the financial statements, Lotterywest has no other contingent assets or  
contingent liabilities.

SCHEDULE OF iNCOME AND EXPENSE BY SErViCE

Lotterywest has two services. 
Service 1 – Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia; and
Service 2 – The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia.

     Sale of Lottery  Grants and Other 
     Products Distributions   Total
     2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
     $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

iNCOME 
Sales    762,681 683,344 — — 762,681 683,344
Interest Income  18,146 18,801 — — 18,146 18,801
Other Revenue  12,574 11,550 — — 12,574 11,550

Total income   793,401 713,695 — — 793,401 713,695
      
EXPENSES     
Expenses from Lotteries Operations      
Cost of Sales   519,756 466,700 — — 519,756 466,700
Lotteries Operations 42,841 43,706 — — 42,841 43,706
Grants and Community Development Operations — — 12,596 6,057 12,596 6,057

Total Expenses   562,597 510,406 12,596 6,057 575,193 516,463
      
Profit/(Loss) before 
returns to Beneficiaries 230,804 203,289 (12,596) (6,057) 218,208 197,232
Grants from State Government 30,420 27,275 — — 30,420 27,275
Grants Transfer  (261,224) (230,564) 261,224 230,564 — —

Amount Available for Distribution — — 248,628 224,507 248,628 224,507

Total returns to Beneficiaries — — 256,977 238,753 256,977 238,753

Net (Loss) for the period — — (8,349) (14,246) (8,349) (14,246)

 rELATED AND AFFiLiATED BODiES

The Act requires details of all grants to be listed separately which include amount of grant provided to any affiliated bodies. There were 
no related and/or affiliated bodies requiring disclosure for the year ended 30 June 2012 (or prior year ended 30 June 2011).

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(a) Sales 
  Lotterywest’s sales revenue for the 2011/12 financial year was $79.3 million (11.6%) higher than last year. The positive impact of the 

games’ changes and higher level of jackpots for OZ Lotto than the previous year are the main contributing factors.

(b)  Cost of Sales
  Prize allocation and commission paid to our retailers for selling lottery products are a direct proportionate of sales. The 11.6% 

increase in sales over the previous year resulted in a proportionate increase in prizes and retailers’ commission. 

(c) Goods and Services Tax
 The Goods and Services Tax increase is due to the increase in sales.

(d)  Forfeited Prizes
  Pursuant to the Act, players have 12 months to claim a lottery prize. If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is 

forfeited. Forfeited prizes are included in the pool of funds that become available for distribution to the Western Australian 
community through Lotterywest’s direct grants program. The increase in forfeited prizes amount for the 2011/12 financial year is 
mainly due to an unclaimed Division 1 prize of $1.6 million from the Megadraw 2010. 

(e) Lottery Activities 
  Operational expenses for the 2011/12 financial year were $5.7 million (11.5%) higher than last year. This is attributable to an 

increase in costs to meet salary increases, and to a lesser extent the commissioning of our grants system (Merlin).

(f)  Total Returns to Beneficiaries
  Statutory funding to Hospitals, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to section 22 of Act and is directly aligned to the level of 

net sales recorded. 

  Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 22 and 24 of the Act. The increase in funds available to the in the 2011/12 
financial year reflects the distribution of accumulated reserves, as is allowed for by the Act, to meet increasing demand from 
charitable and community organisations for financial support.

 

Direct Grants Summary

EXPLANATOrY STATEMENT

The following tables provide details of significant variations between actual revenues and expenditures for the financial year compared 
with the corresponding items for the preceding year and the corresponding items in the budget.

SiGNiFiCANT VAriATiONS

Actual Revenues and Expenditures for 2011/12 and 2010/11

      2012  2011
       Actual Actual Variance 
      $000 $000 $000
 
revenue    
 Sales (a)    762,681 683,344 79,337
Less: Cost of Sales    
 Prizes (b)    428,162 383,415 (44,747)
 Retailers’ Commission (b)  61,174 56,010 (5,164)
 Goods and Services Tax (c)  30,420 27,275 (3,145)
 
 Total Cost of Sales  519,756 466,700 (53,056)

Trading Profit   242,925 216,644 26,281
    
Other revenue    
 Interest    18,146 18,801 (655)
 Forfeited Prizes (d)  8,327 7,293 1,034
 Retailer Fees   4,029 3,999 30
 Player Registration Service Fee  150 180 (30)
 Other    68 78 (10)

 Total revenues from Lottery Activities  30,720 30,351 369
    
Expenses    
 Lotteries Operations  42,841 43,706 865
 Grants and Community Development Operations  12,596 6,057 (6,539)

 Total Expenses from Lottery Activities (e)  55,437 49,763 (5,674)
    
Profit before returns to Beneficiaries  218,208 197,232 20,976
    
 Returns to Beneficiaries    
 Direct Grants   116,508 112,486 (4,022)
 Hospital Fund  112,375 101,013 (11,362)
 Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts  28,094 25,254 (2,840)
 
 Total returns to Beneficiaries (f)  256,977 238,753 (18,224)
    
 GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin  30,420 27,275 3,145

Net (Loss)    (8,349) (14,246) 5,897
     

Notes to the Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE BUDGET

Lotterywest’s budget for the fiscal year 2012/13 is designed to meet operational and financial objectives as well as long term outcomes 
and strategies documented in the Strategic Development Plan. 

Lotterywest’s operations expense budget of $60.3 million represents an increase of $4.8 million (8.7%) from 2011/12. The increase in 
costs will result predominantly from salary increases and the extension of the advertising and marketing campaign.

The sales budget for 2012/13 of $762.1 million represents the estimated forward sales figure which was made using a lower sales 
forecast during the 2011/12 financial year. Consequently, our sales achieved for 2011/12 had exceeded the budget estimate for 
that period. Because of the additional benefit to sales as a result of the significant jackpots in 2011/12, the sales budget for 2012/13 
remains realistic. It would be imprudent to develop a sales budget based on jackpots that may not be realistic. Lotterywest applies 
a conservative sales forecast because our relationship with the statutory beneficiaries and would not be responsible to provide an 
unrealistic expectation which may impact on our beneficiaries planning outcomes. 

The Returns to Beneficiaries budget for 2012/13 totals $251.6 million and includes funding to:

• Hospital Fund $112.5 million
• Arts Lotteries Account   $14.1 million
• Sports Lotteries Account   $14.1 million
• Direct Grants (a) $111.0 million

(a) Include the Perth International Arts Festival and the Western Australia Commercial Film Industry. 

Funding to the community represents 33% of gross sales. 

The budgeted net result of a $14.0 million deficit is based on a strategic decision to distribute residual monies surplus to those required 
to operate our business, as is contemplated for by section 24 of the Act to allocate funds through to the Direct Grants Program.
 
 

OPErATiNG BUDGET

In accordance with the Treasurer’s Instruction 953, this statement shows the 2012/13 Budget estimate for the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. This statement is not subject to audit. The Minister approved the budget in June 2012.

      2013 2012 
      Budget Actual Variance
      $000 $000 $000

iNCOME   
revenue   
 Sales    762,147 762,681 (534)
 Interest Revenue  14,000 18,146 (4,146)
 Other Revenue  10,616 12,574 (1,958)

Total income    786,763 793,401 (6,638)
   
EXPENSES   
Expenses   
 Cost of Sales   518,657 519,756 1,099
 Lotteries Operations  46,686 42,841 (3,845)
 Grants and Community Development Operations  13,580 12,596 (984)
 Returns to Beneficiaries  251,599 256,977 (5,378)
 
Total Expenses   830,522 832,170 (1,648)
 
Loss Before Grants from State Government  (43,759) (38,769) (4,990)
 Grant from State Government  29,766 30,420 (654)

(Loss) for the Period  (13,993) (8,349) (5,644)

 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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     Requests Approved Amount Granted
     2012 2011 2012 2011
     No. No. $000 $000

Total requests on agenda 1,335 1,410 133,203 132,191
Total approved requests 1,307 1,366 117,915 114,069
Total requests not approved 28 44 4,913 4,273

     Requests Approved Amount Granted
     2012 2011 2012 2011
     No. No. $000 $000

Community Cultural 249 274 4,152 4,435
Community Sector Development 73 96 2,097 2,413
Community Support and Development     
 Community Spaces 118 122 22,045 22,973
 Community Support 208 197 27,251 13,190
 Community Support – Specific — — — —
 Emergency Relief 98 102 4,149 3,611
 Emergency Services 32 37 3,410 4,517
 Social Research 3 4 382 1,312
 Big Ideas (a)  34 27 8,116 7,722
Cultural & Natural Heritage     
 Cultural Heritage 98 102 3,090 3,266
 Natural Heritage 34 31 1,531 924
Priority Groups with Special Needs     
 Indigenous People 50 41 6,196 6,791
 Children & Families 89 94 5,264 4,725
 People with Disabilities 108 119 12,907 12,677
 Seniors   54 63 3,161 3,687
 Young People 57 55 3,164 11,184
Statutory Allocations as recommended by the Commission   
 Perth International Arts Festival 1 1 5,500 5,413
 Screenwest  1 1 5,500 5,229

Total Net Grant Approvals   117,915 114,069

(a) Big Ideas
 Big Ideas grants help create enduring community assets and support large scale projects and events.

Comprehensive income Statement 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
     Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget
     $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
      
Sales revenue  724,859 701,483 683,344 762,681 762,147
Less Cost of Sales     
 Prizes   406,395 392,952 383,415 428,162 427,572
 Retailers’ Commission 59,525 57,772 56,010 61,174 61,320
Add Other revenue     
 Interest   16,275 14,687 18,801 18,146 14,000
 Forfeited Prizes 6,887 9,102 7,293 8,327 6,115
 Retailer Fees  4,284 4,237 3,999 4,029 4,352
 Player Registration Service  530 471 180 150 150
 Loss on Disposals of Non Current Assets (4) — — — —
 Other   194 78 78 68 —

Net revenue   287,105 279,334 274,270 304,065 297,872

Less Expenses     
 Operating Expenses 49,301 47,187 49,763 55,437 60,266

Profit    237,804 232,147 224,507 248,628 237,606
Less returns to Beneficiaries 233,788 234,803 238,753 256,977 251,599

Net Profit/(Loss)  4,016 (2,656) (14,246) (8,349) (13,993)

Assets     
 Other Financial Assets 253,677 269,005 255,886 258,983 245,510
 Other Current Assets 46,411 31,597 13,627 37,111 29,580
 Non Current Assets 48,516 47,704 50,333 42,754 38,155
 
 Total Assets  348,604 348,306 319,846 338,848 313,245
 
 Liabilities  199,086 202,677 187,329 214,680 203,070

Net Assets   149,518 145,629 132,517 124,168 110,175

This table is included as a supplement to the Annual Report to provide the reader with an overview of the Lotterywest’s performance 
and expectations. The Goods and Services Tax payable on the gambling margin and the grant and subsidies from State Government 
have not been included in this statement. However, it does not affect the five year summary on the net profit and net assets position.
 

Five Year Summary of Financial Data Direct Grants Summary

Direct Grants Summary

For the year ended 30 June 2012
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 Bullsbrook Community Kindergarten Inc  $9,425
 Bunbury Agricultural Society Inc  $15,000
 Bunbury Bridge Club Inc  $9,187
 Bunbury Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Busselton  $144,231
 Bunbury Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Denmark  $61,471
 Bunbury Diocesan Trustees – St Marys Community Care (Busselton)  $24,700
 Bunbury Diocesan Trustees – St Marys Community Care (Busselton)  $19,600
 Bunbury Dolphin Discovery Inc  $8,406
 Bunbury Multicultural Group Inc  $10,649
 Bunbury Regional Theatre Inc  $71,000
 Bunbury Sea Rescue Inc  $11,662
 Bunbury Senior High School Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $14,600
 Bunbury Seniors Computer Club Inc  $10,524
 Bunbury Women’s Club  $57,356
 Burdekin – Youth In Action Inc  $33,490
 Burdiya Aboriginal Corporation  $53,739
 Burnna Yurrul Aboriginal Corporation  $126,267
 Bush Heritage Australia  $26,099
 Busnet Computer Club Inc  $2,996
 Busselton Allsports Inc  $20,000
 Busselton Camera Club Inc  $2,000
 Busselton Family Playgroup Inc  $3,410
 Busselton Pottery Group Inc  $3,905
 Busselton Repertory Club  $200,000
 Busselton Senior Citizens Centre Inc  $26,110
 Busselton Toy Library Inc  $2,301
 Busselton Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $40,906
 Busselton-Dunsborough Environment Centre Inc – GeographeCommunity Landcare Nursery  $15,000
 Byford Progress Association  $15,000
 Calvary Youth Services Mandurah Inc  $1,975
 Cambodian Buddhist Society of Western Australia  $247,905
 Cambridge Coastcare Inc  $11,400
 Cannery Arts Centre Inc  $5,000
 Cannery Arts Centre Inc  $8,697
 Canning Mens’ Shed Inc  $11,273
 Capel Fest Inc  $20,000
 Carers Association of Western Australia Inc  $30,000
 Carine Radio Controlled Car Club Inc  $4,750
 Carnarvon Family Support Service Inc  $5,354
 Carnarvon Family Support Service Inc  $13,830
 Carnarvon Family Support Service Inc  $33,000
 Carnarvon Heritage Group Inc  $7,000
 Cat Sterilisation Society Inc  $25,770
 Catch Music Inc  $16,225
 Catholic Agricultural College Bindoon Emergency Services Cadets  $12,788
 Catholic Education Commission of WA Trustees – Sacred Heart Outside School Hours Care  $7,678
 Catholic Education Commission of WA Trustees – St Simon Peter Outside School Hours Care  $10,040
 Catholic Education Commission of WA Trustees Association Inc – Holy Name Early Learning Centre  $167,386
 Cecil Andrews Senior High School Emergency Services Cadets  $6,000
 Celebrate Western Australia Inc  $620,000
 Centacare Kimberley Association Inc  $46,000
 Central Agcare Inc  $10,000
 Central Desert Native Title Services Ltd  $175,000
 Centrecare Inc – Djooraminda Service  $20,574
 Centrecare Inc  $69,800
 Centrepoint Church Inc  $19,889
 Cerebral Palsy Association of Western Australia Ltd – Goodwill Industries  $926,450
 Cerebral Palsy Association of Western Australia Ltd  $20,000
 Chamber of Arts and Culture WA Inc  $50,000
 Champion Lakes Christian Church Inc. – Southside Care  $10,000
 Charity Link Inc  $205,000

 Children’s Services Support Unit WA Inc  $420,743
 Christian Centre For Social Action Inc  $13,346
 Christian City Church Hepburn Heights Inc  $40,483
 Christian Family Church Inc  $11,000
 Chung Wah Association  $6,644
 Chung Wah Association  $74,125
 City of Albany – Kalgan Bushfire Brigade  $7,735
 City of Albany  $20,000
 City of Albany  $55,600
 City of Albany  $27,754
 City of Armadale – Bakers House  $339,879
 City of Armadale – History House Museum  $18,640
 City of Armadale  $33,740
 City of Bayswater  $40,000
 City of Belmont – Harman Street Activity Centre  $297,396
 City of Belmont  $71,503
 City of Bunbury  $20,000
 City of Bunbury  $111,583
 City of Bunbury  $100,500
 City of Bunbury  $48,490
 City of Busselton – Community Resource Centre  $2,377,335
 City of Busselton  $24,000
 City of Canning  $19,450
 City of Canning  $2,500
 City of Cockburn Pipe Band Inc  $10,000
 City of Cockburn Returned and Services League Sub Branch Social Club Inc  $1,911
 City of Cockburn  $32,482
 City of Fremantle – Fremantle Festival  $40,000
 City of Fremantle – Hilton Community Centre  $585,500
 City of Fremantle – Warrawee Women’s Refuge  $120,705
 City of Fremantle – Warrawee Women’s Refuge  $9,091
 City of Fremantle  $50,000
 City of Gosnells  $20,000
 City of Gosnells  $28,880
 City of Greater Geraldton – Queens Park Theatre  $60,000
 City of Greater Geraldton  $35,000
 City of Greater Geraldton  $20,000
 City of Greater Geraldton  $26,500
 City of Joondalup  $42,500
 City of Joondalup  $60,000
 City of Joondalup  $40,000
 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $20,000
 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $320,000
 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $57,500
 City of Mandurah  $20,000
 City of Mandurah  $111,100
 City of Melville Bridge Club  $15,000
 City of Melville Citizens Relief Fund  $14,900
 City of Melville  $21,586
 City of Nedlands  $20,000
 City of Nedlands  $47,644
 City of Perth  $30,000
 City of Perth  $500,000
 City of Rockingham – Baldivis District Library and Community Centre  $1,300,000
 City of Rockingham – Rockingham City Community Garden  $29,397
 City of Rockingham  $19,245
 City of Rockingham  $1,000
 City of Rockingham  $48,126
 City of South Perth  $30,000
 City of South Perth  $350,000
 City of Stirling – Stirling Womens Centre  $10,000

Organisation Name Amount Granted
A Cappella West Inc  $4,600
 Aboriginal Legal Service of Western Australia Inc  $653,471
 Acacia Support Centre Inc  $17,509
 Access Housing Australia Ltd  $68,170
 Activ Foundation Inc  $143,514
 Advocare Inc  $2,840
 African Women’s Council of Australia (AWCOA)  $1,000
 Agelink Theatre Inc  $8,236
 Agencies for South West Accommodation Inc  $2,000,000
 Agencies for South West Accommodation Inc  $45,000
 Aidan’s Place Inc  $14,288
 Albany & Regional Volunteer Service Inc  $11,923
 Albany Bridge Club Inc  $2,090
 Albany Community Legal Centre Inc  $8,228
 Albany Worklink Inc  $251,094
 Allambee Counselling Inc  $29,000
 Alternative Technology Association Inc  $20,000
 Anglicare WA Inc  $743,100
 Anglicare WA Inc  $2,000
 Ardyaloon Inc  $30,325
 Armadale Domestic Violence Intervention Project Inc  $1,960
 Armadale Gosnells and Districts Youth Resources Inc  $4,830
 Armadale Home Help Service for the Aged and the Disabled  $120,000
 Armadale Independent Film Festival Inc.  $19,671
 Army Museum of Western Australia Foundation  $548,000
 Artatac – Busselton Beach Festival Inc  $20,000
 Arthritis Foundation of WA Inc  $13,190
 Artrage Inc  $750,000
 Arts Margaret River Inc  $39,000
 Artsouthwa Inc  $12,375
 Association for the Blind of Western Australia Inc  $250,000
 Association for the Welfare of Children in Hospital – WAInc  $2,000
 Asthma Foundation of Western Australia Inc  $680,000
 Atlantis Productions Inc  $4,358
 Augusta Men’s Shed Inc  $94,555
 Augusta River Festival Inc  $7,952
 Australasian Institute For Maritime Archaeology Inc  $9,566
 Australia Facetors’ Guild WA Branch  $3,370
 Australian Arab Association Inc  $1,000
 Australian Army Cadets Association WA Inc  $88,296
 Australian Association for Environmental Education WA Chapter Inc  $119,778
 Australian Association for the Development of Role Models and Leaders Inc  $85,000
 Australian Business and Community Network  $5,000
 Australian Dance Council – Ausdance (Western Australian Branch) Inc  $15,355
 Australian Doulas Inc  $5,550
 Australian Family Association – WA Branch  $12,174
 Australian Kidney Foundation  $51,357
 Australian Railway Historical Society (WA Division)  $5,160
 Australian Railway Historical Society (WA Division)  $13,700
 Australian Red Cross Society – Western Australian Division  $423,318
 Australian Red Cross Society – Western Australian Division  $60,000
 Australian Red Cross Society – Western Australian Division  $5,000
 Australian Red Cross WA Division – Lady Lawley Cottage  $20,000
 Australian Science Communicators – WA  $14,994
 Australian Youth Climate Coalition Ltd  $10,260
 Australian-Asian Association of Western Australia Inc  $296,868
 Australian-Asian Association of Western Australia Inc  $18,000
 Autism Association of Western Australia Inc  $17,567
 Avon Youth Community and Family Services Inc  $15,000
 AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd  $565,000

 AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd  $31,225
 Bakers Hill Progress and Recreation Association  $8,263
 Bakers Hill Progress and Recreation Association  $2,445
 Baldivis Children’s Forest Inc  $1,564
 Baldivis Primary School Parents and Citizens’ Association Inc  $6,380
 Ballajura Community College Police Ranger Unit  $1,557
 Bangladesh Australia Association of Western Australia Inc  $15,000
 Baptist Union of Western Australia – Serpentine Camping Centre  $110,996
 Baptist Union of Western Australia  $33,935
 Baptistcare Inc – Partners in Purpose  $60,000
 Baptistcare Inc  $2,500
 Barking Gecko Theatre Company Ltd  $8,754
 Bassendean Preservation Group Inc  $13,132
 Bassendean PS Playgroup  $11,900
 Bateman Playgroup Inc  $1,212
 Be Living Smart Inc  $165,578
 Beach Babes Playgroup  $5,600
 Beananging Kwuurt Institute  $35,000
 Befriend Inc  $9,487
 Belmont Spring Beans Playgroup  $2,390
 Benedictine Community of New Norcia  $2,000,000
 Bengali Association of Western Australia Inc  $5,000
 Beverley Community Resource Centre Inc  $15,574
 Beverley Historical Society Inc  $1,699
 Bibbulmun Track Foundation Inc  $1,050
 Bicton Men’s Shed Inc  $4,046
 Bidan Aboriginal Corporation  $14,990
 Bidyadanga Aboriginal Community La Grange Inc  $110,000
 Bina-waji Nyurra-nga Aboriginal Corporation  $5,136
 Binningup Community Association Inc  $5,512
 Birdwood Military Museum Society Inc  $10,000
 Black Cockatoo Preservation Society of Australia Inc  $660,020
 Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $87,000
 Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $198,432
 Bloodwood Tree Association Inc  $123,791
 Bloodwood Tree Association Inc  $6,000
 Blue Gum Early Learning and Child Care Centre Inc  $69,561
 Blues at Bridgetown Inc  $20,000
 Boab Festival At Derby  $20,000
 Boccia Rebels WA Inc  $2,109
 Boogurlarri Community House  $27,500
 Booragoon Occasional Child Care Centre Inc  $12,200
 Born Free Wildlife Carers Inc  $6,553
 Bremer Bay Community Resource and Visitor’s Centre Inc  $12,145
 Bridge Builders Ministries Inc  $13,176
 Bridgetown Family and Community Centre Inc  $3,214
 Bridgetown High School Emergency Services Cadets  $15,000
 Bridgewater Lifestyle Village Social, Sport and RecreationClub Inc  $12,663
 Brighton Community Garden Inc  $3,200
 Brightwater Care Group Inc – Edgewater  $18,000
 Brightwater Care Group Inc – Kailis House  $8,100
 British Ex-Services Association Inc  $1,025
 Brookton Community Services Inc  $17,250
 Brookton Community Services Inc  $42,000
 Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange  $40,000
 Broome Historical Society Inc  $25,000
 Broome Lotteries House Inc  $241,967
 Broome Volunteer Sea Rescue Group Inc  $34,785
 Broomehill Playgroup Inc.  $14,553
 Bruce Rock Community Resource Centre Inc  $17,157
 Brunswick River Restoration Action Group Inc  $15,000
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 Foodbank of Western Australia Inc  $1,123
 Foothills Information and Referral Service Inc  $20,000
 Forest Hill Denbarker Community Hall Committee Inc  $38,240
 Forgotten Australians Coming Together (FACT) Inc  $525,048
 FORM Contemporary Craft and Design Inc  $22,687
 Forrest Personnel Inc  $500,000
 Foster Care Association of Western Australia Inc  $11,868
 Foundation For Young Australians  $60,000
 Foundation Housing Ltd  $18,000
 Foundation Housing Ltd  $108,602
 Foundation Housing Ltd  $45,000
 Frank Konecny Community Centre Inc  $22,600
 Fremantle Bridge Club Inc  $15,000
 Fremantle Chamber of Commerce Inc  $24,519
 Fremantle Multicultural Centre Inc  $125,006
 Fremantle Multicultural Centre Inc  $20,000
 Fremantle Surf Life Saving Club Inc  $50,000
 Fremantle Volunteer Sea Rescue Group Inc  $11,136
 Fremantle Womens Health Centre Inc  $127,416
 Friends of Battye Library Inc  $34,255
 Friends of Bold Park Bushland Inc  $3,679
 Friends of Kings Park Inc  $390,000
 Friends of Oxfam Australia (Western Australia) Inc  $15,000
 Friends of the Art Gallery of Western Australia Inc  $36,120
 Friends of the Eastern Gates Lookout Inc  $55,450
 Friends of the Western Ground Parrot Inc  $4,653
 Friends of Worsley  $15,000
 Future Living Trust Inc  $20,390
 Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan Aboriginal Corporation  $117,193
 Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan Aboriginal Corporation  $38,000
 Geraldton Lotteries House Board of Management Inc  $165,000
 Geraldton Personnel Inc  $102,671
 Geraldton Resource Centre Inc  $77,000
 Geraldton Yamatji Patrol Aboriginal Corporation  $26,500
 Gilbert’s Potoroo Action Group Inc  $5,403
 Gillamii Centre Inc  $99,740
 Girls’ Brigade 2nd WA Division – Riverton 5th Perth  $11,043
 Girls’ Brigade 5th WA Division – Roleystone 11th Perth  $9,070
 Gnowangerup State Emergency Service Unit Inc  $15,000
 Goalball Western Australia Inc  $15,000
 Goldfields Individual and Family Support Association Inc  $15,450
 Goldfields Rehabilitation Services Inc  $7,999
 Gosnells Community Legal Centre Inc  $35,000
 Gosnells Toy Library Inc  $5,000
 Government House Foundation of Western Australia  $20,000
 Gowrie WA Inc  $276,757
 Graham (Polly) Farmer Foundation Inc – Wickham  $45,323
 Grand Lodge of Western Australian Freemasons Homes for theAged Inc  $5,215
 Grass Roots Growing Intellectually Impaired People Inc  $45,779
 Graylands Hospital Volunteer Service Inc  $16,500
 Great Southern Care Wildlife Inc  $13,697
 Green Skills Inc  $12,520
 Green Skills Inc  $15,000
 Greenwood Senior High School Police Rangers Unit  $7,850
 Gumala Aboriginal Corporation  $200,000
 Halls Creek Peoples Church Inc – Aged Care Facility  $4,600
 Harvest Lakes Residents’ Association Inc  $6,335
 Harvey Health and Community Services Group Inc – Family Support Program  $10,000
 Harvey Health and Community Services Group Inc  $5,202
 Harvey Mainstreet Inc  $20,000
 Hazel Orme Community Kindergarten Inc  $5,000

 Health Agencies Of The Yilgarn  $5,200
 Health Consumers Council WA Inc  $90,158
 Health Services Family Association Inc  $15,000
 Heart & Lung Transplant Foundation of Western Australia Inc  $6,000
 Heart Kids WA  $17,601
 Hedland Well Women’s Centre Inc  $39,505
 Hedland Well Women’s Centre Inc  $15,000
 Hedland Womens Refuge Inc  $1,500
 Helping Out People Everywhere Inc  $22,000
 Heritage Country Choir Inc  $6,500
 Hills Community Support Group-Community Living Program  $23,766
 Hindu Association of Western Australia Inc  $75,000
 Holy Spirit School Board P and F Association  $15,000
 Holyoake Australian Institute for Alcohol and Drug Addiction Resolutions Inc  $3,160
 Holyoake Australian Institute for Alcohol and Drug Addiction Resolutions Inc. – Midland  $1,000,000
 Honouring Indigenous War Graves Inc  $18,000
 Hopetoun Community Resource Centre Inc  $7,058
 Hotham Personnel Inc  $10,408
 Hulbert Street Projects Committee  $14,839
 Hungarian Golden Village and Cultural Centre Inc  $18,562
 Huntington’s WA Inc  $56,000
 I60 Community Services Inc  $5,300
 Ilankai Tamil Sangam of WA Inc  $75,340
 In Town Centre Inc  $15,000
 Incest Survivor’s Association Inc  $500,000
 Inclusion WA Inc  $30,000
 Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc  $2,279,497
 Injury Control Council of Western Australia Inc  $14,000
 Interchange Inc  $199,399
 International Forum of Reconciliation and Peace (IFORAP)  $10,153
 Intework Inc  $1,708,426
 Italo-Australian Welfare & Cultural Centre Inc  $10,000
 Jacaranda Community Centre Inc  $40,000
 Jerramungup Occasional Childcare Association Inc  $29,700
 Jewish Care WA Inc  $28,902
 Jewish Care WA Inc  $11,500
 Jidi Jidi Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC  $46,244
 Jobs South West Inc  $87,397
 Joondalup Christmas Lunch  $12,188
 Joondalup Lotteries House Inc  $172,500
 Joongari House\Wyndham Family Support Inc  $4,000
 June O’Connor Centre Inc  $115,420
 K9 Rescue Group Inc  $270,000
 Kalamunda District Pipe Band Inc  $15,000
 Kalamunda Districts Toy Library  $8,903
 Kalbarri Development Association Inc  $5,600
 Kalbarri Visitor Centre Inc  $11,632
 Kalbarri Visitor Centre Inc  $5,105
 Kalbarri Volunteer Sea Search & Rescue Group Inc  $8,445
 Kalgoorlie-Boulder Lotteries House Association Inc  $33,056
 Kalyuku Ninti – Puntuku Ngurra Ltd  $114,312
 Kandiwal (Aboriginal Corporation)  $158,467
 Karingal Neighbourhood Centre Inc  $25,815
 Karratha Emergency Relief Organisation Inc  $30,000
 Karratha Family Centre Inc  $19,844
 Katanning Community Childcare Centre Inc  $14,412
 Katanning Playgroup Inc  $11,000
 Kathleen Day Playgroup  $5,190
 Kellerberrin Community Men’s Shed Inc  $100,000
 Kellerberrin Community Resource Centre Inc  $32,802
 Kelmscott Church of Christ Inc  $18,700

 City of Stirling  $235,083
 City of Stirling  $20,000
 City of Stirling  $12,000
 City of Subiaco – Subiaco Museum  $15,000
 City of Swan  $58,700
 City of Vincent – Vincent Men’s Shed  $85,000
 City of Vincent  $20,000
 City of Wanneroo  $3,400
 City of Wanneroo  $85,000
 City West Lotteries House Inc  $1,775
 Coalition for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $10,000
 Coastal Kids Care Inc  $6,500
 Coastal Scottish Pipe Band WA Inc  $7,470
 Cockburn Senior Citizens’ Association  $7,511
 Coco C’Bay Association Inc  $5,249
 Coeliac Society of Western Australia, Inc  $23,816
 Collie Country Music Club Inc  $4,171
 Communicare Inc  $110,000
 Community Arts Network Western Australia Ltd  $320,000
 Community Arts Network Western Australia Ltd  $5,000
 Community Bridge Club  $5,272
 Community Home Care Inc  $1,193,546
 Community Housing Coalition of WA Inc  $35,969
 Community Housing Coalition of WA Inc  $2,000
 Community Legal Centres Association (Western Australia) Inc  $255,951
 Community Living Association Inc – Denmark  $17,258
 Community Living Association Inc  $89,686
 Community Midwifery WA Inc  $91,080
 Community Midwifery WA Inc  $18,700
 Community Vision Inc  $573,981
 Community Vision Inc  $30,000
 Compassionate Friends of Western Australia Inc  $51,744
 Congolese Community of WA Inc  $5,281
 ConnectGroups – Support Groups Association WA Inc  $24,356
 ConnectGroups – Support Groups Association WA Inc  $2,000
 Conservation Council of Western Australia  $165,189
 Constable Care Child Safety Foundation Inc  $104,940
 Cook Islands Community WA Inc  $11,022
 Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc  $30,000
 Co-operation Housing  $10,576
 Co-operation Housing  $33,900
 Coorow Community Resource Centre Inc  $8,375
 Coorow Playgroup  $4,955
 Corrigin District High School Bush Rangers WA Cadet Unit  $3,915
 Cottesloe Child Care Centre Inc  $1,885,390
 Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Inc  $2,000
 Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Inc  $191,250
 Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Inc  $153,102
 Country Arts WA Inc  $147,463
 Country Arts WA Inc  $100,000
 Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Inc  $19,970
 Cranbrook Tourist and Business Promotion Group  $3,857
 Croatian Folkloric Group Zrinjski Inc  $12,178
 Crooked Brook Forest Community Group  $15,000
 Crosslinks Inc  $45,680
 Crossways Community Services Inc  $108,483
 Crossways Community Services Inc  $40,000
 Cuby K9 Club  $2,850
 Curtin University of Technology – Centre for Behavioural Research in Cancer Control  $135,000
 Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia Inc  $4,150
 DADAA Inc  $67,914

 DADAA Inc  $20,000
 Dalyellup Beach Playgroup Inc  $15,000
 Damayang Filipino Inc  $10,000
 Dardanup & Districts Residents Association Inc  $2,210
 Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Inc  $14,973
 Darling Downs Residents Association Inc  $12,000
 Darlington Arts Festival Association Inc  $20,000
 Darlington Family Playgroup Inc  $14,537
 Denmark Arts Council  $20,006
 Denmark Historical Society Inc  $2,822
 Denmark Machinery Restoration Group Inc  $32,590
 Derby Playgroup  $13,896
 Diabetes Association of Western Australia Inc  $32,256
 Directions Family Support Association Inc  $12,400
 Directions Family Support Association Inc  $15,000
 Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation  $48,000
 Dogs’ Refuge Home WA  $180,000
 Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc  $29,000
 Donnybrook Apple Festival Inc  $4,000
 Down Syndrome Association of Western Australia Inc  $19,817
 Dreamfit Foundation  $10,587
 Dreamfit Foundation  $8,820
 Duke of Edinburghs Award In Australia (WA Division) Inc  $4,400
 Dumbartung Aboriginal Corporation  $221,150
 Dumbleyung and District Men’s Shed Inc  $14,069
 Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Inc  $5,000
 Dyslexic Centre Australia Inc  $14,976
 Early Childhood Intervention Australia (WA Chapter) Inc  $55,750
 Earlybirds Playgroup Inc  $15,000
 Earth Solutions – Avon Valley Inc  $15,000
 East Pilbara Independence Support Inc  $58,389
 Eastern Goldfields Historical Society Inc  $11,331
 Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $250,500
 Eastern Region Domestic Violence Services Network Inc  $7,500
 Eastlake Church Inc  $27,835
 EDGE Employment Solutions Inc  $510,392
 Edith Cowan University Student Guild  $48,400
 Edmund Rice Camps for Kids WA Inc  $20,000
 Edmund Rice Centre, Mirrabooka Inc  $160,000
 El Shaddai Kwinana Christian Fellowship Inc  $10,000
 Ellenbrook and Districts Men’s Shed Association Inc  $90,000
 Embroiderers Guild of Western Australia  $3,259
 Endeavour Child Care Centre  $13,520
 Environmental Defender’s Office WA Inc  $26,570
 EON Benevolent Fund Inc  $260,000
 Escare Inc  $11,110
 Esperance Care Services Inc  $15,000
 Esperance Dive Club Inc  $7,244
 Esperance Photographers Club  $3,633
 Esperance Senior High School – Bush Ranger Cadets  $13,627
 Esperance Theatre Guild Inc  $10,000
 Event Assist Inc  $14,000
 Exmouth Community Support Group Inc  $35,200
 Exmouth Cultural Arts Centre Inc  $6,955
 Fair Game Sports Equipment Inc  $8,980
 Fairholme Disability Support Group Inc  $135,265
 Family History Society of Rockingham and Districts Inc  $2,258
 Family Planning Association of Western Australia Inc  $2,820
 Federation of Western Australian Police and Community Youth Centres Inc  $13,731
 Federation of Western Australian Police and Community Youth Centres Inc  $128,923
 Festival of Busselton Inc  $10,000
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 Murdoch University  $30,000
 Murray Districts Historical Society Inc  $6,923
 Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia Inc  $2,313
 Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia Inc  $1,775
 Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia Inc  $15,551
 Museums Australia Inc  $59,000
 My Place Foundation Inc  $22,500
 NAIDOC Perth Inc  $30,000
 Nannup Arts Council  $15,000
 Nannup Community Resource Centre Inc  $20,000
 Nannup Garden Village Inc  $11,343
 Nannup Music Club Inc  $19,990
 Nardine Wimmins Refuge  $15,000
 Narembeen Numbats Occasional Child Care Association Inc  $14,083
 Narrogin Art Group Inc  $11,449
 Narrogin Regional Child Care Services Inc  $6,300
 Narrogin Spring Festival Inc  $6,880
 Nashos League of Western Australia Inc  $1,049
 National Association of Charitable Recycling OrganisationsInc  $13,100
 National Disability Services Ltd – National DisabilityServices Western Australia  $494,100
 National Disability Services Ltd – National DisabilityServices Western Australia  $2,000
 National Trust of Australia WA – Dowark  $23,000
 National Trust of Australia WA  $19,700
 National Trust of Australia WA  $2,289,224
 Naturaliste Childrens Community Centre Inc  $2,550
 Naturaliste University of the Third Age Inc  $2,660
 Naval Association of Australia, Rockingham City Sub-Section Inc  $4,361
 Nazareth Care – Geraldton  $34,400
 Nazareth Care – Geraldton  $100,000
 Nedlands Bridge Club Inc  $15,000
 Nedlands Primary School Parents & Citizens Association Inc  $15,000
 Nedlands Tennis Club  $12,890
 Neerigen Brook Primary School Parents and Citizens’ Association Inc  $15,000
 Neurological Council of Western Australia Inc  $20,787
 New Life Welfare WA Inc  $30,000
 Newman Women’s Shelter Inc  $15,000
 Ngaanyatjarra Council (Aboriginal Corporation) – Land and Culture  $178,300
 Ngala Children’s Services  $100,548
 Ngangganawili Aboriginal Community Controlled Health and Medical Services Aboriginal Corporation  $313,500
 Ngnowar-Aerwah Aboriginal Corporation  $66,300
 Ngunga Womens Group Aboriginal Corporation  $102,228
 Nindilingarri Cultural Health Services Inc  $6,028
 Ningaloo Whaleshark Festival Inc  $15,000
 Nintirri Centre Inc – Karijini Family Violence Prevention Service  $43,025
 Nintirri Centre Inc  $50,935
 Nomads Charitable and Educational Foundation  $13,098
 Noongar Mia Mia Pty Ltd  $120,000
 Noranda Playgroup Inc  $8,061
 North Metro Pipe Band Inc  $15,000
 North Perth Business and Residents Group Inc  $20,000
 North Perth Out of School Care Inc  $12,450
 North West Cape Exmouth Aboriginal Corporation  $60,636
 Northam Heritage Forum Inc  $71,882
 Northam Men’s Shed Inc  $46,929
 Northampton Child Care Association Inc  $22,900
 Northam’s Avon Descent Association  $95,896
 Northcliffe Visitor Centre Inc  $8,060
 Northern Suburbs Community Legal Centre Inc  $17,000
 Nuer Community Association of Western Australia Inc  $8,700
 Nuhra Life Enrichment Centre Inc  $18,305
 Nungarin Community Learning Centre Inc  $2,014

 Nutrition Australia WA Division Inc  $2,671
 Nyabing Historical Society Inc  $12,130
 Nyabing Primary School Parents and Citizens’ Association Inc  $1,000
 Nyamba Buru Yawuru Ltd  $150,321
 Oil Mallee Association of Australia Inc  $36,367
 Old Fairbridgians’ Association  $9,105
 Older Womens Network WA Inc  $5,000
 Ongerup and Needilup District Museum Inc  $20,000
 Open Hand Inc  $13,604
 Orana House Inc  $10,000
 Orana House Inc  $4,400
 Ord Land and Water Inc  $5,863
 Ord Valley Events Inc  $22,300
 Outcare Inc  $37,091
 Outdoors WA Inc  $12,353
 Padbury Community Kindergarten Inc  $8,050
 Palliative Care WA Inc  $14,000
 Palmerston Association Inc  $474,088
 Parents’ and Friends’ Federation of Western Australia Inc  $26,844
 Parents Without Partners (Western Australia) Inc  $19,923
 Park Home Owners Association WA Inc  $2,467
 Parkerville Children and Youth Care Inc  $225,000
 Parkinson’s Western Australia Inc  $22,683
 Parks and Leisure Australia  $24,750
 Parkwood Playgroup  $8,124
 Pat Thomas Memorial Community House Inc  $54,509
 Patricia Giles Centre Inc  $76,030
 Patricia Giles Centre Inc  $8,800
 PBF (Australia) Ltd  $118,605
 Peaceful Bay Sea Rescue Group Inc WA  $15,372
 Peel Preservation Group  $5,336
 Peel-Harvey Catchment Council Inc  $301,063
 Pemberton Community Child Care Centre Inc  $56,984
 Pemberton Mill Hall Restoration Committee Inc  $151,688
 Pemberton Visitor Centre Inc  $14,800
 Pemberton Visitor Centre Inc  $15,000
 People Learn Productions Inc  $14,800
 Perth Asian Community Centre Inc  $1,457
 Perth Central and East Metro Medicare Local Ltd  $15,000
 Perth Christian Life Centre Inc  $20,000
 Perth Christian Life Centre Inc  $5,000
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – All Saints Anglican Church, Gosnells  $145,517
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Bayswater  $10,000
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Bellevue, Darlington  $10,391
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Beverley-Brookton-St Marys Church  $10,620
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Brookton – St Marks Church  $37,517
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Bullcreek-Leeming  $12,000
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Eastern Goldfields  $30,000
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of Northam  $11,000
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – Anglican Parish of St Nicholas, Floreat Park  $45,189
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – St Georges Cathedral  $2,050
 Perth Diocesan Trustees – St Mark’s Anglican Church, Tammin  $71,932
 Perth Fashion Concepts Inc  $57,500
 Perth Fashion Concepts Inc  $72,500
 Perth Hebrew Congregation Inc  $12,922
 Perth Hills Jazz Orchestra Inc  $2,479
 Perth Home Care Services Inc – Geraldton  $7,813
 Perth Home Care Services Inc  $32,500
 Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $6,600
 Perth Linux Users Group Inc  $8,413
 Perth Studio Potters Inc  $15,000

 Kids Are Kids! Therapy and Education Centre Inc  $33,741
 Kids’ Camps Inc  $9,725
 Kids’ Camps Inc  $117,500
 Kids’ Camps Inc  $111,441
 Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $20,000
 Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Council Inc  $16,000
 Kimberley Group Training Inc  $158,171
 Kimberley Land Council Aboriginal Corporation – Kimberley Ranger Program  $130,880
 Kingdom City Inc  $269,966
 Kingsley Community Carols Festival  $4,478
 Kingsway Christian College Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $14,082
 Kondinin Calendar Inc  $5,427
 Kondinin Community Resource Centre Inc  $6,000
 Koora Retreat Centre Inc  $15,000
 KTY Community Shed Inc  $58,141
 Kulcha Multicultural Arts of Western Australia  $173,487
 Kulcha Multicultural Arts of Western Australia  $150,000
 Kulungah-Myah Family Centre Inc  $7,686
 Kununurra Neighbourhood House Inc  $15,000
 Kururrungku Store Mindibungu Aboriginal Corporation  $9,620
 Kush Centre for Music Culture and Community Development  $1,000
 Kwinana Early Years Services Inc  $96,438
 Kwinana Home Support Service Inc  $223,000
 Kwinana Model Railway Club Inc  $2,496
 Kyle Andrews Foundation Inc  $10,000
 L.A.M.P. Inc  $10,000
 L.A.M.P. Inc  $27,745
 Lado Croatian Folkloric Ensemble of WA  $15,000
 Lake Joondalup Baptist College Inc – Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $13,595
 Law Society of Western Australia – Francis Burt Law Education Centre  $35,000
 Leeman Marine Rescue Inc  $52,503
 Leeming Senior High School Education Support Centre CadetsBush Rangers  $15,000
 Lefroy Road Child Care Centre Inc  $34,000
 Legacy Fund of Fremantle Inc  $4,000
 Life Plan Recreation and Leisure Association Inc  $37,400
 Life Without Barriers  $49,090
 Lions Cancer Institute Inc  $100,000
 Lions Club of Balingup  $2,690
 Lions Club of Booragoon  $2,284
 Lions Club of Rockingham Inc  $9,371
 Lions Club of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $5,647
 Lions Eye Institute Ltd  $1,000,000
 Lions Hearing Foundation of Western Australia Inc  $65,000
 Literature Centre Inc  $165,705
 Living Stone Foundation Inc  $300,000
 Loftus Community Centre Association Inc  $121,976
 Loftus Playgroup Inc  $2,554
 Loveland For Wildlife Inc  $17,225
 Lower King Community Association Inc  $185,824
 Lucy Saw Centre Association  $20,000
 Macedonian Society of Geraldton Inc  $52,820
 Malayali Association of Perth Inc  $3,000
 Malayali Association of Perth Inc  $1,254
 Mandurah City Choral Society Inc  $1,512
 Mandurah Community Care Inc  $20,000
 Mandurah Districts Orchid Club of WA Inc  $2,690
 Mandurah Murray Emergency Relief Fund Inc  $65,000
 Mandurah Muscateers (Charity Computers) Inc  $16,481
 Mandurah Performing Arts Inc  $37,050
 Mandurah Wildlife Rescue Inc  $38,909
 Manjimup Chamber of Commerce and Industry Inc  $17,000

 Many Rivers Opportunities Ltd  $500,000
 Marangaroo Family Centre Inc  $10,700
 Margaret River and Districts Historical Society Inc  $2,600
 Margaret River Camera Club  $1,326
 Margaret River Community Resource Centre Inc  $17,637
 Margaret River Community Resource Centre Inc  $10,000
 Margaret River Surf Life Saving Club Inc  $75,318
 Margaret River Volunteer Sea Rescue Group  $24,379
 Marjorie Mann Lawley Day Care Centre  $163,268
 Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation – Derby Family Healing Centre  $7,000
 Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation – Family & Domestic Violence Support & Outreach Service  $5,000
 Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Womens Resource Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $31,022
 Maroo Wildlife Refuge Inc  $13,436
 Marr Mooditj Training Inc  $188,264
 Maylands Autumn Club Inc  $15,000
 Mboko Children Association of WA Inc  $10,840
 McDougall Park Community Kindergarten Inc  $29,677
 McFarleane House Learning Centre Inc  $9,629
 Meath Care Inc  $24,363
 Meerilinga Young Children’s Foundation Inc  $291,848
 Meerilinga Young Children’s Foundation Inc  $37,160
 Meerilinga Young Children’s Services Inc – Children and Family Centre Cockburn  $264,092
 Men Of The Trees  $20,918
 Men’s Resource Centre Inc  $5,413
 Mental Health Carers Arafmi WA Inc  $20,000
 Mental Health Law Centre WA Inc  $19,845
 Mercy Community Services Inc  $1,496,213
 Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc  $25,000
 Mid West Community Living Association Inc  $2,296
 Mid West Community Services Network Inc  $2,950
 Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc  $45,000
 Midland Job Link Inc  $24,460
 Midland Junction Poultry Society Inc  $2,000
 Midland Womens Health Care Place Inc  $4,201
 Midwest Disaster Relief Inc  $29,000
 Midwest Men’s Health Inc  $43,853
 Midwest Multicultural Association WA Inc  $7,596
 Mission Australia  $46,754
 Mission Australia  $31,990
 Mission Australia  $174,740
 Moana Pasifika Inc  $5,725
 Moora Playgroup Inc  $10,292
 Moore Catchment Council Inc  $5,780
 Mosaic Community Care Inc  $101,720
 Mosman Park EcoFair at St Luke’s  $7,488
 Motor Neurone Disease Association of Western Australia Inc  $11,700
 Mount Helena Residents and Ratepayers Progress AssociationInc  $10,738
 Mount Lawley Neighbourhood Learning Centre  $15,000
 Mount Magnet District High School Cadets Bush Rangers  $10,941
 Movies By Burswood Inc  $20,000
 Mowanjum Aboriginal Corporation  $40,383
 Mt Hawthorn Playgroup Inc  $13,520
 Mt. Magnet Historical Society Inc  $5,449
 Mukinbudin Planning and Development Group Inc  $20,141
 Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Inc  $702,552
 Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Inc  $78,000
 Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia Inc  $193,021
 Munda Biddi Trail Foundation Inc  $15,600
 Mundaring and Hills Historical Society Inc  $24,740
 Mundaring Arts Centre Inc  $14,950
 Mundaring Community Men’s Shed Inc  $13,000
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 Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $140,485
 Shire of Boddington  $55,180
 Shire of Boyup Brook  $9,545
 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes Bushfire Brigade  $21,000
 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $250,000
 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $23,739
 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $14,910
 Shire of Broome  $13,364
 Shire of Broome  $258,864
 Shire of Bruce Rock  $20,000
 Shire of Capel  $15,000
 Shire of Capel  $95,000
 Shire of Carnarvon – Carnarvon Civic Centre  $44,000
 Shire of Carnarvon  $33,803
 Shire of Carnarvon  $13,536
 Shire of Chapman Valley  $70,753
 Shire of Coolgardie  $28,933
 Shire of Coolgardie  $20,000
 Shire of Coorow  $26,399
 Shire of Coorow  $18,700
 Shire of Coorow  $91,414
 Shire of Coorow  $68,440
 Shire of Corrigin  $2,617
 Shire of Cunderdin  $800,000
 Shire of Dandaragan – Canover Volunteer Bushfire  $60,000
 Shire of Dardanup  $20,000
 Shire of Denmark – Tingledale Hall  $43,167
 Shire of Denmark  $670,000
 Shire of Dumbleyung  $9,435
 Shire of Dumbleyung  $24,037
 Shire of Dumbleyung  $20,900
 Shire of Esperance – Esperance Civic Centre  $42,500
 Shire of Esperance – Pink Lake Urban Rural Bush Fire Brigade  $15,000
 Shire of Gnowangerup  $72,786
 Shire of Halls Creek  $623,178
 Shire of Halls Creek  $23,000
 Shire of Harvey  $8,080
 Shire of Irwin – Irwin Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade  $25,737
 Shire of Jerramungup  $18,683
 Shire of Jerramungup  $142,648
 Shire of Kalamunda  $17,505
 Shire of Kalamunda  $80,000
 Shire of Katanning  $3,735
 Shire of Katanning  $145,000
 Shire of Katanning  $13,451
 Shire of Katanning  $42,429
 Shire of Kojonup  $6,000
 Shire of Kulin  $68,650
 Shire of Lake Grace – Lake Grace Childcare Centre  $52,971
 Shire of Lake Grace  $11,645
 Shire of Lake Grace  $45,210
 Shire of Lake Grace  $30,620
 Shire of Laverton  $10,000
 Shire of Laverton  $20,415
 Shire of Leonora  $20,000
 Shire of Leonora  $15,750
 Shire of Manjimup  $17,503
 Shire of Manjimup  $6,000
 Shire of Manjimup  $145,000
 Shire of Manjimup  $18,057
 Shire of Manjimup  $5,716

 Shire of Manjimup  $20,000
 Shire of Meekatharra  $15,170
 Shire of Merredin – Cummins Theatre  $25,000
 Shire of Merredin  $3,000
 Shire of Merredin  $44,307
 Shire of Merredin  $9,000
 Shire of Merredin  $11,000
 Shire of Mingenew  $21,549
 Shire of Mingenew  $64,700
 Shire of Moora – Moora Performing Arts Centre  $42,648
 Shire of Moora  $10,735
 Shire of Morawa  $90,959
 Shire of Mount Magnet  $19,100
 Shire of Mt Marshall  $260,000
 Shire of Mt Marshall  $3,558
 Shire of Mundaring – Darlington Vol. Bushfire Brigade Inc  $25,125
 Shire of Mundaring – Wooroloo Volunteer Bushfire Brigade  $8,000
 Shire of Mundaring  $20,000
 Shire of Mundaring  $40,000
 Shire of Murchison  $1,782
 Shire of Murray – Edenvale Heritage Precinct  $7,250
 Shire of Murray  $14,000
 Shire of Murray  $60,000
 Shire of Murray  $80,000
 Shire of Northam – Killara Adult Day Care And Respite Centre  $250,000
 Shire of Northam  $13,015
 Shire of Northam  $48,978
 Shire of Northampton  $48,181
 Shire of Northampton  $34,442
 Shire of Northampton  $19,190
 Shire of Perenjori  $35,520
 Shire of Pingelly  $15,000
 Shire of Plantagenet  $21,250
 Shire of Ravensthorpe – Jerdacuttup Community Association  $152,000
 Shire of Roebourne  $40,000
 Shire of Roebourne  $50,000
 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $7,448
 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $18,000
 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $2,939
 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $11,018
 Shire of Tammin – Kadjininy Kep  $28,500
 Shire of Three Springs  $30,000
 Shire of Toodyay  $11,310
 Shire of Trayning  $2,625
 Shire of Trayning  $10,700
 Shire of Victoria Plains  $59,200
 Shire of West Arthur  $21,340
 Shire of Wickepin  $17,501
 Shire of Williams  $14,678
 Shire of Wiluna  $54,400
 Shire of Wyndham-East Kimberley  $75,000
 Shire of Yilgarn  $60,198
 SIDS and Kids Western Australia Inc  $228,143
 Silver Chain Nursing Assn – Eneabba  $50,000
 Silver Threads Band  $5,463
 Smart Events Inc  $6,273
 Social Innovation in Western Australia Ltd  $200,000
 Somerville Playgroup  $11,000
 Song Room Inc  $149,517
 Sonrise Christian Life Centre Inc  $13,910
 South Coastal Womens Health Services Association Inc  $19,660

 PetRescue Ltd  $25,000
 Philanthropy Australia Inc  $48,000
 Philatelic Society of Western Australia Inc  $5,040
 Pila Nguru (Aboriginal Corporation)  $107,901
 Pilbara Association of Non Government Organisations Inc  $23,538
 Pilbara Community Legal Service Inc  $56,094
 Pilbara Meta Maya Regional Aboriginal Corporation  $551,200
 Pilbara Multicultural Association Inc  $1,000
 Pingelly Volunteer State Emergency Service Unit Inc  $4,000
 Pingrup Community Resource Centre Inc  $30,000
 Pinjarra Katijin Inc  $10,500
 Pinjarra Patchwork and Quilters Inc  $2,227
 Plantagenet Historical Society Inc  $11,620
 Playgroup WA Inc  $109,863
 Playgroup WA Inc  $4,107
 Point Walter Toy Box Inc  $13,628
 Polart 2012 Perth Inc  $150,000
 Polart 2012 Perth Inc  $7,000
 Polish Club General W.Sikorski Western Australia  $15,000
 Polish Youth Theatre Group Scena 98  $7,947
 Port of Albany Ladies’ Probus Club Inc  $3,524
 Pregnancy Assistance Inc  $7,500
 Pride Western Australia Inc  $20,000
 Probus Club of Dalkeith/Nedlands Inc  $3,400
 Probus Club of Northam WA Inc  $1,519
 Probus Club of Safety Bay Inc  $1,400
 Procott Inc  $20,000
 Propel Youth Arts WA Inc  $25,000
 Prostate Cancer Foundation of Australia Ltd – WA Division  $61,231
 ProSubi Ltd  $15,000
 Quairading Toy Library  $3,795
 Quinns Community Baptist Church  $15,000
 Quinns Rocks Environmental Group  $1,177
 Rainbow Child Care Centre Inc  $9,805
 Rainbow Playgroup Centre Inc  $9,832
 Ranford Teddy Bears Playgroup  $4,454
 Rawa Community School Aboriginal Corporation  $17,677
 Ready To Work Inc  $159,000
 Redeemed Care Inc  $15,000
 Redemptorist Lay Community of WA Inc  $7,700
 Relationships Australia (Western Australia) Inc  $696,637
 Retirees WA Inc- Tuart Hill Branch  $1,252
 Returned and Services League of Aust. WA Branch Inc – Denmark  $52,455
 Returned and Services League of Aust. WA Branch Inc – Dongara Sub-Branch  $5,000
 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Inc  $20,800
 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Inc  $783,535
 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Inc – Esperance Sub Branch  $14,000
 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Inc – Osborne Park  $2,899
 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Inc – Quinns Rocks Sub Branch  $4,000
 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Inc – Wyalkatchem Sub-Branch  $20,000
 Richmond Fellowship of Western Australia Inc  $626,770
 Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia  $6,731
 Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia  $371,810
 River Conservation Society Inc  $3,604
 River Of Life Christian City Church Ltd  $20,000
 River Of Life Christian City Church Ltd  $14,562
 Riverlinks Child Care and Community Centre Inc  $28,737
 Riverview Community Services Inc  $20,000
 Rockingham City Pipe Band Inc  $12,745
 Rockingham District Gem and Rockhunting Club  $6,000
 Rockingham Montessori School Inc  $8,534

 Rockingham Volunteer Sea Rescue Group Inc  $37,580
 Rocky Bay Inc  $2,709,782
 Rod Evans Senior Citizens Centre Inc  $19,256
 Roleystone District High School Bushrangers Cadets  $15,000
 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth – identitywa  $65,639
 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth – Maylands Parish  $71,567
 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth – Parish of St Brigid’sMidland  $66,976
 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth – Personal Advocacy Service  $41,143
 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth – Pro-Cathedral of St John the Evangelist  $59,890
 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth – St Brigid’s Church  $50,000
 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth – St Joseph Parish Northam  $7,000
 Roman Catholic Bishop of Broome – Centacare Kimberley Homeless Project  $209,563
 Roman Catholic Bishop of Bunbury – Immaculate Conception Parish, Harvey  $12,195
 Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton – Centacare Family Services  $31,000
 Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton – St Mary’s Northampton  $40,780
 Rose Nowers Early Learning Centre Inc  $15,727
 Rotary Club of Applecross Inc  $7,930
 Rotary Club of Heirisson Inc  $20,000
 Rotary Club of Hillarys Inc  $4,715
 Rotary Club of Karrinyup Inc  $4,033
 Rotary Club of Matilda Bay Inc  $7,000
 Rotary Club of Morley  $15,000
 Rotary Club of Mosman Park Inc – Mosman Park Men’s Community Shed  $723,846
 Rotary Club of North Perth Inc  $20,000
 Rotary Club of Rockingham  $1,029
 Rotary Club of Western Endeavour Inc  $1,012
 Rotary Club of Willetton Inc  $11,000
 Rottnest Foundation Inc  $15,000
 Rottnest Society Inc  $3,136
 Royal Western Australian Historical Society Inc  $7,975
 Ruah Community Services  $15,000
 Ruah Community Services  $65,545
 Rural Youth W. A. Inc – Bruce Rock  $15,750
 Russian Ethnic Community and Youth Development AssociationRusichi Inc  $8,000
 S.A.A.A. Chapter 24 Jandakot WA Inc  $15,000
 Salvation Army WA Property Trust – The Beacon  $2,309,593
 Save The Children Australia Trust – East Kimberley  $54,140
 Save The Children Australia Trust – West Kimberley  $47,656
 Save The Children Australia Trust – Youth At Risk  $103,906
 Save the Children Australia  $85,037
 SC Church Inc  $20,000
 School Volunteer Program Inc  $69,216
 Scout Association of Australia – Cottesloe Community Centre  $2,750,000
 Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $37,011
 Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $125,000
 Scuba 2 – The Club Inc  $2,213
 Seacrest Village Social Club  $1,474
 Second Harvest Australia Inc  $65,000
 Secret Harbour Residents Association Inc  $15,000
 Seniors’ Recreation Council of WA Inc  $60,280
 Senses Foundation Inc  $27,545
 Serenity Lodge Inc  $74,880
 Serpentine-Jarrahdale Youth Activity Group Inc  $7,937
 Settlers Lakeside Village Ravenswood Residents’ Association Inc  $4,425
 Share & Care Community Services Group Inc  $96,000
 Shire of Ashburton – Onslow Youth Program  $68,041
 Shire of Ashburton  $300,000
 Shire of Ashburton  $6,925
 Shire of Ashburton  $100,000
 Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $64,200
 Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $35,680
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 Voice of Asia Inc  $1,000
 Volunteer Centre of Western Australia Inc  $75,500
 Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Port Hedland Inc  $38,690
 Volunteer Marine Rescue Shark Bay Inc  $12,150
 WA Council on Addictions (Cyrenian House)  $621,867
 WA Disabled Sports Association  $87,187
 WA Disabled Sports Association  $130,824
 WA Poets Inc  $2,813
 Wagin Historical Village Museum Inc  $15,000
 Walitj Aboriginal Corporation  $76,877
 Walkaway Playgroup  $3,853
 Walpole Sea Rescue Group WA Inc  $20,979
 Wangka Maya Pilbara Aboriginal Language Centre (AboriginalCorporation)  $68,270
 Wanneroo – Joondalup State Emergency Service Inc  $28,255
 Wanneroo Joondalup Regional Broadcasting Association Inc  $11,643
 Wanneroo Playgroup Association Inc  $8,319
 Wanneroo Repertory Inc  $16,299
 Wanneroo Senior Citizens’ Club Inc  $2,573
 Waratah Christian Community Inc  $594,632
 Waratah Christian Community Inc  $5,030
 Waratah Residents Social Club  $5,832
 Waratah Support Centre (South West Region) Inc  $10,000
 Waringarri Arts Aboriginal Corporation  $27,552
 Waroona Agricultural Society Inc  $3,630
 Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc  $5,053
 Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc  $3,636
 Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc  $5,000
 Waroona Senior Citizens Welfare Committee  $5,829
 Warren Art and Craft Group Inc  $9,537
 We Can Association Inc  $15,000
 Webber Gardens Residents’ Association  $1,090
 Welcome Lotteries House Inc  $25,318
 Wellstead Resource and Telecentre Inc  $7,275
 West Australian Ballet Company  $300,000
 West Australian Group Training Scheme Inc  $112,421
 West Australian Mandolin Orchestra Inc  $8,728
 West Australian Men’s Gathering Inc  $6,000
 West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $39,750
 West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $190,000
 West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $220,029
 West Coast Blues Club Inc  $15,000
 West Leederville Residents Association Inc  $6,554
 West Midlands Natural Resource Group Inc  $25,900
 West Stirling Neighbourhood House Inc  $6,600
 West Subiaco Masonic Hall Co. Pty Ltd  $24,735
 Westcare Inc  $10,000
 Westcycle Inc  $45,000
 Western Australia Telugu Association Inc  $5,000
 Western Australian AIDS Council Inc  $3,000
 Western Australian Apiarists’ Society Inc  $1,050
 Western Australian Association of the Deaf Inc  $15,000
 Western Australian Association of Toy Libraries Inc  $60,000
 Western Australian Council of Social Service Inc (WACOSS)  $321,415
 Western Australian Council of Social Service Inc (WACOSS)  $86,500
 Western Australian Council of State School Organisations  $29,905
 Western Australian Network of Alcohol and Other Drug Agencies Inc  $22,593
 Western Australian Opera Company Inc  $250,000
 Western Australian Science Fiction Foundation Inc  $12,011
 Western Australian Sports Federation  $280,000
 Western Australian Sports Federation  $14,730
 Western Australian Substance Users’ Association Inc  $57,325

 Western Desert Lands Aboriginal Corporation (Jamukurnu-Yapalikunu)  $84,867
 Western Sports Media Inc  $7,406
 Wheatbelt Community Legal Centre Inc  $1,500
 Wheatbelt Natural Resource Management Inc  $75,020
 Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $20,000
 Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $15,000
 Whitford Senior Citizens Club (Inc)  $1,740
 Whitfords & District Aero Modelling Club (Inc)  $14,768
 Whitfords Volunteer Sea Rescue Group  $7,297
 Wildflower Society of Western Australia (Inc)  $5,506
 Wilson Inlet Catchment Committee Inc  $55,500
 Windmill Community Newspaper Inc  $8,000
 Windy Harbour Volunteer Marine Rescue Inc  $44,710
 Winun Ngari Aboriginal Corporation  $15,000
 Wirrabirra Child Care Centre Inc  $83,188
 Wirraka Maya Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  $3,000
 Wirrimanu Aboriginal Corporation  $6,218
 Women’s Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $23,416
 Women’s Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $52,525
 Women’s Health Care Association  $34,500
 Womens Healthworks, Health Education and Resource Centre Inc  $64,230
 Woodlupine Family Centre Inc  $9,990
 Workpower Inc  $20,000
 Wunan Foundation Inc  $92,988
 Wunan Foundation Inc  $15,000
 Wyalkatchem Playgroup  $2,979
 Wyndham District High School Bush Ranger Cadet Unit  $15,000
 Yamatji Marlpa Aboriginal Corporation  $41,576
 YMCA of Perth Youth and Community Services Inc – Narrogin  $57,716
 YMCA of Perth Youth and Community Services Inc  $196,250
 York Society (Inc)  $278,578
 Young Men’s Christian Association of Perth  $19,800
 Young Women’s Christian Association of Perth  $25,000
 Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $36,570
 Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $79,846
 Youth Focus Inc  $352,110
 Youth Futures WA (Inc)  $21,000
 Youth Futures WA (Inc)  $485,390
 Youth Involvement Council Inc  $5,000
 Youth Involvement Council Inc  $109,549
 Zig Zag Community Arts Inc  $20,000
 Zonta Club of Perth Inc  $13,625
 Zonta House Women’s Refuge Inc  $14,000
   
Total Direct Grants  $106,792,918
   
Add : Reinstatment of prior years grants  $122,273
Less : Current year writeback   $26,202
   $106,888,989

The following amounts were recommended by the Commisssion approved by the  
Minister in accordance with section 22(d) (i) and 22(d)(ii) of the Lotteries Commission Act  
1990 (as amended)  
   
ScreenWest inc  $5,500,000
UWA – Perth international Arts Festival  $5,500,000
Total  $11,000,000
Total Approved  $117,888,989

 South Coastal Womens Health Services Association Inc  $20,888
 South Hedland Lotteries House Inc  $6,630
 South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre Inc  $35,000
 South Metropolitan Personnel Inc  $738,209
 South West Refuge Inc  $26,000
 South West Senior Expo Inc  $3,000
 South West Tapestry Weaving Group  $1,613
 Southcare Inc  $36,386
 Southcare Inc  $60,000
 Southern Agcare Inc  $18,000
 Southern Communities Advocacy Legal and Education Service Inc  $42,517
 Southern Cross Care WA – Foley Respite Centre, Hilton  $107,811
 Southern Cross Village Success Residents’ Committee  $8,916
 Southern Region Leadership Inc  $40,000
 Spiers Centre Inc  $75,000
 Spina Bifida and Hydrocephalus Association of WA Inc  $15,000
 St Barbara’s Festival Inc  $20,000
 St B’s Playgroup  $12,752
 St Ives Mandurah Residents’ Association Inc  $4,726
 St Ives Murdoch Residents Association Inc  $2,564
 St John Ambulance (Western Australia) Inc – Mandurah CadetDivision  $9,738
 St John Ambulance Australia (Western Australia) Inc  $1,304,970
 St Michael’s Playgroup  $4,000
 St Patrick’s Community Support Centre Ltd  $83,043
 St Patrick’s Community Support Centre Ltd  $75,000
 St Vincent De Paul Society WA Inc – Passages Peel  $245,074
 St Vincent De Paul Society WA Inc  $8,650
 St Vincent De Paul Society WA Inc  $485,000
 St. Bartholomew’s House Inc – Lime Street Project  $2,861,512
 St. Bartholomew’s House Inc  $310,422
 Stand By Me Youth Service WA Inc  $19,100
 Starick Services Inc  $31,050
 State Library of Western Australia Foundation Ltd  $300,000
 Stirling Carols by Candlelight  $11,973
 Stratton Out of School Care Service Inc  $5,000
 Strike A Chord Inc  $10,000
 Sudbury Community House Association  $8,028
 Superfins WA Inc  $15,000
 Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc  $343,710
 Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc  $1,100,000
 Swan City Youth Service Inc  $26,359
 Swan Emergency Accommodation  $20,000
 Swan Valley Nyungah Community Aboriginal Corporation  $5,905
 Talbot Brook Land Management Association Inc  $12,297
 Tambellup Community Resource Centre Inc  $11,350
 Tammin Economy Shop Cooinda Association T.E.S.C.A. Inc  $4,000
 Technology Assisting Disability WA Inc  $30,100
 Telethon Institute for Child Health Research  $20,000
 Tenth Light Horse Bunbury Troop  $58,840
 Teranca Mews Residents Association  $3,433
 Theatre Kimberley Inc  $15,000
 Three Springs Childcare Inc  $14,833
 Tom Price Nameless Festival Inc  $11,928
 Toodyay Historical Society Inc  $15,000
 Tourism Rockingham Inc  $20,000
 Town of Bassendean – Bassendean Youth Service  $24,200
 Town of Bassendean – Pensioner Guard Cottage Museum  $15,000
 Town of Bassendean  $20,000
 Town of Cambridge  $20,803
 Town of Claremont – Claremont Museum  $43,084
 Town of Claremont  $198,795

 Town of Claremont  $17,587
 Town of Cottesloe  $200,000
 Town of East Fremantle  $18,620
 Town of Kwinana – Bertram Community Centre  $850,000
 Town of Kwinana  $5,300
 Town of Mosman Park  $12,088
 Town of Port Hedland  $35,000
 Town of Port Hedland  $29,370
 Town of Victoria Park  $20,000
 Track Care WA Inc  $14,422
 Training Ship Canning Unit Committee Inc  $11,777
 Tranby College Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $15,000
 Treasure Island Child Care Centre  $29,097
 Treloar Child Care Centre Inc  $5,156
 Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc  $250,000
 True Blue Dreaming Inc  $42,662
 Truffle Kerfuffle Inc  $15,000
 Tuart Hill Swimming Club Inc  $15,000
 Two Rocks Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $10,446
 UCA Assembly Ltd – Frontier Services – Karratha Occasional Care  $11,456
 UN Women Australia Inc – Perth Chapter  $63,000
 Uni Camp For Kids Inc  $71,395
 Unit Committee TS Perth Inc  $11,372
 United Eritrean Association of WA Inc  $3,500
 United Way West Australia Inc  $8,336
 Uniting Church Homes – Elimatta Aged Care  $29,307
 Uniting Church Homes – Rowethorpe Village  $31,975
 Uniting Church Homes – Trinity  $7,483
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Finucare  $60,355
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Fremantle Wesley Church  $144,000
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Mandurah  $25,000
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Moora  $21,707
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Mukinbudin Church Halll  $9,360
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Scots Uniting Church Albany  $12,000
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Uniting Aid  $75,000
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Uniting Church in The City  $18,767
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Uniting Outreach Mandurah  $6,600
 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust WA – Unitingcare Crossroads WA  $9,273
 UnitingCare West – CBD Service Centre  $72,817
 UnitingCare West  $80,000
 Unity of First People of Australia Ltd  $160,676
 University Child Care Club  $42,324
 University of Notre Dame Australia – Broome Campus  $56,039
 University of The Third Age, The University of Western Australia Inc – Hills Region  $1,382
 Uralla Wildlife Sanctuary Inc  $13,489
 US Model Railroad Club of WA Inc  $12,500
 Uthando Project Inc  $7,400
 UWA – Centre for Social Impact  $40,000
 UWA – New Fortune Theatre  $30,675
 UWA – School of Pathology & Laboratory Medicine  $1,200,000
 Valued Independent People Inc  $30,000
 Variety WA Inc  $20,000
 Variety WA Inc  $1,200,000
 Variety WA Inc  $16,600
 VB’s Tenpin Bowling League  $9,500
 Veteran Car Club of W.A  $27,195
 Veterans Retreats of Western Australia Inc  $67,953
 Vibe Baldivis Social Club Inc  $11,818
 Victoria Park Youth Accommodation Inc  $8,500
 Victoria Park Youth Accommodation Inc  $68,434
 Vietnamese Community in Australia / Western Australia Chapter Inc  $15,000
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Thank you 
Western Australia

Lucy from Grants and  
Community Development.
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